Texas Water
Development Board

APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS

This application is comprehensive, covering all loan and grant assistance applications for water
and wastewater infrastructure financing through the various Texas Water Development Board
(TWDB) programs. The format of the application is intended to expedite the review process for
both the applicant and TWDB staff. This application can be used by political subdivisions,
including water supply corporations.

Please submit one double-sided original and one indexed, electronic copy, via electronic storage
media such as CD or flash drive using MS Word, Excel and/or Adobe Acrobat.

Please submit your application to:

Texas Water Development Board

Water Supply and Infrastructure-Regional Water Planning and Development
P O Box 13231

1700 N. Congress Avenue, 5" Floor

Austin, Texas 78711-3231

(78701 for courier deliveries)

A complete application consists of all of the applicable information and forms requested in this
document. When preparing this application please review the Application and all Guidance and
Forms, listed at the end.

For more information, please contact your Regional Project Implementation Team at:

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/programs/swift/regional project teams.asp

Thank you.

TWDB Use Only

Name of Applicant:

Date application received:

Date administratively complete:



http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/programs/swift/regional_project_teams.asp
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Part A: General Information
The legal authority under which the applicant was created and operates.

1.

a)
b)

N ¢

TYPE A GENERAL-LAW MUNICIPALITY (Texas Local Gov’'t Code Sec. 5.001)

TYPE B GENERAL-LAW MUNICIPALITY (Texas Local Gov’t Code Sec. 5.002)

TYPE C GENERAL-LAW MUNICIPALITY (Texas Local Gov’t Code Sec. 5.003)

HOME-RULE MUNICIPALITY (Texas Local Gov't Code Sec. 5.004)

SPECIAL-LAW MUNICIPALITY (Texas Local Gov’t Code Sec. 5.005)

NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION (Business Organization Code Chapter 22)

NONPROFIT WATER SUPPLY OR SEWER SERVICE CORP. (Texas Water Code Chapter 67)
ALL DISTRICTS (Texas Water Code Chapter 49)

OTHER (attach)

Applicant Name and Contact Information:

Name: Town of Westlake
County: Tarrant, Denton
Physical | 1500 Solana Blvd.
Address: | Building 7, Suite 7200
Westlake, TX. 76262
Mailing 1500 Solana Blvd.
Address: | Building 7, Suite 7200
Westlake, TX. 7626
Phone: (817) 490-5717
Fax: (817) 430-1812
Website: | www.westlake-tx.org

Brief description of the project:

The Town of Westlake is seeking funding for the construction of a Northside Il 30-inch water main
of approximately 14,590 feet. This is a joint project with City of Fort Worth & Trophy Club. Per
agreement with City of Fort Worth, Town of Westlake will be responsible for 37.54 percent for
Engineering and 27.94 percent of the Construction Cost of the proposed pipeline. Total funding
requested for Town of Westlake $2,100,000 which includes Planning, Engineering, Construction
and Closing Cost.

Applicant’s Officers and Members:

Name Office Held
Wheat, Laura Mayor
Barrett, Michael Council Member
Belvedere, Alesa Council Member
Langdon, Carol Mayor Pro-Term
Stoltenberg, Wayne Council Member
Rennhack, Rick Council Member



http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/LG/htm/LG.5.htm#5.001
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/LG/htm/LG.5.htm#5.002
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/LG/htm/LG.5.htm#5.003
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/LG/htm/LG.5.htm#5.004
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/LG/htm/LG.5.htm#5.005
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/BO/htm/BO.22.htm
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/WA/htm/WA.67.htm
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/WA/htm/WA.49.htm
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5.

Applicant’s primary contact person for day-to-day project implementation.

Name: Jarrod Greenwood

Title: Public Works Director/Assistant to the Town Manager
Address: | 1500 Solana Blvd.

Phone: Building 7, Suite 7200

Fax: Westlake, TX. 76262

Email: jgreenwood@westlake-tx.org

Applicant’s Consultants (Attach copies of all draft and/or executed contracts for consultant
services to be used by the Applicant in applying for financial assistance or constructing the
proposed project.):

a) Applicant Engineer N/A
Firm CP&Y, Inc.
Name:
Contact: | Kevin R. Glover, P.E.
Address: | 115 W. 7", Street, Suite 1500, Fort Worth, Texas 76102
Phone: 817-662-1203
Fax:
Email: kglovier@cpyi.com
b) Bond Counsel N/A
Firm McCall Parkhurst & Horton LLP
Name:
Contact: | Rudy Segura
Address: | 717 N. Harwood St.. Ste. 900, Dallas, TX 75201-6514
Phone: 214-754-9268
Fax: 214-754-9250
Email: rsegura@mphlegal.com
¢) Financial Advisor N/A
Firm Lawrence Financial Consulting LLC
Name:
Contact: | Tom Lawrence
Address: | 403 Bonaire Ct. Austin, TX 78738-1775
Phone: 512-375-3424
Fax: 512-582-8259
Email: tlawrence@lfctexas.com
d) Certified Public Accountant (or other appropriate rep) NA [
Firm Town of Westlake
Name:
Contact: | Debbie Piper, C.P.A, Finance Director
Address: | 1500 Solana Blvd, Bldg 7, Ste 7200, Westlake Texas 76262
Phone: (817) 490-5715
Fax: (817) 430-1812
Email: dpiper@westlake-tx.org




TWDB-0148
Version: 6-2-15

Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part D5”)

7.

8.

9.

10.

e) Legal Counsel (if other than Bond Counsel) NA [
Firm Boyle & Lowry
Name:
Contact: | Stan Lowry
Address: | 4201 Wingren Drive, Ste 108, Irving Texas 75062
Phone: (972) 650-7100
Fax: (972) 650-7105
Email: slowry@boyle-lowry.com
f) Any other consultant representing the Applicant before the Board NA X

Firm
Name:

Contact:

Address:

Phone:

Fax:

Email:

List the counties within the Applicant’s service area: Tarrant & Denton

Identify the Applicant’s total service area population: 1,310

Applicant is requesting funding from which programs? Check all that apply.

PROGRAM AMOUNT REQUESTED
a) [ Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) $
b) [] Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) $
c) Texas Water Development Fund (DFund) $
dy [ State Participation $
e) [ Rural Water Assistance Fund (RWAF) $
) X State Water Implementation Fund for Texas (SWIFT) $ $2,100,000
9) [ Economically Distressed Areas Program (EDAP) $
h) [] If other please explain: $

Other Funding Sources: Provide a list of any other funding source(s) being utilized to complete
the project, including Applicant’s local contribution, if any, or commitments applied for and/or
received from any other funding agency for this project or any aspect of this project. Provide
commitment letters if available. Additional funding sources must be included within the

Project Budget (TWDB-1201).

Anticipated or
Funding Type of Funds Date Applied Funding Secured
Source (Loan/Grant) Amount ($) for Funding Date
N/A
Total
Funding $
from All
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| Sources | | |

Comments:

11. Applicant is requesting funding for which phase(s)? Check all that apply.

X Planning
[] Acquisition
X Design

X Construction

12. Is Applicant requesting funding to refinance existing debt?
Yes If yes, attach a copy of the document securing the debt to be refinanced.
] Attached document

= No



Part AG conRactvo. 5424

CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING RELATED DESIGN SERVICES
This AGREEMENT is between the City of Fort Worth, a Texas home-rule
municipality (the "CITY"), and CP&Y, Inc., authorized to do business in Texas, (the

"ENGINEER"), for a PROJECT generally described as: Northeast Northside 1! 30-Inch
Water Transmission Main along State Highway 170 from N. Beach Streetto U S 377.

Article |

Scope of Services

A. The Scope of Services is set forth in Attachment A.

Article Il

Compensation

A. The ENGINEER's compensation shall be in the amount of $456,340.00 as
set forth in Attachment B.

Article llI
Terms of Payment
Payments to the ENGINEER will be made as follows:

A. Invoice and Payment

(1) The Engineer shall provide the City sufficient documentation, including but
not limited to meeting the requirements set forth in Attachment D to this
AGREEMENT, to reasonably substantiate the invoices.

The ENGINEER will issue monthly invoices for all work performed under this
AGREEMENT. Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt.

(3) Upon completion of services enumerated in Article I, the final payment of
any balance will be due within 30 days of receipt of the final invoice.

4) In the event of a disputed or contested billing, only that portion so contested

City of Fort Worth, Texas

Standard Agreement for Engineering Related Design Services
Revised Date: 9/24/2014

Page 1 of 16
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will be withheld from payment, and the undisputed portion will be paid. The
CITY will exercise reasonableness in contesting any bill or portion thereof.

No interest will accrue on any contested portion of the billing until mutually
resolved.

If the CITY fails to make payment in full to ENGINEER for billings contested
in good faith within 60 days of the amount due, the ENGINEER may, after
giving 7 days' written notice to CITY, suspend services under this
AGREEMENT until paid in full. In the event of suspension of services, the

ENGINEER shall have no liability to CITY for delays or damages caused the
CITY because of such suspension of services.

Article IV

Obligations of the Engineer

Amendments to Article IV, if any, are included in Attachment C.

A.

General

The ENGINEER will serve as the CITY's professional engineering
representative under this Agreement, providing professional engineering

consultation and advice and furnishing customary services incidental
thereto.

Standard of Care

The standard of care applicable to the ENGINEER's services will be the
degree of skill and diligence normally employed in the State of Texas by
professional engineers or consultants performing the same or similar
services at the time such services are performed.

Subsurface Investigations

(1)  The ENGINEER shall advise the CITY with regard to the necessity for
subcontract work such as special surveys, tests, test borings, or other
subsurface investigations in connection with design and engineering
work to be performed hereunder. The ENGINEER shall also advise
the CITY concerning the results of same. Such surveys, tests, and

investigations shall be furnished by the CITY, unless otherwise
specified in Attachment A.

(2) In soils, foundation, groundwater, and other subsurface investigations,

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Standard Agreement for Engineering Related Design Services
Revised Date: 9/24/2014
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(1)

()

the actual characteristics may vary significantly between successive
test points and sample intervals and at locations other than where
observations, exploration, and investigations have been made.
Because of the inherent uncertainties in subsurface evaluations,
changed or unanticipated underground conditions may occur that
could affect the total PROJECT cost and/or execution. These
conditions and cost/execution effects are not the responsibility of the
ENGINEER.

Preparation of Engineering Drawings

The ENGINEER will provide to the CITY the original drawings of all plans in
ink on reproducible mylar sheets and electronic files in .pdf format, or as
otherwise approved by CITY, which shall become the property of the CITY.
CITY may use such drawings in any manner it desires; provided, however,
that the ENGINEER shall not be liable for the use of such drawings for any
project other than the PROJECT described herein.

Engineer's Personnel at Construction Site

The presence or duties of the ENGINEER's personnel at a construction site,
whether as on-site representatives or otherwise, do not make the
ENGINEER or its personnel in any way responsible for those duties that
belong to the CITY and/or the CITY's construction contractors or other
entities, and do not relieve the construction contractors or any other entity of
their obligations, duties, and responsibilities, including, but not limited to, all
construction methods, means, techniques, sequences, and procedures
necessary for coordinating and completing all portions of the construction
work in accordance with the Contract Documents and any health or safety
precautions required by such construction work. The ENGINEER and its
personnel have no authority to exercise any control over any construction
contractor or other entity or their employees in connection with their work or
any health or safety precautions.

Except to the extent of specific site visits expressly detailed and set forth in
Attachment A, the ENGINEER or its personnel shall have no obligation or
responsibility to visit the construction site to become familiar with the
progress or quality of the completed work on the PROJECT or to determine, .
in general, if the work on the PROJECT is being performed in a manner
indicating that the PROJECT, when completed, will be in accordance with
the Contract Documents, nor shall anything in the Contract Documents or
the agreement between CITY and ENGINEER be construed as requiring
ENGINEER to make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to
discover latent defects in the work or otherwise check the quality or quantity

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Standard Agreement for Engineering Related Design Services
Revised Date; 9/24/2014
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(3)

of the work on the PROJECT. If the ENGINEER makes on-site

observation(s) of a deviation from the Contract Documents, the ENGINEER
shall inform the CITY.

When professional certification of performance or characteristics of
materials, systems or equipment is reasonably required to perform the
services set forth in the Scope of Services, the ENGINEER shall be entitled
to rely upon such certification to establish materials, systems or equipment
and performance criteria to be required in the Contract Documents.

Opinions of Probable Cost, Financial Considerations, and Schedules

(1)  The ENGINEER shall provide opinions of probable costs based on the
: current available information at the time of preparation, in accordance
with Attachment A.

(@) In providing opinions of cost, financial analyses, economic feasibility
projections, and schedules for the PROJECT, the ENGINEER has no
control over cost or price of labor and materials: unknown or latent
conditions of existing equipment or structures that may affect operation
or maintenance costs; competitive bidding procedures and ‘market
conditions; time or quality of performance by third parties; quality, type,
management, or direction of operating personnel; and other economic
and operational factors that may materially affect the ultimate
PROJECT cost or schedule. Therefore, the ENGINEER makes no
warranty that the CITY's actual PROJECT costs, financial aspects,
economic feasibility, or schedules will not vary from the ENGINEER's
opinions, analyses, projections, or estimates.

Construction Progress Payments

Recommendations by the ENGINEER to the CITY for periodic construction
progress payments fo the construction contractor will be based on the
ENGINEER's knowledge, information, and belief from selective sampling
and observation that the work has progressed to the point indicated. Such
recommendations do not represent that continuous or detailed examinations
have been made by the ENGINEER to ascertain that the construction
contractor has completed the work in exact accordance with the Contract
Documents; that the final work will be acceptable in all respects; that the
ENGINEER has made an examination to ascertain how or for what purpose
the construction contractor has used the moneys paid; that title to any of the
work, materials, or equipment has passed to the CITY free and clear of liens,
claims, security interests, or encumbrances; or that there are not other
matters at issue between the CITY and the construction contractor that
affect the amount that should be paid.

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Standard Agreement for Engineering Related Design Services
Revised Date; 9/24/2014
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H. Record Drawings

Record drawings, if required, will be prepared, in part, on the basis of
information compiled and furnished by others, and may not always represent
the exact location, type of various components, or exact manner in which the
PROJECT was finally constructed. The ENGINEER is not responsible for

any errors or omissions in the information from others that is incorporated
into the record drawings.

L Minority Business and Small Business Enterprise (MBE)(SBE)
Participation

In accord with the City of Fort Worth Business Diversity Ordinance No.
20020-12-2011, as amended, the City has goals for the participation of
minority business enterprises and/or small business enterprises in City
contracts. Engineer acknowledges the MBE and SBE goals established for
this contract and its accepted written commitment to MBE and SBE
participation. Any misrepresentation of facts (other than a negligent
misrepresentation) and/or the commission of fraud by the Engineer may
result in the termination of this Agreement and debarment from participating
in City contracts for a period of time of not less than three (3) years.

J. Right to Audit

(1) ENGINEER agrees that the CITY shall, until the expiration of five (5) years
after final payment under this contract, have access to and the right to
examine and photocopy any directly pertinent books, documents, papers
and records of the ENGINEER involving transactions relating to this
contract. ENGINEER agrees that the CITY shall have access during normal
working hours to all necessary ENGINEER facilities and shall be provided
adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in
compliance with the provisions of this section. The CITY shall give
ENGINEER reasonable advance notice of intended audits.

2) ENGINEER further agrees to include in all its subconsultant agreements
hereunder a provision to the effect that the subconsultant agrees that the
CITY shall, until the expiration of five (5) years after final payment under the
subcontract, have access to and the right to examine and photocopy any
directly pertinent books, documents, papers and records of such
subconsultant, involving transactions to the subcontract, and further, that the
CITY shall have access during normal working hours to all subconsultant
facilities, and shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space, in
order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of this article

City of Fort Worth, Texas

Standard Agreement for Engineering Related Design Services
Revised Date: 9/24/2014
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together with subsection (3) hereof. CITY shall give subconsultant
reasonable advance notice of intended audits.

(3) ENGINEER and subconsultant agree to photocopy such documents as may
be requested by the CITY. The CITY agrees to reimburse ENGINEER for

the cost of copies at the rate published in the Texas Administrative Code in
effect as of the time copying is performed.

K. INSURANCE

(1)  ENGINEER'S INSURANCE

a.

b.

City of Fort Worth, Texas

Commercial General Liability — the ENGINEER  shall maintain
commercial general liability (CGL) and, if necessary, commercial
umbrella insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000.00 per each
occurrence with a $2,000,000.00 aggregate. If such Commercial General
Liability insurance contains a general aggregate limit, it shall apply
separately to this PROJECT or location.

i. The CITY shall be included as an insured under the CGL, using
ISO additional insured endorsement or a substitute providing
equivalent coverage, and under the commercial umbrella, if any.
This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to
any other insurance or self-insurance programs afforded to the
CITY. The Commercial General Liability insurance policy shall
have no exclusions by endorsements that would alter or nullify:
premises/operations, products/completed operations, contractual,
personal injury, or advertizing injury, which are normally contained

within the policy, unless the CITY approves such exclusions in
writing.

ii. ENGINEER waives all rights against the CITY and its agents,
officers, directors and employees for recovery of damages to the
extent these damages are covered by the commercial general
liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance maintained in
accordance with this agreement.

Business Auto — the ENGINEER shall maintain business auto liability
and, if necessary, commercial umbrella liability insurance with a limit of
not less than $1,000,000 each accident. Such insurance shall cover
liability arising out of “any auto”, including owned, hired, and non-owned
autos, when said vehicle is used in the course of the PROJECT. If the

engineer owns no vehicles, coverage for hired or non-owned is
acceptable.

Standard Agreement for Engineering Related Design Services

Revised Date: 9/24/2014
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C.

I. ENGINEER waives all rights against the CITY and its agents,
officers, directors and employees for recovery of damages to the
extent these damages are covered by the business auto liability or
commercial umbrella liability insurance obtained by ENGINEER

pursuant to this agreement or under any applicable auto physical
damage coverage.

Workers' Compensation -ENGINEER shall maintain  workers
compensation and employers liability insurance and, if necessary,
commercial umbrella liability insurance with a limit of not less than
$100,000.00 each accident for bodily injury by accident or $100,000.00
each employee for bodily injury by disease, with $500,000.00 policy limit.

i. ENGINEER waives all rights against the CITY and its agents,
officers, directors and employees for recovery of damages to the
extent these damages are covered by workers compensation and

employer’s liability or commercial umbrella insurance obtained by
ENGINEER pursuant to this agreement.

Professional Liability — the ENGINEER shall maintain professional
liability, a claims-made policy, with a minimum of $1,000,000.00 per
claim and aggregate. The policy shall contain a retroactive date prior to
the date of the contract or the first date of services to be performed,
whichever is earlier. Coverage shall be maintained for a period of 5 years
following the completion of the contract. An annual certificate of
insurance specifically referencing this project shall be submitted to the
CITY for each year following completion of the contract.

(2)  GENERAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

a.

b.

d.

City of Fort Worth, Texas

Certificates of insurance evidencing that the ENGINEER has obtained all
required insurance shall be delivered to the CITY prior to ENGINEER
proceeding with the PROJECT.

Applicable policies shall be endorsed to name the CITY an Additional
Insured thereon, as its interests may appear. The term CITY shall
include its employees, officers, officials, agents, and volunteers as
respects the contracted services.

Certificate(s) of insurance shall document that insurance coverage

specified in this agreement are provided under applicable policies
documented thereon.

Any failure on part of the CITY to request required insurance
documentation shall not constitute a waiver of the insurance

Standard Agreement for Engineering Related Design Services
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requirements.

A minimum of thirty (30) days notice of cancellation or material change in
coverage shall be provided to the CITY. A ten (10) days notice shall be
acceptable in the event of non-payment of premium. Notice shall be sent
to the respective Department Director (by name), City of Fort Worth,
1000 Throckmorton, Fort Worth, Texas 76102.

Insurers for all policies must be authorized to do business in the State of
Texas and have a minimum rating of A:V or greater, in the current A.M.
Best Key Rating Guide or have reasonably equivalent financial strength
and solvency to the satisfaction of Risk Management.

Any deductible or self insured retention in excess of $25,000.00 that
would change or alter the requirements herein is subject to approval by
the CITY in writing, if coverage is not provided on a first-dollar basis. The
CITY, at it sole discretion, may consent to alternative coverage
maintained through insurance pools or risk retention groups. Dedicated

financial resources or letters of credit may also be acceptable to the
CITY.

Applicable policies shall each be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation
in favor of the CITY as respects the PROJECT.

The CITY shall be entitled, upon its request and without incurring
expense, to review the ENGINEER's insurance policies including
endorsements thereto and, at the CITY's discretion; the ENGINEER may
be required to provide proof of insurance premium payments.

Lines of coverage, other than Professional Liability, underwritten on a
claims-made basis, shall contain a retroactive date coincident with or
prior to the date of the contractual agreement. The certificate of
insurance shall state both the retroactive date and that the coverage is
claims-made.

Coverages, whether written on an occurrence or claims-made basis,
shall be maintained without interruption nor restrictive modification or
changes from date of commencement of the PROJECT until final

payment and termination of any coverage required to be maintained after
final payments.

The CITY shall not be responsible for the direct payment of any
insurance premiums required by this agreement,

m. Sub consultants and subcontractors to/of the ENGINEER shall be

City of Fort Worth, Texas

Standard Agreement for Engineering Related Design Services
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required by the ENGINEER to maintain the same or reasonably
equivalent insurance coverage as required for the ENGINEER. When
sub  consultants/subcontractors maintain  insurance coverage,

ENGINEER shall provide CITY with documentation thereof on a
certificate of insurance.

Independent Consultant

The ENGINEER agrees to perform all services as an independent
consultant and not as a subcontractor, agent, or employee of the CITY.

Disclosure

The ENGINEER acknowledges to the CITY that it has made full disclosure
in writing of any existing conflicts of interest or potential conflicts of interest,
including personal financial interest, direct or indirect, in property abutting the
proposed PROJECT and business relationships with abutting property cities.
The ENGINEER further acknowledges that it will make disclosure in writing
of any conflicts of interest that develop subsequent to the signing of this
contract and prior to final payment under the contract.

Asbestos or Hazardous Substances

(1) If asbestos or hazardous substances in any form are encountered or
suspected, the ENGINEER will stop its own work in the affected portions
of the PROJECT to permit testing and evaluation.

(2) If asbestos or other hazardous substances are suspected, the CITY may
request the ENGINEER to assist in obtaining the services of a qualified
subcontractor to manage the remediation activities of the PROJECT.

Permitting Authorities - Design Changes

If permitting authorities require design changes so as to comply with
published design criteria and/or current engineering practice standards
which the ENGINEER should have been aware of at the time this
Agreement was executed, the ENGINEER shall revise plans and
specifications, as required, at its own cost and expense. However, if design
changes are required due to the changes in the permitting authorities'
published design criteria and/or practice standards criteria which are
published after the date of this Agreement which the ENGINEER could not
have been reasonably aware of, the ENGINEER shall notify the CITY of

such changes and an adjustment in compensation will be made through an
amendment to this AGREEMENT.

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Standard Agreement for Engineering Related Design Services
Revised Date: 9/24/2014
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P.

Schedule

ENGINEER shall manage the PROJECT in accordance with the schedule
developed per Attachment D to this AGREEMENT.

Article V

Obligations of the City

Amendments to Article V, if any, are included in Attachment C.

A.

E.

City-Furnished Data

ENGINEER may rely upon the accuracy, timeliness, and completeness of
the information provided by the CITY. ‘

Access to Facilities and Property

The CITY will make its facilities accessible to the ENGINEER as required for
the ENGINEER's performance of its services. The CITY will perform, at no
cost to the ENGINEER, such tests of equipment, machinery, pipelines, and
other components of the CITY's facilities as may be required in connection
with the ENGINEER's services. The CITY will be responsible for all acts of
the CITY's personnel.

Advertisements, Permits, and Access

Unless otherwise agreed to in the Scope of Services, the CITY will obtain,
arrange, and pay for all advertisements for bids; permits and licenses
required by local, state, or federal authorities; and land, easements, rights-

of-way, and access necessary for the ENGINEER's services or PROJECT
construction.

Timely Review

The CITY will examine the ENGINEER's studies, reports, sketches,
drawings, specifications, proposals, and other documents; obtain advice of
an attorney, insurance counselor, accountant, auditor, bond and financial
advisors, and other consultants as the CITY deems appropriate; and render
in writing decisions required by the CITY in a timely manner in accordance
with the project schedule prepared in accordance with Attachment D.

Prompt Notice

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Standard Agreement for Engineering Related Design Services
Revised Date: 9/24/2014
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(1

2

(3)

City of Fort Worth, Texas

The CITY will give prompt written notice to the ENGINEER whenever CITY
observes or becomes aware of any development that affects the scope or
timing of the ENGINEER's services or of any defect in the work of the
ENGINEER or construction contractors.

Asbestos or Hazardous Substances Release.

(1) CITY acknowledges ENGINEER will perform part of the work at CITY's
facilities that may contain hazardous materials, including asbestos
containing materials, or conditions, and that ENGINEER had no prior
role in the generation, treatment, storage, or disposition of such
materials. In consideration of the associated risks that may give rise to
claims by third parties or employees of City, City hereby releases

ENGINEER from any damage or liability related to the presence of
such materials.

(2) The release required above shall not apply in the event the discharge,
release or escape of hazardous substances, contaminants, or asbestos
is a result of ENGINEER’s negligence or if ENGINEER brings such
hazardous substance, contaminant or asbestos onto the project.

Contractor Indemnification and Claims

The CITY agrees to include in all construction contracts the provisions of
Article IV.E. regarding the ENGINEER's Personnel at Construction Site, and

provisions providing contractor indemnification of the CITY and the
ENGINEER for contractor's negligence.

Contractor Claims and Third-Party Beneficiaries

The CITY agrees to include the following clause in all contracts with
construction contractors and equipment or materials suppliers:

"Contractors, subcontractors and equipment and materials
suppliers on the PROJECT, or their sureties, shall maintain
no direct action against the ENGINEER, its officers,
employees, and subcontractors, for any claim arising out of,
in connection with, or resulting from the engineering
services performed. Only the CITY will be the beneficiary
of any undertaking by the ENGINEER."

This AGREEMENT gives no rights or benefits to anyone other than the CITY
and the ENGINEER and there are no third-party beneficiaries.

The CITY will include in each agreement it enters into with any other entity

Standard Agreement for Engineering Related Design Services
Revised Date; 9/24/2014
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(4)

(1)

2)

)

or person regarding the PROJECT a provision that such entity or person
shall have no third-party beneficiary rights under this Agreement.

Nothing contained in this section V.H. shall be construed as a waiver of any
right the CITY has to bring a claim against ENGINEER.

CITY's Insurance

The CITY may maintain property insurance on certain pre-existing structures
associated with the PROJECT.

The CITY will ensure that Builders Risk/Installation insurance is maintained
at the replacement cost value of the PROJECT. The CITY may provide

ENGINEER a copy of the policy or documentation of such on a certificate of
insurance.

The CITY will specify that the Builders Risk/Installation insurance shall be
comprehensive in coverage appropriate to the PROJECT risks.

Litigation Assistance

The Scope of Services does not include costs of the ENGINEER for required
or requested assistance to support, prepare, document, bring, defend, or
assist in litigation undertaken or defended by the CITY. In the event CITY
requests such services of the ENGINEER, this AGREEMENT shall be
amended or a separate agreement will be negotiated between the parties.

Changes

The CITY may make or approve changes within the general Scope of
Services in this AGREEMENT. If such changes affect the ENGINEER's cost
of or time required for performance of the services, an equitable adjustment

will be made through an amendment to this AGREEMENT with appropriate
CITY approval.

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Standard Agreement for Engineering Related Design Services
Revised Date: 9/24/2014
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Article VI

General Legal Provisions

Amendments to Article VI, if any, are included in Attachment C.

A.

(1)

@)

Authorization to Proceed

ENGINEER shall be authorized to proceed with this AGREEMENT upon
receipt of a written Notice to Proceed from the CITY.

Reuse of Project Documents

All designs, drawings, specifications, documents, and other work products of
the ENGINEER, whether in hard copy or in electronic form, are instruments
of service for this PROJECT, whether the PROJECT is completed or not.
Reuse, change, or alteration by the CITY or by others acting through or on
behalf of the CITY of any such instruments of service without the written
permission of the ENGINEER will be at the CITY's sole risk. The CITY shall
own the final designs, drawings, specifications and documents.

Force Majeure

The ENGINEER is not responsible for damages or delay in performance
caused by acts of God, strikes, lockouts, accidents, or other events beyond

the control of the ENGINEER that prevent ENGINEER’s performance of its
obligations hereunder.

Termination

This AGREEMENT may be terminated only by the City for convenience on
30 days' written notice. This AGREEMENT may be terminated by either the
CITY or the ENGINEER for cause if either party fails substantially to perform
through no fault of the other and does not commence correction of such

nonperformance with in 5 days of written notice and diligently complete the
correction thereafter.

If this AGREEMENT is terminated for the convenience of the City, the
ENGINEER will be paid for termination expenses as follows:

a.) Cost of reproduction of partial or complete studies, plans,
specifications or other forms of ENGINEER'S work product;

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Standard Agreement for Engineering Related Design Services
Revised Date: 9/24/2014
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b.) Out-of-pocket expenses for purchasing electronic data files and other
data storage supplies or services;

c.) The time requirements for the ENGINEER'S personnel to document
the work underway at the time of the CITY'S termination for
convenience so.that the work effort is suitable for long time storage.

(3) Prior to proceeding with termination services, the ENGINEER will
submit to the CITY an itemized statement of al| termination expenses. The

CITY'S approval will be obtained in writing prior to proceeding with
termination services.

Suspension, Delay, or Interruption to Work

The CITY may suspend, delay, or interrupt the services of the ENGINEER
for the convenience of the CITY. In the event of such suspension, delay, or
interruption, an equitable adjustment in the PROJECT's schedule,
commitment and cost of the ENGINEER's personnel and subcontractors,
and ENGINEER's compensation will be made. :

Indemnification

In accordance with Texas Local Government Code Section 271.904, the
ENGINEER shall indemnify, hold harmiess, and defend the CITY
against liability for any damage caused by or resulting from an act of
negligence, intentional tort, intellectual property infringement, or
failure to pay a subcontractor or supplier committed by the ENGINEER

or ENGINEER’s agent, consultant under contract, or another entity
over which the ENGINEER exercises control.

Assignment

Neither ‘party shall assign all or any part of this AGREEMENT without the
prior written consent of the other party.

Interpretation

Limitations on liability and indemnities in this AGREEMENT are business
understandings between the parties and shall apply to all the different
theories of recovery, including breach of contract or warranty, tort including
negligence, strict or statutory liability, or any other cause of action, except for
willful misconduct or gross negligence for limitations of liability and sole
negligence for indemnification. Parties mean the CITY and the ENGINEER,
and their officers, employees, agents, and subcontractors.

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Standard Agreement for Engineering Related Design Services
Revised Date: 9/24/2014
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I. Jurisdiction

The law of the State of Texas shall govemn the validity of this AGREEMENT,
its interpretation and performance, and any other claims related toit. The

venue for any litigation related to this AGREEMENT shall be Tarrant County,
Texas.

J. Severability and Survival

If any of the provisions contained in this AGREEMENT are held for any
reason to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity,
illegality, or unenforceability will not affect any other provision, and this
AGREEMENT shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable
provision had never been contained herein. Articles V.F., VI.B., VLD, VLF.,
VIL.H., and VL.I. shall survive termination of this AGREEMENT for any cause.

K. Observe and Comply

ENGINEER shall at all times observe and comply with all federal and State
laws and regulations and with all City ordinances and regulations which in
any way affect this AGREEMENT and the work hereunder, and shall
observe and comply with all orders, laws ordinances and regulations which
may exist or may be enacted later by governing bodies having jurisdiction or
authority for such enactment. No plea of misunderstanding or ignorance
thereof shall be considered. ENGINEER agrees to defend, indemnify and
hold harmless CITY and all of its officers, agents and employees from and
against all claims or liability arising out of the violation of any such order, law,
ordinance, or regulation, whether it be by itself or its employees.

Article VIl
Attachments, Schedules, and Signatures

This AGREEMENT, including its attachments and schedules, constitutes the entire
AGREEMENT, supersedes ali prior written or oral understandings, and may only be
changed by a written amendment executed by both parties. The following attachments -
and schedules are hereby made a part of this AGREEMENT:

Attachment A - Scope of Services

Attachment B — Compensation

Attachment C - Amendments to Standard Agreement for Engineering Services
Attachment D - Project Schedule

Attachment E - Location Map

City of Fort Worth, Texas

Standard Agreement for Engineering Related Design Services
Revised Date: 9/24/2014
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Executed and effective this the 2=#day of/ Lo | 2016.

BY: | BY:
CITY OF FORT WORTH ENGINEER
CP&Y, Inc.,

Ldtpe B CrvwiO

William E. Carroll, P. E.

{ Principal
Assistant City Manager
[y Date:__ /oo /Ze/¢
Date: H( 22 iy 7
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED:

By: % / LZ

Christopher Harder, P.E.

Acting Assistant Director, Water
Department

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND M&C No.: C-27985
LEGALITY

_M\ M&C Date: November 8. 2016
By:
Douglas W. Black L1295 % 206~ 11337

Senior Assistant City Attorney

City of Fort Worth, Texas

Standard Agreement for Engineering Related Design Services
Revised Date: 9/24/2014
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ATTACHMENT A
DESIGN SERVICES FOR
NORTHSIDE ii 30-INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170

CITY PROJECT NO.: 100281

ATTACHMENT A

Scope for Engineering Design Related Services for Water and/or Sanitary Sewer

Improvements

DESIGN SERVICES FOR
NORTHSIDE Il 30-INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170

CITY PROJECT NO.: 100261

The scope set forth herein defines the work o be performed by the ENGINEER in
completing the project. Both the CITY and ENGINEER have attempted to clearly define the
work to be performed and address the needs of the Project.

WORK TO BE PERFORMED

Task 1. Design Management

Task 2. Conceptual Design

Task 3. Preliminary Design

Task 4. Final Design

Task 5. Bid Phase Services

Task 6. Construction Phase Services

Task 7. ROW/Easement Services

Task 8. Survey and Subsurface Utility Engineering Services
Task 9. Plan Submittal Checklists

TASK 1. DESIGN MANAGEMENT.

ENGINEER shall ensure efficient and effective use of ENGINEER's and CITY'’s time and
resources.

ENGINEER shall manage change,
* communicate effectively,
= coordinate internally and externally as needed, and

» proactively address issues with the CITY’s Project Manager and others as
necessary to make progress on the work.

1.1.  Managing the Team
¢ Lead, manage and direct design team activities
° Ensure quality control is practiced in performance of the work
¢ Communicate internally among team members
e Task and allocate team resources
1.2. Communications and Reporting

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Attachment A

PMO Release Date; 07.23.2012
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ATTACHMENT A

DESIGN SERVIGES FOR

NORTHSIDE Il 30-INCH WATER LINS AT STATE HIGHWAY 170
CITY PROJECT NO.: 100261

¢ Attend a pre-design project kickoff/chartering meeting with CITY staff to confirm and
clarify scope, understand CITY objectives, and ensure economical and functional
designs that meet CITY requirements

¢ Prepare invoices and submit monthly in the format requested by the CITY.
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¢ Complete Monthly M/WBE Report Form and Final Summary Payment Report Form at
the end of the project
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¢ Personnel and Vehicle Identification: When conducting site visits to the project
location, the ENGINEER or any of its sub-consultants shall carry readily visible
information identifying the name of the company and the company representative.

ASSUMPTIONS

¢ 15 MWBE reports will be prepared

DELIVERABLES
A. Meeting summaries with action items

B. Monthly invoices

F. Monthly MMWBE Report Form and Final Summary Payment Report Form

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Attachment A

PMO Release Date: 08.1.2014
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ATTACHMENT A

DESIGN SERVICES FOR

NORTHSIDE il 30-INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170
CITY PROJECT NO.: 100251

G. Plan Submittal Checklists (See Task 9)

TASK 2. CONCEPTUAL DESIGN (30 PERCENT).

The Conceptual Design shall be submitted to CITY 120 days after kick-off meeting.
The purpose of the conceptual design is for the ENGINEER to

» Study the project,

ENGINEER will develop the conceptual design of the infrastructure as follows.
2.1.  Data Collection '

¢ In addition to data obtained from the CITY, ENGINEER will research proposed
improvements in conjunction with any other planned future improvements that
may influence the project.

¢ The ENGINEER will also identify and seek to obtain data for existing conditions
that may impact the project including but not limited to; utilities, i

and-rallreads);-City Master Plans, and property ownership as available from the
Tax Assessor's office. _

¢ The ENGINEER shall visit the project site and obtain the meter numbers and sizes
on all existing meters to be replaced on the project and shall identify existing
sample stations and fire line locations.

etechnical conarilant +a Alraws
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2.4.  The Conceptual Design Package shall include the following:

e Cover Sheet

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Attachment A

PMO Release Date: 08.1.2014
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ATTACHMENT A

DESIGN SERVICES FOR

NORTHSIDE Il 30-INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170
CITY PROJECT NO.: 100264

Proposed phasing of any water and sanitary sewer work that is included in this
project documented in both the project schedule and narrative form.,

Documentation of key design decisions.

Estimates of probable construction cost.

ASSUMPTIONS

L ]

&_Gesteshrloal bod for this proioct

1 PDF copy of the conceptual design package (30% design) will be
delivered. Repert-sha ized-and #h ear-plasti
Drawings will be 11x17

size fold outs bound in the report

DWF files created from design CAD drawings will be uploaded to the designated
project folder in Buzzsaw

ENGINEER shali prepare the meeting minutes of the Concept Review meeting
and revise the report, if needed.

ENGINEER shall not proceed with Preliminary Design activities without obtaining
written approval by the CITY of the Conceptual Design Package.

DELIVERABLES
A. Conceptual Design Package

TASK 3. PRELIMINARY DESIGN (60 PERCENT).

Preliminary plans and specifications shall be submitted to CITY 90 days after Conceptual
Design approval by City.

ENGINEER will develop the preliminary design of the infrastructure as follows.

3.1.  Development of Preliminary Design Drawings and Specifications shall include the
following:

Cover Sheet

A Project Control Sheet, showing all Control Points, used or set while gathering
data. Generally on a scale of not less than 1:400. The following information shall
be indicated for each Control Point: Identified (existing City Monument #8901, PK
Nail, 5/8” Iron Rod); X, Y and Z Coordinates, in an identified coordinate system,
and a referred bearing base. Z coordinate on City Datum only; descriptive location
(i.e. set in the centerline of the inlet in the South curb line of North Side Drive at the

East end of radius at the Southeast corner of North Side Drive and North Main
Street).

Overall project easement layout sheet(s) with property owner information.

Overall project water and/or sanitary-sewer layout sheets. The water layout sheet
shall identify the proposed water main improvement/ existing water mains in the

City of Fort Worth, Texas

Attachment A

PMO Release Date: 08.1.2014
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ATTACHMENT A

DESIGN SERVICES FOR

NORTHSIDE I 30-INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170
CITY PROJECT NO.: 100261

vicinity and all water appurtenances along with pressure plane boundaries, water

tanks, pump stations, valves, and fire hydrants. Fhe-sewerlayout-sheetshall

Sanim N ala OMIAr M) - ala

Overall water and/er-sanitary-sewer abandonment sheet.

Coordinates on all P.C.’s, P.T.’s, P.l.’s, manholes, valves, mainline fittings, etc.,
in the same coordinate system as the Control Points.

Bench marks per 1,000 ft. of plan/profile sheet — two or more.
Bearings given on all proposed centerlines, or baselines.
Station equations relating utilities to paving, when appropriate.

Plan and profile sheets which show the following: proposed water and/or sanitary
sewer plan/profile and recommended pipe size, fire hydrants, water service lines
and meter boxes, gate valves, isolation valves, manholes, existing meter
numbers and sizes that are to be replaced, existing sample locations, existing fire
line locations, existing utilities and utility easements, and all pertinent information
needed to construct the project. Legal description (Lot Nos., Block Nos., and

Addition Names) along with property ownership shall be provided on the plan
view.

The ENGINEER shall make provisions for reconnecting all identifiable water and/or
wastewater service lines which connect directly to any main being replaced,
including replacement of existing service lines within City right-of-way or utility
easement. When the existing alignment of a water and sanitary sewer main or
lateral is changed, provisions will be made in the final plans and/or specifications
by the ENGINEER to relocate all service lines which are connected to the existing
main and connect said service lines to the relocated main.

The following shall be applicable at all locations where it is necessary to relocate or
reroute the existing private sanitary sewer service line due to the abandonment or
realignment of the existing public sanitary sewer lateral or main: The CITY shall
furnish the ENGINEER with a sample format of how the sewer service line
reroute/relocation should be designed and submitted for construction. During
design survey, if a rod can be inserted through the cleanout to the bottom of the
service line, the ENGINEER will obtain the flow line elevation and design the
service line prior to advertising the project for bid. If the service flow line
information cannot be obtained during design survey, the ENGINEER shall delay
the design of the sewer service line until after a Quality Level A Subsurface Utility
Engineering (SUE investigation has been performed). The Level A SUE will be
performed; (1) by-the- ENGINEER-ifincluded-in-the fee propesal:-or{2) by the CITY
prior to bidding if the CITY determines that it is needed for satisfactory completion
of the design; or (2) by the Contractor after the project has been bid, by means of a
bid item to that effect. In all options, the ENGINEER shall propose appropriate de-
hole locations in the project and collect flow line elevation and other applicable
information of the sewer service line. The ENGINEER shall use this information to
provide the design for the sanitary sewer service line to be rerouted or relocated.

City of Fort Worth, Texas
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ATTACHMENT A

DESIGN SERVICES FOR

NORTHSIDE Il 30-INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170
CITY PROJECT NO.: 100261

¢ Provide map showing location of new manhole construction at the end of existing
sewer segments, 90 degree bends, or tee connections. Site survey or specific
design plans for manhole construction is not included as part of the scope. The
contract documents shall specify that it is the Contractor's responsibility to
coordinate utility location, etc. manhole construction.

* The ENGINEER will prepare standard and special detail sheets for water line
installation and sewer rehabilitation or replacement that are not already included in
the D-section of the CITY’s specifications. These may include connection details
between various parts of the project, tunneling details, boring and jacking details,
waterline relocations, details unique to the construction of the project, trenchless
details, and special service lateral reconnections. .

3.4.  Uiility Clearance

» The ENGINEER will consult with the CITY’s Transportation and Public Works
Department, Water Department, and other CITY departments, public utilities,
private utilities, private utilities and government agencies to determine the
approximate location of above and underground utilities, and other facilities
(current and future) that have an impact or influence on the project. ENGINEER
will design CITY facilities to avoid or minimize conflicts with existing utilities, and
where known and possible consider potential future utilities in designs.

¢ The ENGINEER shall upload individual DWF files for each plan sheet of the
approved preliminary plan set to the designated project folder in Buzzsaw for
forwarding to all utility companies which have facilities within the limits of the

project. The DWF files should be created directly from the CAD files as opposed
to PDF files.

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Attachment A

PMO Release Date: 08.1.2014
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ATTACHMENT A
DESIGN SERVICES FOR
NORTHSIDE If 30-INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170

CITY PROJECT NO.: 100261

ASSUMPTIONS

* __0__ public meeting(s) will be conducted or attended during the preliminary
design phase.

¢ __0__ borings at an average bore depth of feet each will be provided.

» Traffic Control “Typicals” will be utilized to the extent possible. It is assumed an
additional __0____ project specific traffic control sheets will be developed for

P 1 cat nf alanfranina sizeplans will ha Aalivarad far the Conetrintahilityy
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e _ 1 set of electronic plans will be delivered for the Preliminary Design (60%
design).

¢ _1 electronic__ set of specifications will be delivered for the Preliminary Design
(60% design).

¢ DWF files created from design CAD drawings will be uploaded to the designated
project folder in Buzzsaw.

¢ The CITY's front end and technical specifications will be used. The ENGINEER
shall supplement the technical specifications if needed.

e 1 set of electronic drawings will be delivered for Utility Clearance.

¢ ENGINEER shall not proceed with Final Design activities without written approval
by the CITY of the Preliminary Design plans.

DELIVERABLES

A. Preliminary Design drawings and specifications
B. Utility Clearance drawings
G—Fraffic-Centrol-Plan

E. Estimates of probable construction cost

F. Data Base listing names and addresses of residents and businesses affected by
the project.

TASK 4. FINAL DESIGN (90 PERCENT) AND FINAL CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS
(100 PERCENT).

Upon approval of the Preliminary plans, ENGINEER will prepare construction plans as
follows:

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Attachment A

PMO Release Date: 08.1.2014
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ATTACHMENT A

DESIGN SERVICES FOR

NORTHSIDE It 30-INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170
CITY PROJECT NO.: 100251

 For projects that disturb an area greater than one (1) acre, the Contractor will be
responsible for preparing and submitting the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan

(SWPPP) with appropriate regulatory agencies. Fhe-Engireerwill prepare-the iSWM
S onstructia o e te the curror ~

e Draft Final plans (90%) and specifications shall be submitted to CITY 90 days after City
approval of Preliminary Design drawings.

¢ Foliowing a 90% construction plan review meeting with the CITY, the ENGINEER shall
submit Construction Documents (100%) to the CITY per the approved Project Schedule.

Each plan sheet shall be stamped, dated, and signed by the ENGINEER registered in
State of Texas.

e The ENGINEER shall submit a final design estimate of probable construction cost with

beth-the-80%-and 100% design packages. This estimate shall use ONLY standard CITY
bid items.

ASSUMPTIONS

. 0 setsof _Full _size drawings and __ 1 sets of __Half __ size drawings and
specifications will be delivered for the 90% Design package.

= 1 - electronic set of Drawings and Specifications

e A DWF file for the 90% Design will be created from design CAD drawings and will be
uploaded to the project folder in Buzzsaw.

o 0__sets of _Full size drawings and _1__ sets of Half size drawings and __1
specifications will be delivered for the 100% Design package.

e 11— Mylar Cover Sheet
+ 1 - electronic set of Drawings and Specifications

¢ A DWF file for the 100% Design will be created from design CAD drawings and will be
uploaded to the project folder in Buzzsaw.

¢ Engineer to provide estimated final sheet list (cover/index, general notes, control point

location, easementlayout-SUE plan-sheets; no. of plan/profiles, special detail sheets,

etc.)

DELIVERABLES

A—80%constructionplans-and-specifieations- 1 electronic set of plans and specs
B—400%censtruction-plans-and-specifieations: 1 electronic set of plans and specs

C. Detailed estimates of probable construction costs including summaries of bid items and
quantities using the CITY’s standard bid items and format.

City of Fort Worth, Texas -
Attachment A

PMO Release Date; 08.1.2014
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ATTACHMENT A

DESIGN SERVICES FOR

NORTHSIDE If 30-INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170
CITY PROJECT NO.: 100251

TASK 5. BID PHASE SERVICES.

ENGINEER will support the bid phase of the project as foliows.
5.1.  Bid Support

The ENGINEER shall upload all plans and contract documents onto Buzzsaw for
access to potential bidders.

e Contract documents shall be uploaded in an .xis file.

¢ Unit Price Proposal documents are to be created utilizing CFW Bidtools only
and combined in a specified spreadsheet workbook, Bid Proposal Worksheet
Template, and will be populated and configured so that all pages are
complete and the Summary Worksheet(s) in the workbook detail and

automatically summarize the totals from the inserted Unit Price Proposal
document worksheets.

¢ Plan Sets are to be uploaded to Buzzsaw in two formats, .pdf and .dwf files.
The .pdf will consist of one file of the entire plan set. The .dwf will consist of

individual files, one for each plan sheet, and will be numbered and named in
a manner similar to that of the plan set index.

The ENGINEER shall sell contract documents and maintain a plan holders list on

Buzzsaw from documents sold and from Contractor's uploaded Plan Holder
Registrations in Buzzsaw.

The ENGINEER will develop and implement procedures for receiving and
answering bidders’ questions and requests for additional information. The
procedures shall include a log of all significant bidders questions and requests
and the response thereto. The log shall be housed and maintained in the
project’'s Buzzsaw folder titled Request for Information. The ENGINEER will
provide technical interpretation of the contract bid documents and will prepare
proposed responses to all bidders’ questions and requests, in the form of

addenda. The ENGINEER shall upload all approved addenda onto Buzzsaw and
mail addenda to all plan holders.

Attend the prebid conference in support of the CITY.

Assist the CITY in determining the qualifications and acceptability of prospective
contractors, subcontractors, and suppliers.

When substitution prior to award of contracts is allowed in the contract
documents, the ENGINEER will advise the CITY as to the acceptability of
alternate materials and equipment proposed by bidders.

Attend the bid opening in support of the CITY.

Tabulate and review all bids received for the construction project, assist the CITY
in evaluating bids, and recommend award of the contract. A copy of the Bid
Tabulation and the CFW Data Spreadsheet created utilizing CFW Bidtools only
are to be uploaded into the project’s Bid Results folder on Buzzsaw.

City of Fort Worth, Texas
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ATTAGHMENT A

DESIGN SERVICES FOR

MORTHSIDE Il 30-iINCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170
CITY PROJECT NO.: 100261

Incorporate all addenda into the contract documents and issue conformed sets.

5.2 Final Design Drawings

1)

2)

Final Design Drawings shall be submitted in both Adobe Acrobat PDF format
(version 6.0 or higher) format and DWF format. There shall be one (1) PDF file
and one (1) DWF file for the TPW plan set and a separate PDF and DWF file for
the Water plan set. Each PDF and DWF file shall be created from the original
CAD drawing files and shall contain all associated sheets of the particular plan
set. Singular PDF and DWF files for each sheet of a plan set will not be
accepted. Drawings shall be submitted to CITY in electronic format only, no

hard or paper copies. PDF and DWF files shall conform to naming conventions
as follows:

l. TPW file name example — “W-1956_org47.pdf* where “W-1956" is the
assigned file number obtained from the CITY, “_org™ designating the file is
of an original plan set, “47” shall be the total number of sheets in this file.

Example: W-0053_org3.pdf and K-0320_org5.pdf

Il. Water and Sewer file name example — “X-35667_org36.pdf” where “X-
35667” is the assigned file number obtained from the CITY, “ _org”

designating the file is of an original plan set, “36 shall be the total number
of sheets in this file.

Example: X-12755_org18.pdf

Both PDF and DWF files shall be uploaded to the project’s Final Drawing folder in
Buzzsaw.

In addition to the PDF and DWF files, the ENGINEER shall submit each plan sheet
as an individual DWG file with all reference files integrated into the sheet. If the
plans were prepared in DGN format, they shall be converted to DWG prior to
uploading. Plans shall be submitted to CITY in electronic format only, no hard or

paper copies. The naming convention to be used for the DWG files shall be as
follows:

. TPW files shall use the W number as for PDF and DWF files, but shall
include the sheet number in the name — “W-1956_SHTO1 .dwg®, “W-
1956_SHT02.dwg”, etc.

1. Water and Sewer file names shall use the X number as for PDF and
DWF files, but shall include the sheet number in the name — “X-
121585_SHT01.dwg", “X-12755_SHT02.dwg”, etc.

City of Fort Worth, Texas
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ATTACHMENT A

DESIGN SERVICES FOR

NORTHSIDE {f 30-INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170
CITY PROJECT NO.: 100251

For information on the proper manner to submit files and to obtain a file number for
the project, contact the Depariment of Transportation and Public Works Vault at
telephone number (817) 392-8426. File numbers will not be issued to a project
unless the appropriate project numbers and fund codes have been assigned and
are in the Department of Transportation and Public Works database.

ASSUMPTIONS

¢ The project will be bid only once and awarded to one contractor.

) 5 sets of construction documents will be sold to and made available on
Buzzsaw for plan holders and/or given to plan viewing rooms.

) 8 setsof Full sizeand__ 0 sets of _Half _size drawings plans and

_8__ specifications (conformed, if applicable) will be delivered to the CITY.
» PDF, DWF and DWG files will be uploaded to Buzzsaw.
DELIVERABLES
A. Addenda
B. Bid tabulations
C. CFW Data Spreadsheet
D. Recommendation of award
E

. Construction documents (conformed, if applicable) — electronically

TASK 6. CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES.

ENGINEER will support the construction phase of the project as follows.

6.1

Construction Support

The ENGINEER shall attend the preconstruction conference.

L]

idents-The CITY.shall seloct itable tooat] | il the invitation lett
to-the-affected-customers- Engineer shall provide up to 40 hours of submittal
review.

The ENGINEER shall visit the project site at requested intervals as construction
proceeds to observe and report on progress.

As requested by the CITY, the ENGINEER shall provide necessary interpretations
and clarifications of contract documents, review change orders, and make
recommendations as to the acceptability of the work.

The ENGINEER shall attend the “Final” project walk through and assist with preparation of
final punch list

6.2

Record Drawings

City of Fort Worth, Texas

Attachment

A

PMO Release Date: 08.1.2014
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ATTACHMENT A

DESIGN SERVICES FOR

NORTHSIDE Il 30-NCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170
CITY PROJECT NO.: 100261

2)

The ENGINEER shall prepare Record Drawings from information provided by
the CITY depicting any changes made to the Final Drawings during construction.
The following information shall be provided by the CITY:

o As-Built Survey

o Red-Line Markups from Contractor

o Red-Line Markups from City Inspector
o Copies of Approved Change Orders
o Approved Substitutions

The ENGINEER shall modify the Final Drawings electronically and shall place a
stamp on the plans indicating that they represent Record Drawings of the project
as constructed. The stamp shall be signed and dated by the ENGINEER and
shall be placed on each plan sheet, whether there are any revisions on the sheet
or not. Each sheet shall clearly indicate all changes which apply to that sheet by
clouding and numbering, or other suitable means.

The following disclaimer shall be included with the Record Drawing stamp:

o These Record Drawings were prepared using information provided by
others and represent the as constructed conditions to the extent that
documented changes were provided for recording. The ENGINEER
assumes no liability for undocumented changes and certifies only that the
documented changes are accurately depicted on these drawings.

The ENGINEER shall submit an electronic set of sealed Final Drawings,
modified and stamped as Record Drawings, on mylar for record storage. The
ENGINEER may keep copies of the information provided by the CITY for their
files, but all original red-lined drawings shall be returned to the CITY with the
mylars. )

Record Drawings shall also be submitted electronically in both Adobe Acrobat
PDF format (version 6.0 or higher) format and DWF format. There shall be one
(1) PDF file and one (1) DWF file for the TPW plan set and a separate PDF and
DWF file for the Water plan set. Each PDF and DWF file shall contain all
associated sheets of the particular plan set. Sinqular PDF and DWF files for
each sheet of a plan set will not be accepted. PDF and DWF files shall
conform o naming conventions as follows:

. TPW file name example — “W-1956_rec47.pdf’ where “W-1956” is the
assigned file number obtained from the CITY, *_rec” designating the file is

of a record drawing plan set, “47” shall be the total number of sheets in this
file.

Example: W-0053_rec3.pdf and K-0320_org5.pdf

City of Fort Worth, Texas

Attachment A

PMO Release Date: 08.1.2014
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ATTACHMENT A

DESIGN SERVICES FOR

NORTHSIDE II 30-INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170
CITY PROJECT NO.: 100261

Il. Water and Sewer file name example — “X-35667_rec36.pdf” where “X-
35667” is the assigned file number obtained from the CITY, “_rec”

designating the file is of a record drawing plan set, “36” shall be the total
number of sheets in this file.

Example: X-12755_rec18.pdf

Both PDF and DWF files shall be uploaded to the project’s Record Drawings folder
in Buzzsaw.

ASSUMPTIONS

e __10___ RFI's are assumed.

e ___5__ Change Orders are assumed
ne-sepy-of-fullsize(22"%34™) mylars will be-delivered-fo-the CITY.

DELIVERABLES
A. Publ . hibi
B. Response to Contractor's Request for Information
C. Review of Change Orders
D. Review of shop drawings
E. Final Punch List items
F. Reecord-Drawings-on-Mylar
TASK 7. ROW/EASEMENT SERVICES.

ENGINEER will support and perform activities related to ROW and land as outlined below,
per scoping direction and guidance from the CITY’s Project Manager.

7.1.  Right-of-Way Research

¢ The ENGINEER shall determine rights-of-way, easements needs for construction of the
project. Required temporary and permanent easements will be identified based on available
information and recommendations will be made for approval by the CITY.

7.2.  Right-of-Way/Easement Preparation and Submittal.

¢ The ENGINEER shall prepare documents to be used to obtain right-of-way and
permanent and/or temporary easements required to construct the improvements.

¢ The ENGINEER shall submit the right-of-way and/or easement documents to CITY PM
for real property acquisition

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Attachment A

PMO Release Date: 08.1.2014
Page 13 of 17




ATTACHMENT A
DESIGN SERVICES FOR
NORTHSIDE il 30-INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170

CITY PROJECT NO.: 100267

* The documentation shall be provided in conformance with the checklists and templates
available on the CITY’s Buzzsaw site.

ASSUMPTIONS

e 19 Easements or right-of-way documents will be necessary.

¢ -0- Temporary right-of-entry documents will be necessary.

¢ Right-of-Way research and mapping includes review of property/right-of-way records
based on current internet based Tarrant Appraisal District (TAD) information available at the
start of the project and available on-ground property information (i.e. iron rods, fences,
stakes, etc.). It does not include effort for chain of title research, parent track research,
additional research for easements not included in the TAD, right-of-way takings, easement
vacations and abandonments, right-of-way vacations, and street closures.

DELIVERABLES

A. Easement exhibits and meets and bounds provided on CITY forms.
B. Temporary Right of Entry Letters

TASK 8. SURVEY AND SUBSURFACE UTILITY ENGINEERING SERVICES BY
OTHERS.

ENGINEER will provide survey support as follows.
8.1.  Design Survey

¢ ENGINEER will perform field surveys to collect horizontal and vertical elevations and
other information needed by ENGINEER in design and preparation of plans for the project.
Information gathered during the survey shall include topographic data, elevations of all
sanitary and adjacent storm sewers, rim/invert elevations, location of buried utilities,
structures, trees (measure caliper, identify overall canopy, and have qualified arborist
identify species of trees), and other features relevant to the final plan sheets. Existing
drainage at intersections will be verified by field surveys. Spot elevations will be shown on
intersection layouts with cross slope to fit intersecting grade lines.

¢ The minimum survey information to be provided on the plans shall include the following:

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Attachment A

PMO Release Date: 08.1.2014
Page 14 of 17




ATTACHMENT A

DESIGN SERVICES FOR

NORTHSIDE I1 30-INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170
CITY PROJECT NO.: 100261

— A Project Control Sheet, showing ALL Control Points, used or set while gathering data.
Generally on a scale of not less than 1:400:

— The following information about each Control Point;

a. ldentified (Existing. CITY Monument #8901, PK Nail, 5/8” Iron Rod)

b. X, Y and Z Coordinates, in an identified coordinate system, and a referred bearing
base. Z coordinate on CITY Datum only.

c. Descriptive Location (Ex. Set in the centerline of the inlet in the South curb line of

North Side Drive at the East end of radius at the Southeast cormner of North Side Drive and
North Main Street).

— Coordinates on all P.C.’s, P.T.’s, P.l.’s, Manholes, Valves, etc., in the same coordinate
system, as the Control.

~ No less than two horizontal bench marks, per line or location.

— Bearings given on all proposed centerlines, or baselines.

— Station equations relating utilities to paving, when appropriate.

ASSUMPTIONS

¢ Topographic survey at intersection will include no more than 100 ft. in each direction.

DELIVERABLES

A. Copieé of field survey data and notes signed and sealed by a licensed surveyor.

B. Drawing of the project layout with dimensions and coordinate list.

TASK 9. PLAN SUBMITTAL CHECKLISTS

Engineer shall complete and submit Plan Submittal Checklists in accordance with the
following table:

PLAN SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST REQUIREMENTS

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Attachment A

PMO Release Date: 08.1.2014
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ATTACHMENT A
DESIGN SERVICES FOR
NORTHSIDE Il 30-INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170

CITY PROJECT NO.: 100261

Fraffis Fraffic Traffic
Traffic Street Water Traffic GOF}SFGJ- Conrtrol | Control
4 ; ;
Attachment ‘A" | Sigrat | SR | Stemm | Ughis | /Sewer ame 30% §9% 99%
: Water Water | {Submit Submit N
Type {SubmitAl . pha E(s’ 'g'l“e‘:'* ; Igl
’ 30% 60%; : E Required for all work in City
ROW
Street X X X X X+ x X < «
Storm-Water X X X X X
Water/SewerF X X X X

*If included in street project

ASSUMPTIONS

DELIVERABLES

A.

ADDITIONAL SERVICES NOT INCLUDED IN THE EXISTING SCOPE OF SERVICES

Additional Services not included in_the existing Scope of Services — CITY and

ENGINEER agree that the following services are beyond the Scope of Services described in
the tasks above. However, ENGINEER can provide these services, if needed, upon the
CITY’s written request. Any additional amounts paid to the ENGINEER as a result of any
material change to the Scope of the Project shall be agreed upon in writing by both parties
before the services are performed. These additional services include the following:

) Negotiation of easements or property acquisition including temporary right-of-
entries.

o Services related to development of the CITY’s project financing and/or budget.

° Services related to disputes over pre-qualification, bid protests, bid rejection and

re-bidding of the contract for construction.

. Construction management and inspection services

City of Fort Worth, Texas

Attachment A

PMO Release Date: 08.1.2014
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ATTACHMENT A

DESIGN SERVICES FOR

NORTHSIDE li 30-INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170
CITY PROJECT NO.: 100251

R —

) Design phase public meetings

. Performance of materials testing or specialty testing services.

® “Services necessary due to the default of the Contractor.

.G 4 Services related to damages caused by fire, flood, earthquake or other acts of
od.

. Services related to warranty claims, enforcement and inspection after final

completion.

® Services related to submitting for permits (i.e.,TXDOT, railroad, etc...)

. Services related to Subsurface Utility Engineering Levels A, B, C or D

) Services related to Survey Construction Staking

. Services related to acquiring real property including but not limited to easements,

right-of-way, and/or temporary right-of-entries.

. Services to support, prepare, document, bring, defend, or assist in litigation
undertaken or defended by the CITY.

drawing-raviewas _carmnlac ansd othersubmittale cirhmittas by Hha
ATCUNTTT lu l\l'lvl', Uulllrllvv CATTN OIS T S RTTITOLCINT AN TTTTICOCY v] s

coniractor:

. Performance of miscellaneous and supplemental services related to the project as
requested by the CITY.

° Design review meetings

e Monthly progress meetings

® Water Department Progress reports

° Monthly Project “Schedule” updates

. Traffic Control Plan

® Constructability review

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Attachment A

PMO Release Date: 08.1.2014
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ATTACHMENT B
COMPENSATION

Design Services for
<Northside I 30-inch Water Line at State Highway 170>
City Project No. _100261
Lump Sum Project

. Compensation

A

The ENGINEER shall be compensated a total lump sum fee of $456,340 as
summarized in Exhibit B-1 ~ Engineer invoice, Exhibit B-2 level of effort and
Exhibit B-3 — Construction cost estimate. The total lump sum fee shall be
considered full compensation for the services described in Attachment A,

including all labor materials, supplies, and equipment necessary to deliver the
services.

The ENGINEER shall be paid monthly payments as described in Section |} -
Method of Payment.

Method of Payment

Partial payment shall be made to the ENGINEER monthly upon City’s approval of
an invoice prepared and submitted by the ENGINEER in the format and including
content as presented in Exhibit B-1, Progress Reports as required in item Ill. of
this Attachment B, and Schedule as required in Attachment D to this Agreement.

The estimated current physical percent complete as required on the invoice shall
be calculated from the progress schedule as required in Attachment D to this
Standard Agreement and according to the current version of the City of Fort
Worth's Schedule Guidance Document.

The cumulative sum of such monthly partial fee payments shall not exceed the
total current project budget including all approved Amendments.

Each invoice shall be verified as to its accuracy and compliance with the terms of
this Agreement by an officer of the ENGINEER.

. Progress Reports

A,

The ENGINEER shall prepare and submit to the designated representative of the
Water Department, monthly progress reports and schedules in the format
required by the City.

City of Fort Worth, Texas

Attachment B

PMO Official Release Date: 5:19,2010
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ATTACHMENT B
COMPENSATION

V. Summary of Total Project Fees

" Firm | Primary Responsibility | FeeAmount | %

' Prime Consultant

CP&Y,Inc. | Design ] 9346340 76%

- Proposed M/WBE Sub-Consultants

, Criado & Associates Surveying $110,000 | 24%

" Non-M/WBE Consultants

% " TOTAL | $__456,340___| 100%
Project Number & Name Total Fee M/WBE Fee M/WBE %

$ 456,340 . $ .1‘1'0',000 24 %

City MM\WBE Goal=__16_%

City of Fort Worth, Texas

Attachment B

PMO Official Release Date: 5,19.2010
Page20of§

Consultant Committed Goal = 24 %
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EXHIBIT “B-1”
ENGINEER INVOICE
(Supplement to Attachment B)

Insert required invoice format following this page, including negotiated total budget and
allocations of budgets across work types and work phases.

City of Fort Worth, Texas

Aftachment B

PMO Official Release Date: 5,19.2010
Page 3 of 5
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ATTACHMENT B

Previously Quanifles

Professional Services —um<=._0=n maa:&mn Project Manager: Roben Sauceda, PE

Project: Northside Il — 30 inch Water Line at State Highwi

City Project #: CPN 100261

Work Type Desc:  ENENIGCENEK Gonsultant Instructions:

FIAIG:

City Sec Number: Fillin green cells Including Percent C: and

Purchase Order: Witen your Invoice Is complete, save and close, start Buzzsaw and Add your invoice to the

Consultant folder within Project's folder.

Company Name: cpyi,inc

Consultant's PM:  kevin R Glovier, PE email: kglovier@cpyi,com
Vendor Invoice #: Office Address: 115 Wesl 7ih Street: Sulte 1500 - Forl Wasth TX 76102
Payment Request #: Telephone: 817,354,0189
From Date: Fax: 817.354.4935
To Date:
Remit 4820 Regal Row - Dallas TX 76235
Invoice Date: Address:
Pay ltems Agreement
Agreement Amendment Amendment] Amountto | Completed Percent  ($) Invoiced| Current Remaining
Description Amount Number Amount Date Amount Invoice Balance
:|32 - Design . 2&298_ : $456.340,00) $456.340.00)
i ! _
if.
i
i -
.
Totals This Unit: 56,340,00 $456,340.00 $456,340.00

Overall Percentage Complete:




Clty of Fort Worth, Texas

Attachment B

PMO Official Release Date: 5.19.2010
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EXHIBIT “B-2”
ENGINEER LEVEL OF EFFORT
(Supplement to Attachment B)

Insert level of effort following this page.
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Level of Effort Spreadsheet
TASK/HOUR BREAKDOWN
Design Services for
NORTHSIDE Il - 30 INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170
City Project No. 100261

Task No. Task Description

Labor (hours) Expense

Total Labor

Project
Director

Project Project EIT Travel | Reproduction

Manager | Engineer CADD | Administrative Cost Subconsultant

1.0 |Project Management

For R ] bR

BRI b2 I 24 |2ETi0 2 B B 211720 | B ForeS O [FRasene s 0

1. _Sm:mn_an the ._.mms

| | Team A

D>\DO

30% Deslign

60% Design

100% Design

Communieations and Reportiny
Pre-Design Coordination Meeling with City
and Subconlraclors

Monthly ProJect Update Meelings {4
meelings)

Water Department Progress Reporls (16

1.2.2.]_reports)

Monthly Project "schadule updales (15

1.2.2.3 repoiis)

1.2.3 | Design Submiital Review Meetings

30% Deslgn

60% Deslgn

100% Deslgn

Prepare Baseline Schedule
Prepare Monlhly Progress Reports with
Schedule

Prepare Monlthly MBE/SBE Reporls

Involeln
o

o
=
%

I Deslgn (30-Percent)

R T AR i A Sl SN r I ST | B

Dala Colleclion

2.2 Not Used

Clty of Fort Worlh, Texas
Altachment B - Level of Effort Supplement
PMO Official Release Date: 8.09.2012

0 0

O
0

RGNS (60
BRE$IH20
[ (700

0| EEFFRI96 PrerewA|ooneans|
24 24 24

SIEESraey

P T T ) S

MWMMEIMS &
P SRI0IESE T AISES0
7330 %M%Mnﬁg

el
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Level of Effort Spreadsheet
TASK/IHOUR BREAKDOWN

Design Services for

NORTHSIDE Il - 30 INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170

City Project No. 100261

Clty of Fort Worth, Texas

Altachment B - Level of Effort Supplement
PMO Official Release Date: 8.09.2012

Labor (hours) Total Labor Expense Total Expense

Task No. Task Description hﬂﬁ” ,ﬂu_mmn“_. mﬂ_,o__..._m mn“_. EIT CADD | Administrative Cost Subconsultant Travel Reproduction Cost Task Sub Total

2.3 Subsurface Utility Engineering 0 0 EESETHS0 ﬂﬁ%«a L0

2.4 Design Drawings

2,41 _ |Cover Sheet 0 0

2.4.2 |General Notes (2 Sheels) 0 0 0

2.4.3 _[NolUsed ] 0 0 0

2.44_|Evoslon Control (20 Sheels) I 0 0 0

2.4.5  |Plan and Profile Sheets (44 Sheels) D) 28 24 220 Ha&ﬁco

2.4.6  |Boring Plan Sheels (3 Sheels) 12 8 30 ERRI$61660

24.7 oring Detalls {2 Sheets) 12| 8 30| !«Qm@b

2.4.8 |Delail Sheets (5 Sheels) 4 0| 28|

2.4.9  [Drainage Crossings Delalls (3 Sheets) 4, 6 30|

2.4.10 JMisc Sheels (6 Sheels) 4 4 24

2.5 Project Decision Log [1] 0| [1]

2.6 Construction Eslimate 10 [1]
e | A L S N AT e LR [ R L AR | ARG | VRN TARAR I | 005
3.0 Prellminary Deslgn {60 Percent) 74| BR300 A ea$0

3.1 Preliminary Deslgn Drawings

3.1.1__|Cover Sheet 4

3.1,2 |General Notes (2 Sheels) 8,

3.1.3 _ [NotUsed 0 0

3.1.4 _ |Eroslon Control {20 Sheets) 0 0

3.1.6 [Plan and Profile Sheels (44 Sheats) 8 220

3.1.6 |Boring Plan Sheets (3 Sheels) - 7 10 10, 32

3.1.7__|Boring Detalls (2 Sheels | 10 [] 32

3.1.8 |[Detall Sheets (5 Sheets}) 4 6 32|

3.1.9__|Dralnage Crossings Details (3 Sheets) 0 6/ 26

3.1.10_|Misc Sheels (6 Shaels) (. F - 4 8 6 34

3.2 Geotechnical Invesligalion 0 0

3.3 Construclablllly Review TR | RPN O 0

20f6




Level of Effort Spreadsheet
TASK/HOUR BREAKDOWN

Design Services for

NORTHSIDE Ii ~ 30 INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170

City Project No. 100261

Labor (hours)

Total Labor

Project
Director

Task No., Task Description

3.4 Public Meeting

3.5 Ultlity Clearance

3.6 Traffic Contre] Plan

3.7 |Project Decision Log

3.8 Construction Estimale

Hrencs s | oy O T S RO ST Y | SR SO |
4.0 Final Deslgn
Final Draft (90%) Constructlon Plans and
A Specificatlons

Cover Sheet

G | Notes (2 Sheets)

Not Used

Eraslon Control (20 Sheets)

Plan and Profile Sheels (44 Sheels)
Borlng Plan Sheets (3 Sheets)

Boring Detalls (2 Sheels
Delall Sheels (5 Shests)

4 Drainage Crossings Detalls (3 Sheels)
4 Misc Sheets (5 Sheets)

4 Specifications

4.2 Flnal (100%) Plans and Specifications
4 Cover Sheet

422 |G | Notes (2 Sheels)

4.2.3 [Not Used
4

4

4

4

4

(2] X1

A

CI T RN Y A PN

(=]

ey

.24 __|Erosion Contro] (20 Sheels)

2.6 [Plan and Profile Sheets (44 Sheets)
.2.6 __|Boring Plan Sheels (3 Sheets)

.2.7__ |Boring Detalls (2 Shaets)

.2.8 _[Delall Sheels (6 Sheets)

Clly of Fort Worth, Texas
Attachment B - Level of Effort Supplement
PMO Officlal Release Date: 8.09.2012

Project
Manager

Project
Engineer Er

Cost

CADD | Adminlstrative

Expense

Subconsultant

Travel

Reproduction Task Sub Total

30

B

a0

EEEERR$31670

-

by

Py
NIWIWINIO O &

o] el = S -1 K= E S Y

(=1{=1i=1[=][=-1{=]

$17A75

u% EEEL TG

,w;Yl SRERER$1i315)
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Level of Effort Spreadsheet
TASKIHOUR BREAKDOWN
Design Services for

NORTHSIDE Hll - 30 INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170

City Project No. 100261

Task No. Task Description

Labor (hours)

Expense

Total Expense

Total Labor

Dralnage Crossings Detalls (3 w.smmE

: .10 |Misc Sheels (5 Sheets)

.11_|Spscifications

Project Declslon Logs (80% and 100%)

44 Consiruction Estimales (90% and 100%
5.0 Bld Phase

5.1 Bid Support

Sell Conlract Documents and Matntaln
1. Plan Holders List

Issue Addenda

KE Altend Pre-bid Conference

Altend Bid Opening

Tabulate Bids and Recommend Award

Issue 002233 oos_qmo_ Uon::.m:_m

Oozw,qznw_oz Phase wm_.sgm

6.1 Conslruction Support

6.1.1 |_Altend truction Conference
6.1.2 | Allend Public Meeting
6.1.3 | Project Silte Visits
6.1.4 | Submilial Review

Request for Informatlon/Change Order
6.1.5 | Review
6.1.6 | Final Walk Through and Punch List

mmooa Unmi_:nm

7.0 xos\\mnmm_.:m:n m»._e_nmm

City of Fort Worlh, Texas
Altachment B - Level of Effort Supplement
PMO Official Release Dale: 8.09.2012

Project
Director

Project

Engineer

Project
Mana er_

Subconsultant

Cost

EIT CADD | Adminlstrative

Travel

Cost Task Sub Total

Reproduction

6

2
4 10,
6

-
tDQ DN

R

AR TIP | 3
)| SEHETIRTS0

Luo

e l=]

Ty

T e
Srel))| B ]

0 %S BT 9]030
e Bt

EEoRTIEE 0l ERaE a5 $21190

[ EEis QB R

A0 Eoez18121940

ERERAES0 %MM&PQ_@@@

%r
5 MW f83a10

arunu

e L

7250

e} | SR 5,840

S | MG aS TR A | et Pt iAE bl i TN T D
BRI

40]000] EE 2 rns 44,760

FreavE st B

'
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Level of Effort Spreadsheet
TASK/HOUR BREAKDOWN
Design Services for
NORTHSIDE Il - 30 INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Altachment B - Level of Effort Supplement
PMO Officlal Release Date: 8.09.2012

Totals | EEn a0 | TR 1 02| = 52 660 | B oaid02

BEAN228\ B ACTIRS048 ¥A3§378/040 [ B8O

000|%:72$20J000) = 290 2

City Project No. 100261
Labor (hours) Expense
Task No. Task Description Project Project Project BT ¢ADD | Administrati ._.ona_u_ _.ﬂco_. Sub Itant T duct Total Expense Task Sub Total
Director | Manager | Engineer = ministrative 0S| ubconsultan ravel Reproduction Cost
7.1___|Right-ofWay Research 8 4 EFE$2640]  $20,000 S EEI§0,000| ERF 9021640
Rlght-of-Way/Easement Preparation and
7.2 Submittal $20,000
7.3 Temporary Right of Enlry Submittal
A P | B SO A N LA S S AR R Ml T
8.0 Survey 70000 | SHESIAAS0| Birs0].
8.1 Design Survey 4 $70,000
8.2 Temporary Right of Entry Subnittal 0 $0
Construction mz_.<m 4 $0,
T ST | WEE e ECETI
TR0 EE29$20/000
. ironmental Services $20,000
9.3 Floodplain Services [ 1 $0
94 JTxDOT
9.4.1__|6 Detall Sheets [ 0 0 0 0]
9.4.2  [Permits ! 0 0 0 1)
9.5 Railroad 0 0 0 0
9.6 TDLR
9.7 Cliy of Fort Worlh Parks Converslon [ ]

it 2R$41000 %«L_B@ E 245,840

Project Summary
Tolal Hours 2,641
Total Labor 318,840
Total Expense 131,000
MBE/SBE Subconsuitant 110,000|
Non-MBE/SBE Subconsultant $20,000

50f 6




Level of Effort Spreadsheet
TASK/HOUR BREAKDOWN

Design Services for

NORTHSIDE Il - 30 INCH WATER LINE AT STATE HIGHWAY 170
City Project No. 100261

Labor {hours)
Total Labor
Task No. Task Description Project _ Project Project _ BT _n>cu _ Adminlstrative Cost
Director | Manager | Engineer

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Attachment B - Level of Effort Supplement
PMO Officlal Release Date: 8.09.2012

Subconsultant

Travel

Total Expense
Reproduction Cost Task Sub Total
5% __Sub Markup) $6,500
MBE/SBE Parliclpation 24.1%
Total Project Cost »ammh\s-

6of6




: EXHIBIT “B-3”
ENGINEER OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST
(Supplement to Attachment B)
Insert opinion of probable construction cost following this page.

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Attachment B

ferl Relgase Date: 5.18.2010
Page 5 of 5
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EXHIBIT “B-3”
ENGINEER OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST
(Supplement to Attachment B)
Insert opinion of probable construction cost foflowing this page.

[ NORHTEAST PIPELINE ROUTE STUDY

CITY OF FORTWORTH

PIPELINE ROUTE B 30-INCH OPTION

Description i Quantity | Unit Unit Price Total
Construction Costs S 6,626,240 _
1 30” Water Line {Undeveloped Areas) 8,190 | LF S 210.00 S 1,715,900
2 30" Water Line (Developed Areas) 6,400 |LF S 300.00 $ 1,920,000
3 48" Casing {By Other Than Open Cut) 1,330 |LiF S 960.00 S 1,276,800
4 | 48" Casing (By Open Cut) 480 |LF | § 48000 | 3 230,400
5 30" Carrier Pipe 1,810 | LF S 300.00 S 543,000
6 | Full Panel Concrete Pavement Repair _ 700 | SY S 895.00 [ S 66,500 |
7 30" Gate Valve and Vault 6 | EA S 65,000._00 S 390,000 |
8 | 3” Air Release Valve 5[EA | $2400000 | s 120,000
K 8” Blowoff Valve S {EA | $25,000.00 S 125,000 |
10 | WaterTie-ln 2 |EA $50,000.00 [ S 100,000
11 | Cathodic Protection . 1]Ls | $40,000.00 $ 40,000
12 | Utility Markers - 1{1s | $15,000.00 $ 15,000
13 | Trench Safety 15070 JLF | $°° 200 | s 30,140
14 | swppp 1fis™ $ 20,000.00 5 120,000
15 | Traffic Control’ 1S 7782950000 | "¢ 729,500
B CONSTRUCTION SUBTGTAL S 6,826,300
CONTINGENCY 20% S 1,325,260
PROJECT TOTAL S 7,951,560
City of Fort Worth, Texas
AttachmentB )
PMO Official Release Date: 5:19.2010
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ATTACHMENT “C”

CHANGES AND AMENDMENTS TO STANDARD AGREEMENT

Design Services for
Northside It — 30 inch Water Line at State Highway 170

<None>

City of Fort Worth, Texas
Aftachment C

PMO Release Date; 05.19.2010
Page10f1 '
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City of Fort Worth, Texas
Mayor and Council Communication

COUNCIL ACTION: Approved on 11/8/2016 - Ordinance No. 22497-11-2016 & 22498-11-

2016
DATE: Tuesday, November 8, 2016 REFERENCE NO.: **C-27985
LOG NAME: 60NSIISH17030INWL-CPY
SUBJECT:

Authorize Acceptance of Funds in the Amounts of $226,532.00 from the Town of Westlake and
$257,790.00 from the Trophy Club Municipal District No. 1 for their Respective Contributions to the
Northeast Northside 1l 30-inch Water Transmission Main Along State Highway 170 from N. Beach Street to
US 377, Authorize Execution of an Engineering Agreement with CP&Y, Inc., in the Amount of $456,340.00
for Engineering and Design Services for the Northeast Northside |I 30-inch Water Transmission Main Along
State Highway 170 from N. Beach Street to US 377, Provide for Staff Costs, Utility Coordination, Property

Acquisition and Materials Testing for a Design Phase Cost Amount of $954,200.00 and Adopt
Appropriation Ordinances (COUNCIL DISTRICT 7

RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended that the City Council:

1. Accept funds in the amounts of $226,532.00 from the Town of Westlake and $257,790.00 from the

Trophy Club Municipal District No. 1 for the Northeast Northside || 30-inch Water Transmission Main along
State Highway 170 from N. Beach Street to US 377;

2. Adopt the attached appropriation ordinance increasing estimated receipts and appropriations in the
Water Capital Fund in the amount of $484,322.00 from available funds;

3. Adopt the attached appropriation ordinance increasing estimated receipts and appropriations in the
Water Capital Fund in the amount of $469,878.00 from available operating funds; and

4. Authorize execution of an Engineering Agreement with CP&Y, Inc., in the amount of $456,340.00 for
Northeast Northside Il 30-inch Water Transmission Main along State Highway 170.

DISCUSSION:

This Mayor and Council Communication (M&C) is to authorize the preparation of plans and specifications

for the Northeast Northside Il 30-inch Water Transmission Main along State Highway 170 from N. Beach
Street to US 377.

The existing wholesale water contracts with Trophy Club Municipal District No. 1 (City Secretary Contract
No. 41111) and the Town of Westlake (City Secretary Contract No. 41112), as amended on June 21, 2016
(M&C C-27783) requires the wholesale customer to cost participate toward the additional capacity from
future Fort Worth water transmission mains which serve their communities. These wholesale customers
have requested increased capacity from the Northside II 30-inch water main.

CP&Y, Inc., proposes to provide the necessary design services for a lump sum fee of $456,340.00. Staff
considers the proposed fee to be fair and reasonable for the scope of services proposed.

Logname: 60NSIISH17030INWL-CPY . 7 Page 1 of 3
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In addition to the contract cost, $497,860.00 is required for project management, utility coordination, real
property acquisition and material testing.

In accordance with terms of the Agreement between the wholesale customer cities of Fort Worth, Trophy
Club and Town of Westlake, will reimburse Fort Worth for engineering, project management, inspection,
material testing, as-built records and easements projected costs as costs shown in the following table:

Engineering and Inspection and
Project Material Testing
City Construction Cost |Management Costs Costs Easement Costs Total Costs
City of Fort Worth $ 2,072,700.00 $ 90,082.00 $ 98,276.00 $ 236,880.00 $ 2,497,938.00
Trophy Club MUD #1 $ 4,485,600.00 $199,948.00 $ 62,842.00 $ 512,640.00 $ 5,256,030.00
[Town of Westlake $ 3,941,700.00 $176,310.00 $ 55,222.00 $ 450,480.00 $ 4,618,712.00
Project Total $10,500,000.00 $456,340.00 $216,340.00 $1,200,000.00 $12,372,680.00

The above is only a cost estimate. Each wholesale water customer will only provide the engineering and
project management cost participation to the City of Fort Worth prior to the award of the proposed
Engineering Agreement with the final amount to be based on the final engineering fee after design is
completed. The final cost participation with each wholesale customer for construction, inspection, material
testing and easement acquisition will be established in a future Agreement.

This Design Phase for the Northeast Northside Il 30-inch Water Transmission Main along State Highway
170 from N. Beach Street to US 377 is one component of the overall project that includes project
management, easement, acquisition, utility coordination, material testing, inspection, construction and

contingencies. The overall project budget is $12,372,680.00.
This project will have no impact on the Water Department's operating budget.

M/WBE OFFICE: CP&Y, Inc., is in compliance with City's BDE Ordinance by committing to 25 percent

SBE participation. The City's SBE goal on this project is 16 percent. Additionally, CP&Y, Inc., is a
certified M/WBE firm.

The project is located in COUNCIL DISTRICT 7, Mapsco 78B, 78F, 78G, 78K and 78J.

FISCAL INFORMATION / CERTIFICATION:

The Director of Finance certifies that upon approval of the above recommendations and adoption of the
attached appropriation ordinances, funds will be available in the current capital budget, as appropriated, of
the Water Capital Fund. The Fiscal Year 2017 Water Operating Budget includes appropriations of
$21,060,000.00 for the purpose of providing Pay-As-You-Go funding for Water Capital Projects. After this
transfer for Fiscal Year 2017, the balance will be $20,063,257.00.

Appropriations for the Northeast Northside 1l 30-inch Water Transmission Main along State Highway
Project by fund will consist of the following:

| FUND | _Current Appropriations | Current Appropriations | Project Total*
| Water Capital Fund 59601 $0.00 | $954,200.00 | $954,200.00
| Project Total $0.00 | $954,200.00 | $954,200.00

*Numbers rounded for presentation purposes.

FUND IDENTIFIERS (FIDs):

Logname: 60NSIISH17030INWL-CPY Page 2 of 3




T0

~

-

Fund Department |Account Project ProgramlActivity Budget Reference # |[Amount
ID ID Year (Chartfield 2)
FROM
rund Department |[Account] Project ProgramiActivity Budget Reference # |Amoun
ID ID Year (Chartfield 2) _
CERTIFICATIONS:

Submitted for City Manager's Office by:

Originating Department Head:

Additional Information Contact:

Jay Chapa (5804)
John Carman (8246)
Robert Sauceda (2387)

ATTACHMENTS

Noohkowh~

Logname: 60NSIISH17030INWL-CPY

BONSIISH17030IN 59601 cash AO17.docx (Public)
BONSIISH17030IN 59601 developer AO17.docx (Public)
BONSIISH17030INWL CPY Compliance Memo.pdf (CFW Internal)
60NSIISH17030INWL CPY FIDs Revised.pdf (CFW Internal)
BONSIISH17030INWL CPY Form 1295 (2).pdf (Public)
BONSIISH17030INWL-CPY MAP .pdf (Public)

SAM CPY Inc..pdf (CFW Internal)

Page 3 of 3



FID Table for 60NSIISH17030INWL-CPY

FIDs (Budget)
Project ID | Activity

Account

Budget Year | CF | Program Amount

2 Purpose
2)59601 | 0600430 | 4640002 | 100261 001730 $484,322.00
2)59601 | 0600430 | 5330500 | 100261 001730 $456,340.00
2)59601 | 0600430 | 5110101 | 100261 001780 $27,982.00
3)59601 | 0600430 | 4956001 | 100261 001722 $469,878.00
3)59601 | 0600430 | 5110101 | 100261 001730 $45,618.00
3)59601 | 0600430 | 5310350 | 100261 001740 $73,500.00
3)59601 | 0600430 | 5110101 | 100261 001740 $328,360.00
3)59601 | 0600430 | 5310350 | 100261 001770 $3,000.00
3)59601 | 0600430 | 5110101 | 100261 001784 $8,400.00
3)59601 | 0600430 | 5330500 | 100261 001784 $5,000.00
3)59601 | 0600430 | 5310350 | 100261 001784 $1,000.00
3)56901 | 0600430 | 5310350 | 100261 001785 $5,000.00

FIDs (Actuals)

Account | ProjectID | Activity ’ Budget Year | CF l Program’ Amount ’
P

| { Purpose | Xfer
4)59601 | 0600430 | 5330500 | 100261 001730 $456,340.00

Amortize
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NDMENT No.1l
TO CITY SECRETARY CONTRACT

WHEREAS, the City of Fort Worth (CITY) and CP&Y, INC. ’
(ENGINEER) made and entered into City Secretary Contract No.
48424, (the CONTRACT) which was authorized on the 22nd day of
November, 2016 in the amount of $456,340.00; and

WHEREAS, the CONTRACT involves engineering services for
the following project:

Northeast Northside II 30-Inch Water Transmission Main along
State Highway 170 from N. Beach Street to US 377; and

WHEREAS, it has become necessary to execute Amendment No.1l

to the CONTRACT to include an increased scope of work and revised
fee.

NOW THEREFORE, CITY and ENGINEER, acting herein by and
through their duly authorized representatives, enter into the
following agreement, which amends the CONTRACT:

1.

Article I of the CONTRACT is amended to include the
additional engineering services specified in a proposal May 23,
2017, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein.
The cost to City for the additional design services to be
performed by Engineer totals $13,098.36.00.

2.
Article II of the CONTRACT is amended to provide for an
increase in the fee to be pPaid to Engineer for all work and
services performed under the Contract, as amended, so that the

total fee paid by the City for all work and services shall be an
amount of $469,438.36.

All other provisions of the Contract, which are not
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expressly amended herein, shall remain in full force and effect.

EXECUTED and EFFECTIVE as of the date last written by a signatory,

below. ,
APPROVED : ENGINEER
City of Fort Worth CP&Y, Inc.

e AAADN s L

Jesus J. Chapa M;.](e S. Haétzl;é, P.E.
Assistant City Manager Principal
DATE : 7/3//7 DATE: [ ”[‘/"ZO/‘ 1

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED :

cl /L

Chris Harder, P.E.
Assistant Director, Water Department

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: M&C:

Date:

Douglas W. Black N
Senior Assistant City Attorney

Mary J y%%r
City Secretary

N/A

N/A




Criado Associates, Inc.

Date; 6/14/2017

EXHIBITB
FEE SCHEDULE
Feo Schedule
.| Project Manager Survey
Labor Category: RPLS/QA-QC Sr. Engineer | Project Engineer | Engr Assoc. / EIT | Survey Crew Techniclan | CAPD Techniclan Subtotal
CRIADO ASSOCIATES, INC.  Hourly Rate: $ 150.00 | $ 150,00 1 § 125.00 | 10500 % 14500 ( $ 120.00 | $ 90,00 Fee
PIPELINE PROJECT
TOPO 2.0 32.0 8.0 16.0 7,340.00
BOUNDARY 4.0 8.0 4.0, 4.0 2,600.00
MEETING & COORDINATION .

900.00 | $

- |[$ 580000(%

1,440.00 | § 1,800,00

T P e HIEL%%E.H

The total of all fees for services performed by the Subconsultant under this Agreement shall not exc

It Is agreed and understood that this amount will constitute full compensation to the Subconsultant,

§%Wﬁnﬂq&ﬂ%§% T e e e A T T ST T e R T

Total:| $

9, mac oc

B e e e e S e P R e e T e e TS s B e Py ey TP ey mr T T

DIRECT EXPENSES unit unit cost quantity cost
Mileage (Current IRS Rate) mile $0.54 3500 $1,880.00
Courler Services each $25.00 2 $50.00
Photacoples B/W (8.5 X 11) each $0.10 228 $22.80
Photocoples BIW (11 X 17) each $0.20 24 $4.80
Photocoples Color (8.5 X 11) each $0.75 0 $0.00
Photocopies Color (11X 17) each $1.60 0 $0.00
White Mylar (11X 17) sheet 2,00 0 $0.00
> TOTAL: $1,967.60
Total Direct Labor $ 9,940.00
Total Direct Expense $ 1,967.60
Sub-total: $ 11,907.60

s thu
m:mnozmc_.._.bz bezcv {10%): $ 1,190.76

1

TOTAL FEE

$

13,088.36

eed the total Lump Sum amount of $11,907.36 (Eleven Thousand, Nine Hundred Seven and 36/100 Dollars),
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‘ Pg(v 3 Partners for a Better Quality of Life

Month Day, Year

Mr. Robert Sauceda

City of Fort Worth, Water Department
1000 Throckmorton
Fort Worth, Texas 76102

RE: Northeast Northside Il 30-Inch Water Transmission Main
CP&Y Project Number: FTWH1600051.00

Dear Mr. Sauceda:

CPYI, Inc. (CP&Y) offers additional Professional Engineering Services for this project. These
additional services are required due to the need to make requested changes to do
additional survey, due to alignment changes. This Engineering Services Contract
Amendment includes a detailed scope of additional services attached to this letter. CPY],
Inc. proposes to provide the attached scope of additional services for the lump sum total

of $13,098.36. All additional services proposed will be performed in accordance with the
original contract dated March 6, 2017.

This Amendment, consisting of one page; and the attached Additional Scope of Services,
consisting of one page, represent the entire amendment to the original agreement between
the City of Fort Worth and CPYI, Inc. If the terms of this Amendment are acceptable, please
indicate by acknowledging acceptance of the terms of this document.

Summary of Contract Fee for Contract 81
Original Contract Amount $456,340.00
Approved Amendment No. 1 $13,098.36
Revised Contract Amount $469,438.36

If you have any questions or we may be of further service, please call me at 817-661-1222.

Sincerely,

Tanya Miro

Project Controls Manager

115 West 7th Street, Suite 1500
Fort Worth, Texas 76102

(0} 817.354.0188 - (f) 817.354.4935
wWww.cpyi.com




FORT WORTH

Contract Compliance Manager

By signing I acknowledge that I am the person responsible for the monitoring and administration of this
contract, including ensuring all performance and reporting requirements.

ot

Si/gnature ‘

Roberto C. Sauceda, P.E

Name of Employee

Water Department - Engineering
Department

Senior Professional Engineer
Title

817-392-2387

Phone

b /3 (7

Date

WATER DEPARTMENT
ENGINEERING AND FisCAL SERVICES

THe Ciry oF Fort Wortd » 1000 THrROCKMORTON STREET * FoRrT WorrH, Texas 76102
817-392-8240 » Fax 817-332-8195

&3 Printed on recycled paper




Part A6

TOWN OF WESTLAKE

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT

THIS INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated to be
effective the 19th day of January 2018, is entered into by and between the Town of Westlake,
“Town” and Nowzar Dinyarian, “Vendor™:

Town and Vendor agree as follows:

1. Independent Contractor. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Town
hereby engages Vendor as an Independent Contractor to perform the services set forth herein, and
Vendor hereby accepts such engagement.

2. Duties, Term and Compensation. Vendor’s agrees to perform the following services:
Independently assist the Public Works Director in obtaining funding from the Texas Water
Development Board for the Northside II 30-inch water line. As a general understanding, this
agreement will remain in effect for the duration of the project, unless terminated by either party
under the provisions of Section 9. All duties performed by Vendor under this Agreement shall
be done as an Independent Contractor and not as an employee of the Town. Vendor may not
refer to himself/herself as an employee of the Town. Vendor shall use independent judgment
and discretion in carrying out all duties, and shall retain and exercise full control over the details
and means by which duties are performed. Vendor agrees to comply with all applicable federal,
state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and Town policies and procedures in performance of all
duties. In consideration for the services to be performed by Vendor, Town agrees to compensate
Contractor at a rate of $120 per hour for services authorized by the Town Manager or Director of
Public Works. Vendor shall be paid within a reasonable time after submission of an invoice to
Town of Westlake. The invoice should include the following: an invoice number, the dates
covered by the invoice, and a summary of the work performed.

3. Benefits. As an Independent Contractor, Vendor is not entitled to benefits of any kind from
the Town. Vendor has no claim against the Town for vacation pay, sick leave, retirement benefits,
social security, workers’ compensation, health or disability insurance or related benefits,
unemployment insurance benefits, or any other type of employee benefits.

4. Taxes. Vendor agrees and acknowledges that the Town is not responsible for the
withholding or the payment of any social security taxes, medicare taxes, federal or state
unemployment taxes, or federal income taxes. Vendor acknowledges sole responsibility for
reporting to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) all compensation that is earned under this
Agreement and to pay any and all local, state, or federal tax(es) due and owed on such
compensation. On an annual basis, the Town will prepare a Form 1099 and provide a copy to
Vendor. The 1099 form will reflect compensation paid to Vendor in accordance with all applicable
laws.

Client
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5. Expenses. Vendor shall be responsible for all expenses incurred while performing services
under this Agreement. This includes automobile, truck, and other travel expenses; vehicle
maintenance and repair costs; vehicle and other license fees and permits; insurance premiums; road,
fuel, and other taxes; fines; radio, pager, or cell phone expenses; meals; and all salary, expenses, and
other compensation paid to employees or contract personnel the Vendor hires to complete the work
under this Agreement.

6. Vehicles and Equipment. Vendor shall be responsible for all expenses incurred while
performing services under this Agreement. The Town will not require Vendor to rent or purchase
any equipment, product, or service as a condition of entering into this Agreement.

7. Independent Contractor Status. Vendor is an independent Vendor, and neither Vendor nor
Vendor's employees or contract personnel are, or shall be deemed, Town's employees. In its
capacity as an independent Vendor, Vendor agrees and represents, and Town agrees, as follows

Vendor has the right to perform services for others during the term of this Agreement.
Vendor has the sole right to control and direct the means, manner, and method by which
the services required by this Agreement will be performed. Vendor shall select the routes
taken, starting and quitting times, days of work, and order the work is performed.

e Vendor has the right to hire assistants as sub-contractors or to use employees to provide
the services required by this Agreement.

e Neither Vendor nor Vendor's employees or contract personnel shall be required to wear
any uniforms provided by the Town.

e The services required by this Agreement shall be performed by Vendor, Vendor's
employees, or contract personnel, and the Town shall not hire, supervise, or pay any
assistants to help Vendor.

e Neither Vendor nor Vendor's employees or contract personnel shall receive any training
from the Town in the professional skills necessary to perform the services required by
this Agreement.

e Neither the Town nor Vendor's employees or contract personnel shall be required by
Town to devote full time to the performance of the services required by this Agreement.

8. Indemnity. Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold the Town, its elected and appointed
officials, employees, agents, and attorneys harmless from and against any and all claims, actions,
damages, liabilities, losses, costs, or expenses (including without limitation, attorneys’ fees, court
costs, back taxes, penalties and interest) arising out of the performance this Agreement.

9, Termination.

9.1 This Agreement may be terminated by either party at any time during the contract term,
with or without cause. Cause will include, but not limited to, Vendor’s arrest or conviction, failure
or refusal to comply with the written policies or procedures of the Town, misconduct, failure to
render services as deemed acceptable by the Town, or breach of this Agreement. Compensation
owed to Vendor for services provided through the date of termination shall be paid by the Town
within a reasonable timeframe upon receipt of invoice.

9.2 In the event that this Agreement is terminated early by either party, with or without
cause, any compensation for services rendered by Vendor through the date of termination will be

Clicnt
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invoiced to the Town, approved by the Town Manager or Director of Public Works, and paid within
a reasonable timeframe in accordance with the Town’s standard accounts payable procedures.

9.3 In the event that Vendor ceases to operate or is unable to render services, whether in an
individual or professional capacity, this Agreement will terminate. Any compensation owed to
Vendor through the date of termination will be invoiced to and paid by the Town to Vendor (or their
estate) in full and final satisfaction of this Agreement. The term “unable” includes, but is not limited
to ceasing of operations, mental or physical inability, or exercising questionable judgment in
performance all duties under this Agreement, as determined by the Town.

10.  Confidential Information. During the term of this Agreement, Vendor may have access to
and become familiar with certain confidential information. Vendor agrees that any confidential
information so obtained, including without limitation, any and all documents, memoranda,
correspondence, notes, specifications, and plans, policies and procedures, computer programs,
software, and other proprietary data of whatever type of nature, is confidential information in the
nature of a trade secret, and is the exclusive property of the Town. Vendor covenants and agrees to
not directly or indirectly, during or after termination of this Agreement, use for their own benefit,
use to the detriment of the Town, or divulge to persons other than authorized officers of the Town,
any confidential information of the Town. Upon termination of this Agreement, all confidential
information shall be left with or returned to the Town. Vendor agrees that all obligations under this
paragraph survive the expiration and/or termination of this Agreement.

11.  Equitable Relief. Vendor acknowledges that irreparable injury will result to the Town in
the event of Vendor’s breach of any of the provisions herein. Consequently, in addition to any other
rights or remedies available to the Town for breach of this Agreement by Vendor, the Town shall be
entitled to enforcement by preliminary restraining order and injunction. The rights and remedies of
the Town under this Agreement (or otherwise) are cumulative, and no one of them is exclusive of
any other or of any right or remedy allowed by law.

12. Miscellaneous.

12.1  Any notice required herein must be in writing, and may be given by hand, by
overnight carrier, or by certified mail, return receipt requested. If by hand or via overnight carrier,
notice is deemed to have been given when delivered. If mailed, the notice shall be deemed given on
the third business day after depositing such notice in the United States mail, provided that postage
was prepaid and the notice was properly addressed. Such notice shall be given to the parties at the
addresses set forth under their names on the signature page of this Agreement. Parties may
designate a different address by giving ten (10) days’ prior written notice to the other party.

12.2  Ifany term, covenant, or condition of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable, the
remainder of this Agreement shall be valid and shall be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by
law.

12.3  No change or modification of this Agreement will be valid or binding upon the
parties, nor shall any waiver of any term or condition in the future be so binding, unless such change
or modification or waiver is in writing and signed by the parties.

12.4  This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the parties concerning the
services to be provided hereunder. There are no representations, agreements, arrangements, or

Client
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understandings, oral or written, between or among the parties relating to the subject matter of this
Agreement which are not fully expressed herein.

12.5  Vendor may not assign this Agreement without obtaining the Town’s prior written
consent.

12.6  This Agreement, and the rights and obligations of the parties, shall be governed
and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas.

12.7 Ifanaction at law or in equity by either party is necessary to enforce the terms of
this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs, and
necessary disbursements in addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled.

12.8  The waiver by either party of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by the
other party shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach by that party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Independent Contractor Agreement
effective as of the day and year first above written.

By_ Nowo Jay @/zzt/qwe(n au. 17, 2018

Nowzar arian / e Date
Jar‘rw(;? Greenwood, Dir. of Public Works ! "Date
Town of Westlake, Texas

Client
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TWDB-0148
Version: 6-2-15

Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part D5”)

Part B: Legal Information

13. Cite the legal authority under which the Applicant can issue the proposed debt including the
authority to make a proposed pledge of revenues Chapter 271, Subchapter C, Texas Local
Government Code, as amended.

14, What type of pledge will be used to repay the proposed debt?
[] Systems Revenue
= Taxes
] Combination of systems revenues and taxes
] Other (Contract Revenue, etc.)

15. Provide the full legal name of the security for the proposed debt issue(s). Town of Westlake,
Texas Tax Certificates of Obligation, Series 2018

16. Describe the pledge being offered and any existing rate covenants. Primary security pledged is
the Town’s I&S ad valorem tax.

17. Attach the resolution from the governing body requesting financial assistance.
TWDB-0201A (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/)
X Attached Resolution

18. Attach the Application Affidavit
TWDB-0201 (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/)
X Attached Applicant Affidavit

19. Attach the Certificate of Secretary
TWDB-201B (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/)
X Attached Certificate of Secretary

20. Isthe applicant a Water Supply Corporation (WSC)?

Yes If yes, attach each of the following:
Articles of Incorporation
Certificate of Incorporation from the Texas Secretary of
State evidencing that the current Articles of Incorporation are
on file with the Secretary
By-laws and any amendments
Certificate of Status from the Texas Secretary of State (i.e.
Certificate of Existence)
Certificate of Account Status from the Texas Comptroller of
Public Accounts (certifies that the WSC is exempt from the
franchise tax and that the WSC is in good standing).

N I O W (I

X No

21. Is the applicant proposing to issue revenue bonds?
Yes If yes, attach copies of the most recent resolution/ordinance(s) authorizing


http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/

TWDB-0148
Version: 6-2-15

Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part D5”)

22.

23.

24.

25.

any outstanding parity debt. This is essential to insure outstanding bond
covenants are consistent with covenants that might be required for TWDB
financing.

] Attached resolution/ordinance(s)

= No

Does the applicant possess a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN)?
X Yes If yes, attach a copy of the CCN and service area map showing the areas
the applicant is allowed to provide water or wastewater services.
X Attached CCN and service area map
] No If no, indicate the status of the CCN.
] N/A

Has the applicant been the subject of any enforcement action by the Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality (TCEQ), the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), or any other entity
within the past three years?
Yes If yes, attach a brief description of every enforcement action within
the past three years and action(s) to address requirements.
] Attached

X No

Are any facilities to be constructed or the area to be served within the service are of a
municipality or other public utility?

] Yes If yes, has the applicant obtained an affidavit stating that the utility does not
object to the construction and operation of the services and facilities in its
service area?

] If yes, attach a copy of the affidavit.
[] Attached affidavit
] If no, provide an explanation as to why not.

X No

If the assistance requested is more than $500,000 a Water Conservation Plan (WCP) is required.
The WCP cannot be more than EIVE years old and must have been adopted by the applicant.
Has the applicant adopted a Board-approved WCP? (Check one and attach requested
information, if any.)
= Yes Enter date of Applicant’'s WCP adoption:_ September 22, 2014
] No If no, attach a copy of a draft Water Conservation Plan and Drought
Contingency Plan prepared in accordance with the TWDB WCP Checklist
(http://lwww.twdb.state.tx.us/financial/instructions/doc/TWDB-1968. pdf)
] Attached Draft WCP and Drought Contingency Plan
[] Attached Utility Profile TWDB-1965
http://www.twdb.state.tx.us/financial/instructions/doc/TWDB-1965.pdf
] N/A  (Request is $500,000 or less per Water Code 88 15.106(c), 17.125(c),
17.277(c), and 17.857(c))

Note: If the applicant will utilize the project financed by the TWDB to furnish services to
another entity that in turn will furnish services to the ultimate consumer, the requirements
for the WCP may be met through contractual agreements between the applicant and the
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TWDB-0148
Version: 6-2-15

Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part D5”)

other entity providing for establishment of a water conservation plan. The provision
requiring a WCP shall be included in the contract at the earliest of: the original execution,
renewal or substantial amendment of that contract, or by other appropriate measures.

26. Does the applicant provide retail water services?
] Yes If yes, has the applicant already submitted to the TWDB the annual water
use survey of groundwater and surface water for the last THREE years?

[] Yes
] No If no, please download survey forms and attach a copy of
the completed water use surveys to the application.
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/waterplanning/waterusesurvey/index.asp
L] Attached Water Use Survey
X No
27. Is the applicant a retail public utility that provides potable water?

X Yes If yes, has the applicant already submitted the most recently required water

loss audit to the TWDB?

X Yes

] No If no, and if applying for a water supply project, please
complete the online TWDB Water Audit worksheet found at
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/resources/waterloss
-resources.asp and attach a copy to the application.
] Attached TWDB Water Audit worksheet

] No

28. Does the Applicant provide wastewater services?
X Yes
] No


http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/resources/waterloss-resources.asp
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/resources/waterloss-resources.asp

Part B17/

TOWN OF WESTLAKE

RESOLUTION NO. 18-15

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF WESTLAKE,
TEXAS, REQUESTING FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM THE TEXAS WATER
DEVELOPMENT BOARD; AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION FOR
FINANCIAL PARTICIPATION AND DESIGNATION OF AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVES IN CONNECTION THEREWITH, TO FUND THE TOWN OF
WESTLAKE’S PROPORTIONAL COSTS RELATED TO THE ENGINEERING AND
CONSTRUCTION OF A REGIONAL 30” WATERLINE BY THE CITY OF FORT
WORTH.

WHEREAS, the Town of Westlake is wholesale water customer of the City of Fort
Worth; and

WHEREAS, the provision of water service throughout the Town of Westlake is of vital
importance to the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Westlake; and

WHEREAS, Westlake desires to secure and maintain an adequate potable water source
for the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Westlake; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council find that the request for financial assistance in an amount
not to exceed $2,100,000.00 from the Texas Water Development Board and filing of an
application for assistance is in conformance with the Town Financial Policies; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that the passage of this Resolution is in the best
interest of the citizens of Westlake.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN
OF WESTLAKE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: All matters stated in the Recitals above are found to be true and correct
and are incorporated herein by reference as if copied in their entirety.

SECTION 2: The Town Council of the Town of Westlake hereby approves the request
for financial assistance in an amount not to exceed $2,100,000.00 and filing of a Texas Water
Development Board application for assistance.

SECTION 3: The Town Council of the Town of Westlake hereby authorizes the Town
Manager to execute and submit the application to the Texas Water Development Board on behalf
of the Town of Westlake, Texas for such financial assistance; and that the Town Manager,
together with the Town Attorney, Town Bond Counsel, Financial Advisor, and Town Engineer
named in the Texas Water Development Board Application Filing and Authorized

Resolution 18-15
Page 1 of 2
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Representative Resolution form TWDB-0201A, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” are hereby
authorized to appear before the Texas Water Development Board in support of such application
and project.

SECTION 4: That the Town Manager is further specifically authorized to make the
required assurances to the Texas Water Development Board in accordance with the rules,
regulations and policies of the Texas Water Development Board.

SECTION 5: That a certified copy of this Resolution shall be attached to the application
for financial assistance herein authorized to be prepared and submitted to the Texas Water
Development Board.

SECTION 6: If any portion of this Resolution shall, for any reason, be declared invalid
by any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions
hereof and the Council hereby determines that it would have adopted this Resolution without the
invalid provision.

SECTION 7: That this resolution shall become effective from and after its date of
passage.

PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS 30" DAY OF APRIL, 2018.

/’/4 (AN 7 f & P i
ATTEST: Laura Wheat Mayor

S fQ;LWg\LL‘}(UiC\{Y

Kelly Edward¢,) Town Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

//‘ ,

/ //// //“ '/I 4':1‘“._}‘ A Vo | /
L. Stafifon LWAﬁomey ' e
Ul ¢ ‘_m%}_y

Resolution 18-15
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EXHIBIT "A"

TWDB-0201A
Rev 11/16

Application Filing and Authorized Representative Resolution

A RESOLUTION by the Fown Council of the
Town of Westlake

requesting financial assistance from the Texas Water

Development Board; authorizing the filing of an application for assistance; and making certain findings in

connection therewith.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE 1OWN COUNCIL OF
THE Town of Westlake

SECTION 1: That an application is hereby approved and authorized to be filed with the Texas Water

Development Board seeking financial assistance in an amount not to exceed § 2,100,000.00 to provide
for the costs of €Ngineering design and construction of a regional water line by the City of Fort Worth |

SECTION 2: That 'homas E. Brymer be and is hereby
designated the authorized representative of the Town of Westlake for purposes

of furnishing such information and executing such documents as may be required in connection with the preparation

and filing of such application for financial assistance and the rules of the Texas Water Development Board.

SECTION 3: That the following firms and individuals are hereby authorized and directed to aid and assist

in the preparation and submission of such application and appear on behalf of and represent the

Town of Westlake before any hearing held by the Texas Water

Development Board on such application, to wit:

Financial Advisor: Tom Lawrence

Lawrence Financial Consulting, LLC

Engineer: Brian Averitt, P.E.

Graham Associates

Bond Counsel: Rodolfo Segura, Jr
McCall, Parkhurst & Horton LLP

PASSED AND APPROVED, this the :3‘ ) day of Ap ril , 20 1 8

—_—

P )
3 noA (\ i &') P =
g, U Ly (T By:
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TWDB-0201A
Rev 11/16

Application Filing and Authorized Representative Resolution

A RESOLUTION by the rown Council of the
Town of Westlake

requesting financial assistance from the Texas Water

Development Board; authorizing the filing of an application for assistance; and making certain findings in

connection therewith.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE |OWN COUNCIL OF
THE Town of Westlake

SECTION 1: That an application is hereby approved and authorized to be filed with the Texas Water
Development Board seeking financial assistance in an amount not to exceed $ 2,100,000.00 to provide
for the costs of €Ngineering design and construction of a regional water line by the City of Fort Worth

SECTION 2: That 1nomas E. Brymer
designated the authorized representative of the | OWn of Westlake

be and is hereby

for purposes

of furnishing such information and executing such documents as may be required in connection with the preparation

and filing of such application for financial assistance and the rules of the Texas Water Development Board.

SECTION 3: That the following firms and individuals are hereby authorized and directed to aid and assist

in the preparation and submission of such application and appear on behalf of and represent the
Town of Westlake

before any hearing held by the Texas Water
Development Board on such application, to wit: '

Financial Advisor: Tom Lawrence

Lawrence Financial Consulting, LLC

Engineer: Brian Averitt, P.E.

Graham Associates

Bond Counsel: Rodolfo Segura, Jr
McCall, Parkhurst & Horton LLP

PASSED AND APPROVED, this the _ 3 () day of AD ril .20 18

Resolution 18-15
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TWDB-0201
Rev 11/16

Application Affidavit

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF  Tarrant §
APPLICANT Town of Westlake §

BEFORE ME, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Texas, on this day

personally appeared | homas E. Brymer as the Authorized Representative of the
Town of Westlake

, who being by me duly sworn, upon oath says that:

1. The decision by the 1OWn of Westlake

(authority, city, county, corporation,

district) to request financial assistance from the Texas Water Development Board ("TWDB") was made in a public
meeting held in accordance with the Open Meetings Act (Government Code, §551.001, et seq,) and after providing
all such notice as required by such Act as is applicable to the 19Wn of Westlake (authority, city,

county, corporation, district) .

2. The information submitted in the application is true and correct according to my best knowledge and
belief.

3. The Town of Westlake (authority, city, county, corporation, district) has no

pending, threatened, or outstanding judgments, orders, fines, penalties, taxes, assessment or other enforcement or
compliance issue of any kind or nature by the Environmental Protection Agency, Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality, Texas Comptroller, Texas Secretary of State, or any other federal, state or local government,

except for the following (if no such outstanding compliance issues, write in "none").

NONE

4. The Town of Westlake (authority, city, county, corporation, district) warrants

compliance with the representations made in the application in the event that the TWDB provides the financial

assistance; and

5. the Town of Westlake (authority, city, county, corporation, district) will comply

with all applicable federal laws, rules, and regulations as well as the laws of this state and the rules and regulations
of the TWDB. '

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME, by _ Thomas E. Brymer

on this 30 day of __ April ,20 18 .

‘ (- )
P ROTARYS'SEAL) EaTIING IEN's fm
4 KELLY EDWARDS Notafy Public,State of Texas
NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF TEXAS
MY COMM. EXP, 02/03/2022
NOTARY ID 12408268-8

Resolution 18-15
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Part B19 Rev 11/16

Application Resolution - Certificate of Secretary

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF Tarrant
APPLICANT Town of Westlake

1, the undersigned, Secretary of the Town of Westlake Texas,
DO HEREBY CERTIFY as follows:

il That on the 30th day of April ,20 18 a regular/special meeting of the
Town of Westlake - was held; the duly constituted members of the
Town Council being as follows:

Mayor Laura Wheat, Mayor Pro-tem Carol Langdon, Council Members Micheal Barrett, Alesa Belvedere, and Wayne Stoltenberg

all of whom were present at the meeting, except the following;:
N/A
Among other business considered at the meeting, the attached resolution entitled:

"A RESOLUTION by the Town Council of the Town of Westlake requesting
financial participation from the Texas Water Development Board; authorizing the filing of an application
for financial participation; and making certain findings in connection therewith."

was introduced and submitted to the Town Council for passage and adoption. After
presentation and consideration of the resolution, and upon a motion made by Council Member Stoltenberg and
seconded by Council Member Barrett , the resolution was passed and adopted by the
Town Council by the following vote:

4 voted "For" 0 voted "Against" 0 abstained
all as shown in the official minutes of the Town of Westiake for this meeting.

2 That the attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the original on file in the official records
of the Town of Westlake ; the qualified and acting members of the Town Council on
the date of this meeting are those persons shown above and, according to the records of my office, advance notice of
the time, place, and purpose of meeting was given to each member of the Town Council ; and that the

meeting, and the deliberations of the public business described above, was open to the public and written notice of
the meeting, including the subject of the resolution described above, was posted and given in advance of the meeting
in compliance with the provisions of Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

___ IN'WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed my name and affixed the seal of
the Towin 0+ WestlaKe , this the 30" day of j.\pQLl ,20 1D .

%M%M&W

Secrétary O

Resolution 18-15
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1.0 INTRODUCTION AND OBJECTIVE

Water supply has always been a key issue in the development of Texas. In recent years, the increasing
population and economic development of North Central Texas have led to growing demands for water
supplies. At the same time, local and less expensive sources of water supply are largely already developed.
Additional supplies to meet future demands will be expensive and difficult to secure. Severe drought
conditions in recent years have highlighted the importance of the efficient use of our existing supplies to
make them last as long as possible. Extending current supplies will delay the need for new supplies,
minimize the environmental impacts associated with developing new supplies, and delay the high cost of

additional water supply development.

Recognizing the need for efficient use of existing water supplies, the Texas Commission on Environmental
Quality (TCEQ) has developed guidelines and requirements governing the development of water
conservation plans.! The TCEQ guidelines and requirements are included in Appendix B. The City of Fort
Worth has developed this water conservation plan in accordance with TCEQ guidelines and requirements.
To develop a regional approach, Tarrant Regional Water District’s Water Conservation and Drought
Contingency Plan?, of whom the City of Fort Worth is a customer, was consulted. This Water Conservation

Plan replaces the previous plan dated March 2009.

The City of Fort Worth also recognizes that in order to achieve its goals of maximizing water conservation
and efficiency, it is necessary to develop and implement a water conservation plan that goes beyond basic
compliance with TCEQ guidelines and requirements. This plan reflects the City of Fort Worth’s
commitment to enhanced water conservation and efficiency strategies — particularly those best
management practices established by the Water Conservation Implementation Task Force®, which were
incorporated, where practicable, in the development of these water conservation measures. The Water
Conservation Implementation Task Force developed the Texas Water Development Board Report 362
Water Conservation Best Management Practices Guide in partial fulfillment of the Texas Legislature’s
charge to the TCEQ and Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) to develop recommendations for

optimum levels of water use efficiency and conservation in the State.

! Superscripted numbers match references listed in Appendix A
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The objectives of this Water Conservation Plan are as follows:

To reduce water consumption from the levels that would prevail without conservation efforts.
e To reduce the loss and waste of water.

e To improve efficiency in the use of water.

e Encourage efficient outdoor water use.

e To document the level of recycling and reuse in the water supply.

e To extend the life of current water supplies by reducing the rate of growth in demand.

The City’s plan will achieve significant conservation savings to help extend the life of existing supplies

without burdening the customer with unnecessary additional costs.

April 2014 1-2



FORT WORTH

Water Conservation Plan

City of Fort Worth
WATER

2.0 TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY RULES

2.1 TCEQ RULES GOVERNING CONSERVATION PLANS

The TCEQ rules governing development of water conservation plans for public water suppliers are
contained in Title 30, Part 1, Chapter 288, Subchapter A, Rule 288.2 of the Texas Administrative Code,
which is included in Appendix B. For the purpose of these rules, a water conservation plan is defined as
“A strategy or combination of strategies for reducing the volume of water withdrawn from a water supply
source, for reducing the loss or waste of water, for maintaining or improving the efficiency in the use of
water, for increasing the recycling and reuse of water, and for preventing the pollution of water.” The

elements in the TCEQ water conservation rules covered in this conservation plan are listed below.

Minimum Conservation Plan Requirements

The minimum requirements in the Texas Administrative Code for Water Conservation Plans for Public

Water Suppliers are covered in this report as follows:

e 288.2(a)(1)(A) — Utility Profiles — Section 3.0 and Appendix C

o 288.2(a)(1)(B) — Record Management System — Section 5.2

e 288.2(a)(1)(C) — Specific, Quantified Goals — Section 4.0

e 288.2(a)(1)(D) — Accurate Metering — Section 5.2

e 288.2(a)(1)(E) — Universal Metering — Section 5.2

e 288.2(a)(1)(F) — Determination and Control of Water Loss — Section 5.2 and 5.3
e 288.2(a)(1)(G) — Public Education and Information Program — Section 6.1

e 288.2(a)(1)(H) — Non-Promotional Water Rate Structure — Section 6.2

e 288.2(a)(1)(l) — Reservoir System Operation Plan — Section 6.3

e 288.2(a)(1)(J) — Means of Implementation and Enforcement — Section 6.4

e 288.2(a)(1)(K) — Coordination with Regional Water Planning Groups — Section 6.6 and Appendix D
e 288.2(c) — Review and Update of Plan — Section 8.0

Conservation Additional Requirements (Population over 5,000)

The Texas Administrative Code includes additional requirements for water conservation plans for drinking

water supplies serving a population over 5,000:

e 288.2(a)(2)(A) — Leak Detection, Repair, and Water Loss Accounting — Section 5.3
e 288.2(a)(2)(B) — Requirement for Water Conservation Plans by Wholesale Customers —Section 6.5

April 2014 2-1
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Additional Conservation Strategies

The Texas Administrative Code lists additional conservation strategies, which may be adopted by suppliers

but are not required. Additional strategies adopted by the City of Fort Worth include the following:

e 288.2(a)(3)(A) — Conservation Oriented Water Rates — Section 6.2
e 288.2(a)(3)(B) — Ordinances, Plumbing Codes or Rules on Water-Conserving Fixtures — Section 7.1
e 288.2(a)(3)(D) — Reuse and Recycling of Wastewater — Section 7.2
e 288.2(a)(3)(F) — Considerations for Landscape Water Management Regulations — Section 7.3
In addition to being a public water supplier under TCEQ rules, the City of Fort Worth also acts as a

wholesale provider to thirty one wholesale customers; thus, the TCEQ water conservation rules for

wholesale providers are also addressed.

The TCEQ rules governing development of water conservation plans for wholesale water suppliers are
contained in Title 30, Part 1, Chapter 288, Subchapter A, Rule 288.5 of the Texas Administrative Code,
which is included in Appendix B. The elements in the TCEQ water conservation rules for wholesale water

suppliers addressed in this Water Conservation Plan are listed below.

Minimum Conservation Plan Requirements for Wholesale Water Suppliers

The minimum requirements in the Texas Administrative Code for water conservation plans for wholesale

water suppliers are covered in this Plan as follows:

e 288.5(1)(A) — Description of Service Area — Section 3.0 and Appendix C

e 288.5(1)BC) — Specific, Quantified Goals — Section 4.0

288.5(1)(C) — Measure and Account for Water Diverted — Section 5.1

288.5(1)(D) — Monitoring and Record Management System — Section 5.2

288.5(1)(E) — Program of Metering and Leak Detection and Repair — Section 5.3

288.5(1)(F) — Requirement for Water Conservation Plans by Wholesale Customers — Section 6.5
e 288.5(1)(G) — Reservoir System Operation Plan — Section 6.3

e 288.5(1)(H) — Means of Implementation and Enforcement — Section 6.4

e 288.5(1)(l) — Documentation of Coordination with Regional Water Planning Groups — Section 6.6
e 288.5(3) — Review and Update of Plan — Section 8.0

Additional Conservation Strategies for Wholesale Water Suppliers

The Texas Administrative Code lists additional water conservation strategies that can be adopted by a
wholesale supplier but are not required. Additional strategies adopted by the City of Fort Worth include

the following:

e 288.5(2)(C) — Program for Reuse and/or Recycling — Section 7.2
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e 288.5(2)(D)— Other Measures - Section 6.1 (public education), and Sections 7.3 (landscape water

management measures)

2.2  GUIDANCE AND METHODOLOGY FOR REPORTING ON WATER CONSERVATION
AND WATER USE

In addition to TCEQ rules regarding water conservation, this plan also incorporates elements of the
Guidance and Methodology for Reporting on Water Conservation and Water Use developed by TWDB and
TCEQ, in consultation with the Water Conservation Advisory Council (the “Guidance”).* The Guidance was
developed in response to a charge by the 82" Texas Legislature to develop water use and calculation
methodology and guidance for preparation of water use reports and water conservation plans in
accordance with TCEQ rules. The City of Fort Worth has considered elements of the Guidance in

preparation of this Plan.
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3.0 DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AREA AND UTILITY PROFILE

The City of Fort Worth provides retail water and sewer service to approximately 770,000 residents and
wholesale water service to 30 wholesale customers listed below. Service through wholesale customers
accounts for approximately 350,000 additional residents. In total, Fort Worth provides water directly or
indirectly to over 1.1 million people in Tarrant, Denton, Johnson, Parker and Wise counties. Figure 3-1

shows Fort Worth’s water service area. Fort Worth’s wholesale customers include:

e Aledo e Haltom City e Saginaw

e Bethesda WSC e Haslet e Sansom Park

e Burleson e Hurst e Southlake

e Crowley o Keller e Trophy Club MUD #1

e DFW Airport e Kennedale e Trinity River

e Dalworthington e Lake Worth Authority (TRA)
Gardens e North Richland Hills e  Westlake

e Edgecliff Village e Northlake e Westover Hills

e Everman e Richland Hills e Westworth Village

e Forest Hill e River Oaks e White Settlement

e Grand Prairie e Roanoke

The City purchases raw water from the Tarrant Regional Water District (TRWD). This water is from five

major sources, as seen in Figure 3-2:

1. The West Fork of Trinity River via Lake Bridgeport, Eagle Mountain Lake and Lake Worth;

2. Clear Fork of the Trinity River via Lake Benbrook; (A pipeline connects Lake Benbrook to the
Rolling Hills Water Treatment Plant to supplement supply to that plant. A pump station on the
Clear Fork of the Trinity River also supplies the Holly Water Treatment Plant.)

3. Cedar Creek Reservoir, located approximately 75 miles southeast of Fort Worth; and

4. Richland-Chambers Reservoir, located approximately 75 miles southeast of Fort Worth.

April 2014 3-1
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FIGURE 3-1: FORT WORTH'’S WATER SERVICE AREA
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FIGURE 3-2: TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT SUPPLY SOURCES
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The City’s service area is currently served by five water treatment plants. As of 2012, the total treatment
capacity is 497 million gallons per day (MGD). A breakdown of treatment capacity by plant is provided in

Table 3-1 below.

TABLE 3-1: 2012 TREATMENT PLANT CAPACITY

. Reliable
DeS|g_n Pumping
Treatment Plant Capacity .
(MGD) Capacity
(MGD)
Rolling Hills, est. 1972 200 190
North Holly, est. 1918 80 75
South Holly, est. 1952 100 95
Eagle Mountain, est. 1992 105 100
Westside, est. 2012 12 12
Total 497 472

The City has a wastewater treatment capacity of 166 million gallons per day (MGD) at the Village Creek

Water Reclamation Facility in east Fort Worth.

Appendix C contains Fort Worth’s most recent water utility profiles based on the formats recommended

by TCEQ for both retail suppliers and wholesale suppliers.
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4.0 SPECIFICATION OF WATER CONSERVATION GOALS

TCEQ rules require the adoption of specific water conservation goals for a water conservation plan. The

goals for this water conservation plan include the following:

e Maintain the 5-year moving average total per capita water use below specified amount in Table
4-2.

e Maintain the level of water loss in the system below the specified amount in Table 5-3.

e Maintain the Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI), as described in Section 5.3, below the specified
amount in Table 5-3.

e Implement and maintain a program of universal metering and meter replacement and repair as
discussed in Section 5.2.

e Increase efficient water usage and decrease waste in lawn irrigation by enforcement of landscape
water management regulations as described in Section 7.3.

e Raise public awareness of water conservation and encourage responsible public behavior by a

public education and information program as discussed in Section 6.1.

In the previous (2009) plan, total per capita use goals were 179 gpcd by 2015 and 170 gpcd by 2020 as
outlined in Table 4-1 below. As of 2014, Fort Worth'’s five year average per capita use was 171 gpcd. This

illustrates achieved conservation savings significantly ahead of the 2015 goal and very near to the year

2020 goal.
TABLE 4-1: PREVIOUS PLAN GPCD GOALS (2009)
Description Units 2008 2015 2020
Total GPCD 2 GPCD 192 179 170
Residential GPCD GPCD 93.10 87 83

a.  Total GPCD = (Total Gallons in System + Permanent Population) + 365
b.  Residential GPCD = (Gallons Used for Residential Use + Residential Population) + 365

As such, the 2020 and 2025 goals have been revised to reflect increased conservation as a result of
measures included in this plan. Fort Worth has developed goals based on the recommendations of the
Texas Water Conservation Implementation Task Force, which suggests a 1% reduction in gallons per capita
per day per year. The current specific goals are outlined in Table 4-2. These goals were developed
assuming a five year average per capita, and therefore some (dry) years will see higher per capita usage

than these five year average goals. A series of dry years may lead to an average exceeding the goal. Figure
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4-1 shows the total annual per capita since 2000, the five year average and the comparison between the

previous goal and current goal.

TABLE 4-2: GPCD GOALS (2014)

Description Units 2013 2020 2025
Total GPCD 2 GPCD 171 160 152
Residential GPCD ® GPCD 81 76 72

c.  Total GPCD = (Total Gallons in System + Permanent Population) + 365
d.  Residential GPCD = (Gallons Used for Residential Use + Residential Population) + 365

FIGURE 4-1: FORT WORTH TOTAL PER CAPITA USE AND GOALS
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4.1  ANALYSIS OF BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES

During each update of the Water Conservation Plan the City has evaluated the best management practices
outlined in the Water Conservation Best Management Practices Guide®. For a complete analysis of the
Best Management Practices (BMPs), refer to Tables 4-3 and 4-4 on the following pages. Table 4-3 looks at
the implementation of the BMP’s for the practices the City has implemented and the proposed
implementation date for additional strategies. Table 4-4 looks at the potential savings in 2020 and 2025,
the proposed cost in 2020 and 2025, the cost per thousand gallons, whether the practice will have an
impact to revenues (low, medium or high) and whether the practice has other benefits such as additional

supply sources, revenue recovery or education component.

It should also be noted that the Water Conservation Advisory Council is reviewing and updating these
BMP’s. At this point the Water Conservation Advisory Council has approved four BMPs for wholesale

water providers.

1. Customer Contract Requirement for Water Conservation Plans and Drought Contingency Plans —
It is a requirement of this plan that Fort Worth’s wholesale customers complete water

conservation plans and submit them to state agencies as well as the City of Fort Worth for review.

2. Technical Assistance and Outreach — The City holds regular meetings with its wholesale customers
to update them on programs the City is implementing. Water conservation staff is available for
wholesale customers to contact regarding their programs and to assist wholesale customers with

implementing their own programs.

3. Wholesale Supplier Collective Purchase and Direct Distribution of Water Conservation Equipment
— Since the City is both a retail and wholesale provider, it has conducted rebate and retrofit
programs for retail customers. At this time the City does not intend to offer a collective purchase

or direct distribution program for its wholesale customers.

4. Coordination with Customers on Cost Sharing Programs — While the City does not formally have
a cost sharing program with its wholesale customers, the City does participate in the Water

Efficiency Network of North Texas that organizes cooperative buying programs across the region.
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TABLE 4-3: WATER CONSERVATION BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES
IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE

Implementation Schedule

BMP Description Currently Implemented Implemented Implemented Implemented
Implemented By Code before 2015 before 2020 before 2025
1 System Water Audit and Water Loss 2002
2 Water Conservation Pricing 1994
3 Prohibition on Wasting Water 1994
4 Plumbing Code Showerhead, Aerator 1992
and Toilet Flapper Retrofit
Additional Showerhead, Aerator and
4a . . v
Toilet Flapper Retrofit Program
5 Plumbing Code Residential Toilet 2014
Replacement Programs
54 Ad_dltlonal Residential and Commercial 2009
Toilet Replacement Programs
6 Residential Clothes Washer Incentive 1992
Program
Additional Residential Clothes Washer
6a . ‘ﬁ:f
Incentive Programs
7 School Education 1990
Water Survey for Single-Family and .200.7
8 Multi-Family Customers Irrigation
¥ Audits
9 Landsc.ape Irrigation Conservation and 2003
Incentives
Water Wise Landscape Design and
10 ) v
Conversion Programs
11 | Athletic Field Conservation 2006
12 | Golf Course Conservation v 4
13 Meter!ng of AII New Conne<':t|ons and 1980
Retrofit of Existing Connections
14 | Wholesale Agency Assistance Programs v 4
15 Conservation Coordinator 1990
16 Water Reuse 1999
17 Public Information 1983
Rainwater Harvesting and Condensate
18 Reuse ‘Q‘/
19 | New Construction Graywater v
20 | Park Conservation v 4
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Implementation Schedule
BMP Description Currently Implemented Implemented Implemented Implemented
Implemented By Code before 2015 before 2020 before 2025
Conservation Programs for Industrial,
21 ; grams X 2010
Commercial, and Institutional Accounts
Cost-Effectiveness Analysis for Municipal
22
Water Users J
Twice Per Week Watering Schedule v 4
v 4

Landscape Ordinance
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TABLE 4-4: BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICE COST-EFFECTIVENESS ESTIMATES

Description

BMP
Number

Estimates of Current Costs and Savings

Estimated
Savings

Estimated Costs

Cost Per
Thousand
Gallons

2020
(MGD)

2025
(MGD)

2020 (S per
Year)

2025 (S per
Year)

2020 | 2025

Rank for
Expenditure

Potential
Impact to
Water
Revenues

Other
Benefits
Achieved

Plumbing Code*

Showerhead,
Aerator and Toilet
Flapper Retrofit

0.00 0.00

S0

S0

N/A N/A

PL Code

Residential Toilet
Replacement
Programs

0.00 0.00

S0

S0

N/A N/A

PL Code

High

No

No

Residential Clothes
Washer Incentive
Programs

0.00 0.00

S0

S0

N/A N/A

PL Code

High

No

Necessary
Programs - No
Associated Savings

Wholesale Agency
Assistance
14 | Programs

0.00 0.00

$50,000

$50,000

N/A N/A

High

Conservation
15 | Coordinator

0.00 0.00

$85,000

$95,000

N/A N/A

Medium

Public Information
17 | BMP

0.00 0.00

$100,000

$100,000

N/A N/A

Programs Not
Recommended
(RWPG)

Rainwater
Harvesting and
18 | Condensate Reuse

0.00 0.00

S0

S0

N/A N/A

New Construction
19 | Graywater BMP

0.00 0.00

S0

S0

N/A N/A

Medium-
High

No

Cost for Existing
and Additional
Programs**

Twice per Week
Watering Schedule

3.70 4.06

$100,000

$110,000

$0.07 | $0.07

High

Residential
Landscape
Ordinance

1.00 2.00

$60,000

$70,000

$0.16 | $0.10

Water
Conservation
2 | Pricing*

0.56 0.97

$60,000

$70,000

$0.29 | $0.20

Medium

No

No

Prohibition on
3 | Wasting Water

0.50 0.50

$60,000

$70,000

$0.33 | $0.38

Medium

No
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BMP
Number

Description

Estimates of Current Costs and Savings

Estimated
Savings

Estimated Costs

Cost Per
Thousand
Gallons

2020
(MGD)

2025
(MGD)

2020 (S per
Year)

2025 (S per
Year)

2020

2025

Rank for
Expenditure

Potential
Impact to
Water
Revenues

Other
Benefits
Achieved

Water Survey for
Single-Family and
Multi-Family
Customers
(Irrigation Audit)

0.25 0.25

$40,000

$50,000

$0.44

$0.55

Medium

System Water
Audit and Water
Loss (Leak
Detection Repair)

3.00 5.00

$800,000

$880,000

$0.73

$0.48

Intensified Water
Loss and Water
Line Replacement
Program

4.50 6.00

$1,200,000

$1,320,000

$0.73

$0.60

10

Water Wise
Landscape
Irrigation
Conservation and
Incentives

0.50 0.50

$200,000

$200,000

$1.10

$1.10

Landscape
Irrigation
Conservation and
Incentives

1.00 1.00

$400,000

$400,000

$1.10

$1.10

Additional
Residential Toilet
Replacement
Programs

1.10 1.21

$450,000

$495,000

$1.12

$1.12

10

School Education

3.35 4.27

$150,000

$200,000

$1.14

$1.02

11

Additional
Residential Clothes
Washer Incentive
Programs

0.10 0.11

$50,000

$100,000

$1.37

$2.49

12

20

Park Conservation
BMP

0.50 0.50

$250,000

$250,000

$1.37

$1.37

12

12

Golf Course
Conservation

0.50 0.50

$250,000

$250,000

$1.37

$1.37

12

11

Athletic Field
Conservation

0.80 0.80

$400,000

$400,000

$1.37

$1.37

12

16

Water Reuse

30.15 | 30.15

$20,000,000

$20,000,000

$1.82

$1.82

16

Additional
Showerhead,
Aerator and Toilet
Flapper Retrofit

0.10 0.10

$75,000

$75,000

$2.05

$2.05

17
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Estimates of Current Costs and Savings
Cost Per Potential
. Estimated Thousand Rank for Impact to Othe-r
Description Savings Estimated Costs Gallons Expenditure Water f:hnizc;
BMP 2020 | 2025 | 2020 ($per | 2025 ($ per Revenues
Number (MGD) | (MGD) Year) Year) 2020 | 2025
Conservation
Programs for
Industrial, 022 | 024 | $250,000 | $275000 |$2.35 | $2.59 18
Commercial and
Institutional
21 | Accounts Medium
Metering of all
New Connections
and Retrofit of 0.50 0.50 $500,000 $500,000 $2.74 | $2.74 19
Existing
13 | Connections

* Based on 2016 Region C Water Plan

** Based on savings and cost data from City of Fort Worth or published literature
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5.0 METERING, WATER USE RECORDS, CONTROL OF UNACCOUNTED
WATER, AND LEAK DETETECTION AND REPAIR

One of the key elements in water conservation is careful tracking of water use and control of losses.
Programs for universal metering, meter testing, meter repair, and periodic meter replacement have been
developed using American Water Works Association (AWWA) standards and are important elements in

the City of Fort Worth’s program to control losses.

5.1 PRACTICES TO MEASURE AND ACCOUNT FOR THE AMOUNT OF WATER
DIVERTED FROM TRWD

Water deliveries from TRWD are metered by TRWD using meters with accuracy of at least £5%. TRWD can

access the meters at all reasonable times, and meters are calibrated to maintain the required accuracy.

5.2 MONITORING AND RECORD MANAGEMENT PROGRAM FOR DETERMINING
DELIVERIES, SALES AND LOSSES

The City has an effective record management system in place. As required by TAC Title 30, Part 1, Chapter
288, Subchapter A, Rule 288.2 (a)(2)(B), Fort Worth’s record management system allows for the
separation of water sales and uses into residential, commercial, municipal, and industrial categories. This
information is included in the TCEQ required Water Conservation Implementation report, as described in

Section 6.4.

The City of Fort Worth meters all of the connections in the distribution system. Meters range in size from
3/4” to 16”. The meter size distribution is included in Table 5-1 below. All meters met AWWA accuracy

standards when installed. In 2012, there were a total of 227,837 active retail customer meters in the City.

TABLE 5-1: METER SIZE DISTRIBUTION

Meter Size Total Number

3/4” 193,240
1” 24,336

11/2” 3,608
2" 5,383
3’ 684
4" 308
6” 199
8" 56
10” 22
12” 0
16" 1
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The City has implemented a meter exchange program that provides for the annual replacement of meters
in the system that do not register the correct amount of water flowing through them. This program has

replaced more than 30,000 meters over the past five years.

5.3 LEAK DETECTION, REPAIR AND WATER LOSS ACCOUNTING

The system water audit is used annually to monitor the total level of non-revenue water. There are many
variables which influence the revenue and non-revenue components of the City’s water system including
meter inaccuracy, data discrepancies, unauthorized consumption, reported breaks and leaks and

unreported losses.

The City of Fort Worth uses gallons per connection per day as its preferred water loss metric as it is less
variable than other metrics to climatic conditions. In the previous plan, water loss (gallons per connection
per day) was 110 with a goal of 95 by 2015 and 75 by 2020 (Table 5-2). Due to the City’s water loss
reduction program, as of 2012, the City has reached 76 gallons of water loss per connection per day (Table

5-3). This is significantly ahead of the 2015 goal and nearly to the 2020 goal.

The Texas Water Development Board has also asked that cities begin to include their water loss in gallons
per capita per day and as a percentage of the total water use in the system. These are additional
performance indicators that can be used to determine the effectiveness of the water. The City will
continue to reduce water losses throughout the system by analyzing and updating the targets and goals

of this section annually in conjunction with the water audit.

TABLE 5-2: PREVIOUS PLAN WATER LOSS GOALS (2009)

Description Units 2008 2015 2020
Gallons/connection
Water loss ver day 110 95 75
TABLE 5-3: WATER LOSS GOALS (2014)

Description Units 2012 2020 2025
Water Loss GPCD ¢ GPCD 27 25 23
Water Loss Percentage ¢ % 13% 12% 10%
Water Loss Per Connection Gallons/connection 76 72.5 70

per day

Real losses ILI 4.08 3.75 3.5

a. Total GPCD = (Total Gallons in System + Permanent Population) + 365
b.  Residential GPCD = (Gallons Used for Residential Use + Residential Population) + 365
c.  Water Loss GPCD = (Total Water Loss + Permanent Population) + 365

d.  Water Loss Percentage = (Total Water Loss + Total Gallons in System) x 100; or (Water Loss GPCD + Total GPCD) x 100
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The Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI) is a calculation of the theoretical lowest leakage possible divided by
existing calculated leakage. This is developed as a unique value for every city and includes variables such
as the distance from the curb stop to the meter boxes, the pressure in the system, and the number of
service lines or connections per mile of main. Within Fort Worth, the theoretical lowest leakage is
approximately 3 million gallons per day. This is the theoretical lowest leakage currently possible with the

existing infrastructure and service connection density.

Fort Worth has an ILI of approximately 4.08, which means that theoretically the leakage could be reduced
4.08 times before reaching the lowest possible value. This puts Fort Worth in the average zone of ILIs
within the United States. The City will continue to reduce leaks in the system through its state-of-the-art
technologies that employ acoustic leak-noise detectors to target and locate suspected leaks. Its leak
detection program includes continuously monitoring almost 230,000 linear feet of pipe in critical areas,
as well as surveying over 2.5 million linear feet annually. Leaks detected and repaired through this
program were estimated to have saved over 350 million gallons of water in fiscal year 2013. In addition,

the City will continue to encourage customers and field operators to report visual leakage.

The City has also piloted District Metered Areas (DMAs) which are part of current Best Management
Practice leakage control zones. DMAs are discrete metered areas within the distribution system, usually
supplying 1,000 to 3,000 properties. The City has studied pressure surges within the system and will
continue to review the possibilities of pressure control in pilot zones within the city limits. This will be
conducted in combination with the water-loss control measures developed within the main pressure

zones such as District Metered Areas (DMAs).
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6.0 OTHER REQUIRED CONSERVATION MEASURES

6.1 PUBLIC EDUCATION AND INFORMATION

The City of Fort Worth has an active, comprehensive water conservation public education program in
place. The City coordinates with Tarrant Regional Water District (TRWD) to provide a regionally consistent

message on the importance of water conservation.

The City has established a representative Customer Advisory Committee to promote community
awareness of the City’s conservation efforts. The Committee is also responsible for reviewing, assessing
and providing direction for all of the City’s conservation programs. The committee includes customers
from residential, commercial, industrial, institutional, irrigators, and wholesalers. Under direction of this

Committee, important components of the City’s current program include:

e Brochure distribution.

e Over 2.7 million water bill inserts annually.

e Notification of local organizations, schools, and civic groups that the City of Fort Worth staff is
available to make presentations on the importance of water conservation and ways to save
water. In 2012, the City participated in 47 community events and provided support for displays,
exhibits and presentations in the community on water conservation reaching over 11,300 people.

e Water conservation information on Fort Worth’s website (fortworthtexas.gov,
savefortworthwater.org).

e Encouragement of local media coverage of water conservation issues and the importance of
water conservation.

e Education programs not only for schools within the Fort Worth Independent School District, but
also for schools within the 13 other districts which operate within the wholesale customer

boundaries. The program targets elementary and reached more 23,000 students in 2012.

6.2 WATER RATE STRUCTURE

The City of Fort Worth has conservation-oriented water rate structures in place. The City’s current rate

structure consists of the following six classes:

e Residential
e Commercial
e |ndustrial
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e Super User
e Irrigation
e Gas Well Use

Each customer is first charged a flat rate based on meter size as outlined in Table 6-1. Usage charges are
then assessed according to customer class as show in Table 6-2 to Table 6-7. An increasing block rate
structure is in place for residential and irrigation classes to encourage water conservation. The City
analyzes each customer class and sets rates in proportion to those classes which place the most demands
upon the water system. The rates shown in the tables below were effective as of January 1, 2014 and are
subject to change as the City continues to refine its rate structures to improve the impact on water

conservation and manage the cost of service most effectively.

TABLE 6-1: MONTHLY METER CHARGES

Meter Size Service Charge
5/8" or %" $9.00

1’ $14.75

1%" $26.00

2 $29.50

3 $93.50

4 $161.25

6 $345.00

8 $596.75

10 $911.25

TABLE 6-2: RESIDENTIAL WATER RATES

First 8 CCF $1.97 per CCF
8 CCF to 20 CCF $2.80 per CCF
20 CCF to 30 CCF $3.55 per CCF
Above 30 CCF $4.40 per CCF

Note: 1 CCF (hundred cubic feet) = 748.05 gallons

TABLE 6-3: COMMERCIAL WATER RATES
[ All volumes | $2.30 per CCF |

TABLE 6-4: INDUSTRIAL WATER RATES
[ All volumes | $2.25 per CCF |

TABLE 6-5: SUPER USER WATER RATES
| All volumes | $1.85 per CCF |

TABLE 6-6: IRRIGATION WATER RATES

First 50 CCF $2.80 per CCF
50 to 100 CCF $3.55 per CCF
Above 100 CCF $4.40 per CCF
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TABLE 6-7: GAS WELL RATES
| Gas Well Use | $4.79 per CCF |

6.3  RESERVOIR SYSTEM OPERATION

Fort Worth is a raw water customer of Tarrant Regional Water District (TRWD). As such, TRWD is
responsible for operation of their reservoir system which consists of seven major reservoirs — Lake
Bridgeport, Eagle Mountain Lake, Lake Worth, Cedar Creek Reservoir, Richland-Chambers Reservoir, Lake
Arlington and Lake Benbrook. TRWD’s reservoir system operation plan seeks to maximize efficiency of
water withdraws within the constraints of existing water rights. Other priorities include maintaining water
quality and minimizing potential impacts on recreational users, fish, and wildlife. Each reservoir is
operated on a policy of flood release above the conservation elevation. TRWD coordinates its Operation
Plan with all of its water customers and provides recommendations for the operations of regional
treatment systems including the City of Fort Worth. For more information regarding TRWD’s Reservoir

System Operation please refer to TRWD’s Water Conservation Plan.

6.4 IMPLEMENTATION AND ENFORCEMENT

The City of Fort Worth completes the TCEQ required Water Conservation Implementation Report by May
1 of each year. The report includes various water conservation strategies that have been implemented,
including the date of implementation. Additionally, the report includes progress made on the five and ten
year per capita water use goals from this Plan. If the goals are not being met, Fort Worth must document

why not. The amount of water saved is also documented in this report.

6.5 REQUIREMENT FOR WATER CONSERVATION PLANS BY WHOLESALE
CUSTOMERS

The wholesale service area includes 30 customers. In 2012 there were estimated to be approximately
350,000 people within the combined wholesale customer service area. Table 6-8 shows each wholesale
customer, the amount of water purchased from the City in 2013 and whether they are also a wastewater

customer.
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TABLE 6-8: WHOLESALE CUSTOMERS

Wholesale Customer 2013 Usage (MG) V\c/:ebsstte(;/v”z]a:r
Aledo 69.6 No
Bethesda WSC 939.4 Yes
Burleson 1,666.2 Yes
Crowley 576.6 Yes
DFW Airport 400.3 No
Dalworthington Gardens 159.2 No
Edgecliff Village 141.2 Yes
Everman 0.0 Yes
Forest Hill 440.4 Yes
Grand Prairie 679.8 No
Haltom City 1,766.7 Yes
Haslet 157.9 No
Hurst 1,938.9 Yes
Keller 2,579.1 No
Kennedale 171.8 Yes
Lake Worth 258.0 Yes
North Richland Hills 2,653.6 Yes
Northlake 75.1 Yes
Richland Hills 257.7 Yes
River Oaks 0.0 Yes
Roanoke 500.3 No
Saginaw 1,042.8 Yes
Sansom Park 0.0 Yes
Southlake 3,551.8 No
Trophy Club MUD #1 793.6 No
Trinity River Authority (TRA) 0.0 Yes
Westlake 401.5 No
Westover Hills 210.6 Yes
Westworth Village 112.1 Yes
White Settlement 424.7 Yes
Total 21,969

FORT WORTH

WATER

Each of the City’s wholesale customers is contractually obliged to develop, implement, and update Water

Conservation Plans or conservation measures using the applicable requirements of TCEQ Water

Conservation Plans, Drought Contingency Plans, Guidelines and Requirements, Texas Administrative Code

30 TAC Chapter 288(a)(2)(C). Each of the City’s wholesale customers are also contractually obligated to

adopt any mandatory measures in this plan such as time of day restrictions and the twice per week

watering schedule. The City has sent a copy of its Water Conservation and Drought Contingency plans to

each of its wholesale customers to aid with the development of their plans.
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The conservation goals as outlined in this section of the Water Conservation Plan are intended as guides
for the wholesale customers. When existing contracts are renewed, requirements for implementation of

water conservation plans will be incorporated into the respective wholesale customer contracts.

The City expects each wholesale customer to voluntarily reduce its water use through conservation
practices. The targets in Table 6-9 below are recommended for each wholesale customer. The City
encourages each wholesale customer to implement conservation plans which reduce water use within

10% of the target goals.

TABLE 6-9: WHOLESALE CUSTOMER TARGETS

Unaccounted-
Residential For Water Per
liataliGRCR GPCD Connection
Per Day
By 2020 168 85 105*
By 2025 159 80 100*

* Unaccounted-for water targets are based on the new AWWA water audit practices
which approve the performance indicator for water losses as gallons lost per connection
per day. This includes real and apparent losses. The commonly used percentage is not
recommended as it is too variable depending on usage. These are guidelines and are
related to the average wholesale customer in a year of average rainfall. These are
voluntary guidelines.

The City requests that each wholesale customer provide a copy of their Water Conservation Plan and
required water system audit (as required by the Texas Water Development Board water audit reporting
requirement as specified by House Bill 3338) to the City of Fort Worth. This will be required in any new

contracts developed with wholesale customers as specified in 30 TAC Chapter 288.

In 2000 the City of Fort Worth’s Wholesale customers accounted for slightly over a quarter of the raw
water pumped. In 2013 the wholesale customers accounted for approximately a third of the raw water
pumped. Fort Worth will hold quarterly meetings with their wholesale customers to provide information

on Fort Worth’s program and conservation best management practices.

6.6 COORDINATION WITH REGIONAL WATER PLANNING GROUPS

The City has been working with the local Regional Water Planning Groups (Region C and G) to help develop
the water conservation plan documents. This Water Conservation Plan has been discussed with Regional
Water Planning Group consultants and is consistent with their methodology and structure. Letters
documenting that a copy of the Water Conservation Plan was sent to the Chairs of the Region C and G

Water Planning Groups are attached in Appendix D.
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7.0 ADDITIONAL CONSERVATION EFFORTS

7.1  WATER-CONSERVING PLUMBING FIXTURES

The City of Fort Worth should adopt new plumbing code standards to be consistent with the 1.28 gallon
toilet requirement of the Texas Health and Safety Code, Title 5, Subtitle B, Chapter 372 effective January
1, 2014. This code should be formally adopted by the City Council and included in the Code of Ordinances.
This code encourages water conservation through the requirement that all toilets sold, offered for sale or
distributed must be a dual flush toilet that may not exceed 1.28 gallons per flush on average or for one
full flush. The projected demands for Fort Worth that will be included in the 2016 Region C Water Plan
will account for the new plumbing code requirement. The City routinely inspects new construction,
remodeling, add-ons, etc., through building permits to ensure installation of fixtures adheres to current

codes.

The City has several programs to encourage the replacement of high water use fixtures, the SmartFlush
voucher program and SmartFlush commercial program. The City also has the CARE program for low
income and elderly customers for toilet replacement. Since 2009 these programs combined to distribute

over 30,000 toilets.

7.2  REUSE

The City of Fort Worth currently has a direct reuse program in place at its Village Creek Water Reclamation
Facility which supplies reuse water to Dallas-Fort Worth Airport, Arlington and Euless. Expansion of the
reuse program is a major component of the City’s vision to manage its water resources in the most
efficient manner. The City is currently conducting a feasibility study to expand its direct reuse program to
potentially supply the central part of the City. The feasibility study is looking to identify customers

currently using potable water for irrigation or other purposes that could convert to reuse.

TRWD has a Texas water right allowing the diversion of return flows of treated wastewater from the Trinity
River. The water will be pumped from the river into constructed wetlands for treatment and then pumped
into Richland-Chambers Reservoir and Cedar Creek Reservoir. The wetlands project will ultimately provide
115,500 acre-feet per year, of which 10,000 acre-feet per year can be supplied from existing facilities. A

portion of this indirect reuse is provided to the City of Fort Worth.
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7.3 LANDSCAPE WATER MANAGEMENT

The City has an existing ordinance which prohibits wasting water. This ordinance prohibits watering
between 10 a.m. and 6 p.m. year round. In addition the Irrigation ordinance requires that only licensed
irrigators alter existing or install new irrigation systems within Fort Worth. The City has adopted

ordinances to require rain and freeze sensors on new irrigation systems.

The City has conducted pilot programs to assess different water-saving methodologies and technologies
at City athletic fields. The Gateway Park development includes synthetic turf on soccer and rugby fields to
improve levels of water conservation at this facility. The best, most effective methods will be considered
for all appropriate City facilities. Once it has been determined that specific landscape water management
techniques are effective, they will be presented to private facilities such as golf courses and to customers

with significant irrigated areas.

The City and other regional water providers (North Texas Municipal Water District, Tarrant Regional Water
District, Upper Trinity Regional Water District, the Trinity River Authority and the city of Dallas) have
collaborated and agreed upon implementing a year round no more than twice per week watering
schedule. The City will have a mandatory twice per week water schedule similar to Stage 1 of its drought
plan. The schedule is included as Table 7-1. The two instances when this schedule has been implemented
during Stage 1 drought (in 2011 and currently in 2013-2014) it has shown to have savings of 8 percent and

9 percent respectively.

TABLE 7-1: TWICE PER WEEK WATERING SCHEDULE

Monday Tuesday | Wednesday | Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday
Residential | Residential Residential | Residential
No outdoor Non- addresses addresses Non- addresses | addresses
watering residential ending in ending in residential ending in ending in
(0,2,4,6,8) | (1,3,5,7,9) (0,2,4,6,8) | (1,3,5,7,9)

7.4  CONSERVATION PROGRAMS FOR INDUSTRIAL, COMMERCIAL, AND
INSTITUTIONAL ACCOUNTS

The City contracts with a vendor to offer comprehensive audits to these customers. These audits generally
consist of a review of the current water use for the customer, their processes, and an audit of their
irrigation system (if applicable). All of the analysis from the report is then summarized into a report

detailing recommended improvements, the cost, savings and return on investment. Based on analysis
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performed by the vendor the program can account for savings of approximately 65-80 million gallons

annually at an approximate cost of $2.35 per thousand gallons.

7.5 ADDITIONAL PRACTICES, METHODS, AND TECHNIQUES
7.5.1 Internal City Water Conservation Effort

The City has implemented water conservation measures internally within City Hall and a number of its
other buildings and parks and will continue to do so over the next five-year planning period. This includes
retrofits of toilets, faucets, and showerheads, and development of a landscape program in conjunction
with the Parks and Community Services Department. The City will also continue to analyze water savings
from these measures. The City will also promote demonstration gardens such as the Water Conservation

Garden at the Fort Worth Botanic Gardens.

7.5.2 Water Conservation Advisory Committee

The Water Conservation Advisory Committee was formed in August of 2005 to review the current outlook
for water supply in North Central Texas, evaluate potential conservation strategies and make
recommendations to the Water Director. The Committee comprises a diverse cross section of customer

classes and interests. This committee provides review of specific water conservation measures.

7.5.3 Graywater

Residential graywater use (i.e., recycling water within the home using a dual plumbing system) is another
potential water supply. The Texas Administrative Code Chapter 210 has rules governing the use of
graywater for domestic purposes, industrial, commercial or institutional purposes and irrigation. At this
time this practice is not considered economically feasible on a large residential scale, however it may be

evaluated on a case-by-case basis for other customer classes.

7.5.4 Rainwater Harvesting and Condensate Reuse

Rainwater harvesting and condensate reuse provide a potential source of supply that could be used for
non-potable purposes such as landscape irrigation. Large properties with this potential supply could offset
a portion of their irrigation demand depending on the storage capacity. Rainwater and condensate reuse
should be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to determine if it is cost effective for large properties. At this

time the City will not implement a rebate/giveaway program, but the City will continue to educate the
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public about the possibility of rain water harvesting and direct them to classes such as the Master

Gardner’s.

The Water department has partnered with the Storm water Department for the past three years to offer
arain barrel distribution program. The program works with a direct supplier to offer customers rain barrels
at the direct. Then City staff works to advertise the program, register customers and provide a distribution

date for customers to pick up their rain barrel. The program has minimal cost for the City to implement.

7.5.5 Weather Stations

TRWD is developing an interactive weather station program to install weather stations throughout its
service area to provide consumers with a weekly e-mail and information through a website in determining
an adequate amount of supplemental water that is needed to maintain healthy grass in specific locations.
This service will provide the public advanced information regarding outdoor irrigation needs, thereby
reducing water use. Through a series of selections on the type of irrigation system a consumer has, a
weekly email that will tell the customer how long (in minutes) an irrigation system needs to run based on
the past seven days of weather. This recommendation provides the actual amount of supplemental water
that is required for a healthy lawn based on research of the Texas A&M Agrilife Extension Service and
proven technologies. Fort Worth will promote this program, encourage its retail and wholesale customers

to participate in the program, and make the information available through its website.

7.5.6 Residential Landscape Ordinance

The City of Fort Worth is projected to have substantial population growth in the next fifty years. The
additional population will require additional housing. A residential landscape ordinance could impact the
landscaping of future homes. The residential landscape ordinance should be crafted in conjunction with
the City Planning and Development Department to identify drought tolerant turf, groundcover, shrubs
and trees that are allowed to be planted at new homes. Once an ordinance is crafted it should be reviewed
by the Water Conservation Advisory Committee. It is recommended that the City consider adopting a

residential landscape ordinance in the next five years.

7.5.7 GIS tools

GIS is a powerful analysis tool to analyze data with a spatial component. Conservation staff will begin
working with GIS staff in the water department to build a database for water conservation (including

program participation, water use, violations etc.). The GIS tools available could be as simple as identifying
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target areas for retrofit program based on the Tarrant County Appraisal District data, to as detailed as
tying water use to each individual parcel within the City. Figure 7-1 shows the year built of homes within
the Fort Worth city limits. Those areas shaded in purple represent homes that were built prior to 1990
and potentially to have older high use plumbing fixtures. Areas shaded in orange were built between

1990-2000, while those shaded in red were built after 2000.

As the amount of data continues to increase and with the possibility of smart meters, GIS is a potential
tool to manage the data and identify where water conservation, leak detection and meter replacement

programs should be targeted to achieve the greatest savings.
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7.5.8 Smart Meters

New technology known as smart meters or Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) has the potential to
change the way water consumption is measured. Many cities have begun to test these meters through
pilot programs to determine if they should begin to use these meters as part of their meter replacement
program. The advantages of these meters are that they can be read remotely reducing staff cost and
provide real time meter readings to identify leaks or other anomalies in water use. Smart meters also have
the potential to provide a valuable education component where a customer could view a “dashboard” of
their previous, current and projected water use. Some of the disadvantages of these meters are the capital
cost to convert to these systems including the additional cost to manage the data they provide. City staff
will develop a pilot program to determine the cost effectiveness and potential savings of using smart

meters in the next five years.
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8.0 ADOPTION OF WATER CONSERVATION PLAN; PERIODIC REVIEW
AND UPDATE OF PLAN

Opportunity for public comment on the plan was provided at a City of Fort Worth public meeting on
February 27, 2014. Appendix E contains a copy of the minutes of the April 1, 2014 City Council meeting at

which this Water Conservation Plan was adopted.

TCEQ requires that water conservation plans be reviewed and, if necessary, updated every five years to
coincide with the regional water planning process. This Water Conservation Plan will be updated as
required by TCEQ and, in addition, will be continually reassessed for opportunities to improve water

efficiency and conservation based on new or updated information.
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APPENDIX A
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1. Title 30 of the Texas Administrative Code, Part 1, Chapter 288, Subchapter A, Rules 288.1 and
288.5, and Subchapter B, Rule 288.22, downloaded from

http://info.sos.state.tx.us/pls/pub/readtacSext.ViewTAC?tac view=4&ti=30&pt=1&ch=288,

June 2013.

2. Tarrant Regional Water District, “Water Conservation and Drought Contingency Plan”, prepared

by the Tarrant Regional Water District, April 2009

3. Water Conservation Implementation Task Force: “Texas Water Development Board Report 362,
Water Conservation Best Management Practices Guide,” prepared for the Texas Water

Development Board, Austin, November 2004.

4. Water Conservation Advisory Council: Guidance and Methodology for Reporting on Water

Conservation and Water Use, December 2012

5. Texas Commission on Environmental Quality Annual Report.

http://www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/water rights/conserve.html#imple
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APPENDIX B

TEXAS COMMISSION OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY RULES ON
MUNICIPAL WATER CONSERVATION PLANS

TITLE 30 ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
PART 1 TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
CHAPTER 288 WATER CONSERVATION PLANS, DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLANS,

GUIDELINES AND REQUIREMENTS
SUBCHAPTER A WATER CONSERVATION PLANS

RULE §288.1 Definitions

The following words and terms, when used in this chapter, shall have the following meanings, unless the

context clearly indicates otherwise.
(1) Agricultural or Agriculture--Any of the following activities:

(A) cultivating the soil to produce crops for human food, animal feed, or planting seed or for the

production of fibers;

(B) the practice of floriculture, viticulture, silviculture, and horticulture, including the cultivation of

plants in containers or non-soil media by a nursery grower;

(C) raising, feeding, or keeping animals for breeding purposes or for the production of food or fiber,

leather, pelts, or other tangible products having a commercial value;
(D) raising or keeping equine animals;
(E) wildlife management; and

(F) planting cover crops, including cover crops cultivated for transplantation, or leaving land idle for
the purpose of participating in any governmental program or normal crop or livestock rotation

procedure.
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(2) Agricultural use--Any use or activity involving agriculture, including irrigation.

(3) Best management practices--Voluntary efficiency measures that save a quantifiable amount of

water, either directly or indirectly, and that can be implemented within a specific time frame.

(4) Conservation--Those practices, techniques, and technologies that reduce the consumption of water,
reduce the loss or waste of water, improve the efficiency in the use of water, or increase the recycling

and reuse of water so that a water supply is made available for future or alternative uses.

(5) Commercial use--The use of water by a place of business, such as a hotel, restaurant, or office

building. This does not include multi-family residences or agricultural, industrial, or institutional users.

(6) Drought contingency plan--A strategy or combination of strategies for temporary supply and
demand management responses to temporary and potentially recurring water supply shortages and
other water supply emergencies. A drought contingency plan may be a separate document identified as

such or may be contained within another water management document(s).

(7) Industrial use--The use of water in processes designed to convert materials of a lower order of value
into forms having greater usability and commercial value, and the development of power by means

other than hydroelectric, but does not include agricultural use.

(8) Institutional use--The use of water by an establishment dedicated to public service, such as a school,
university, church, hospital, nursing home, prison or government facility. All facilities dedicated to public

service are considered institutional regardless of ownership.

(9) Irrigation--The agricultural use of water for the irrigation of crops, trees, and pastureland, including,

but not limited to, golf courses and parks which do not receive water from a public water supplier.

(10) Irrigation water use efficiency--The percentage of that amount of irrigation water which is
beneficially used by agriculture crops or other vegetation relative to the amount of water diverted from
the source(s) of supply. Beneficial uses of water for irrigation purposes include, but are not limited to,
evapotranspiration needs for vegetative maintenance and growth, salinity management, and leaching

requirements associated with irrigation.

(11) Mining use--The use of water for mining processes including hydraulic use, drilling, washing sand

and gravel, and oil field re-pressuring.
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(12) Municipal use--The use of potable water provided by a public water supplier as well as the use of

sewage effluent for residential, commercial, industrial, agricultural, institutional, and wholesale uses.

(13) Nursery grower--A person engaged in the practice of floriculture, viticulture, silviculture, and
horticulture, including the cultivation of plants in containers or nonsoil media, who grows more than
50% of the products that the person either sells or leases, regardless of the variety sold, leased, or
grown. For the purpose of this definition, grow means the actual cultivation or propagation of the
product beyond the mere holding or maintaining of the item prior to sale or lease, and typically includes
activities associated with the production or multiplying of stock such as the development of new plants

from cuttings, grafts, plugs, or seedlings.

(14) Pollution--The alteration of the physical, thermal, chemical, or biological quality of, or the
contamination of, any water in the state that renders the water harmful, detrimental, or injurious to
humans, animal life, vegetation, or property, or to the public health, safety, or welfare, or impairs the

usefulness or the public enjoyment of the water for any lawful or reasonable purpose.

(15) Public water supplier--An individual or entity that supplies water to the public for human

consumption.

(16) Residential use--The use of water that is billed to single and multi-family residences, which applies

to indoor and outdoor uses.

(17) Residential gallons per capita per day--The total gallons sold for residential use by a public water
supplier divided by the residential population served and then divided by the number of days in the

year.

(18) Regional water planning group--A group established by the Texas Water Development Board to

prepare a regional water plan under Texas Water Code, §16.053.

(19) Retail public water supplier--An individual or entity that for compensation supplies water to the
public for human consumption. The term does not include an individual or entity that supplies water to

itself or its employees or tenants when that water is not resold to or used by others.

(20) Reuse--The authorized use for one or more beneficial purposes of use of water that remains
unconsumed after the water is used for the original purpose of use and before that water is either

disposed of or discharged or otherwise allowed to flow into a watercourse, lake, or other body of state-
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owned water.

(21) Total use--The volume of raw or potable water provided by a public water supplier to billed
customer sectors or nonrevenue uses and the volume lost during conveyance, treatment, or

transmission of that water.

(22) Total gallons per capita per day (GPCD)--The total amount of water diverted and/or pumped for
potable use divided by the total permanent population divided by the days of the year. Diversion
volumes of reuse as defined in this chapter shall be credited against total diversion volumes for the

purposes of calculating GPCD for targets and goals.

(23) Water conservation plan--A strategy or combination of strategies for reducing the volume of water
withdrawn from a water supply source, for reducing the loss or waste of water, for maintaining or
improving the efficiency in the use of water, for increasing the recycling and reuse of water, and for
preventing the pollution of water. A water conservation plan may be a separate document identified as

such or may be contained within another water management document(s).

(24) Wholesale public water supplier--An individual or entity that for compensation supplies water to
another for resale to the public for human consumption. The term does not include an individual or
entity that supplies water to itself or its employees or tenants as an incident of that employee service or
tenancy when that water is not resold to or used by others, or an individual or entity that conveys water
to another individual or entity, but does not own the right to the water which is conveyed, whether or

not for a delivery fee.

(25) Wholesale use--Water sold from one entity or public water supplier to other retail water purveyors

for resale to individual customers.

Source Note: The provisions of this §288.1 adopted to be effective May 3, 1993, 18 TexReg 2558;
amended to be effective February 21, 1999, 24 TexReg 949; amended to be effective April 27, 2000, 25
TexReg 3544; amended to be effective August 15, 2002, 27 TexReg 7146; amended to be effective
October 7, 2004, 29 TexReg 9384; amended to be effective January 10, 2008, 33 TexReg 193; amended
to be effective December 6, 2012, 37 TexReg 9515
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TITLE 30 ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
PART 1 TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
CHAPTER 288 WATER CONSERVATION PLANS, DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLANS,
GUIDELINES AND REQUIREMENTS
SUBCHAPTER A WATER CONSERVATION PLANS
RULE §288.2 Water Conservation Plans for Municipal Uses by Public Water

Suppliers

(a) A water conservation plan for municipal water use by public water suppliers must provide
information in response to the following. If the plan does not provide information for each
requirement, the public water supplier shall include in the plan an explanation of why the
requirement is not applicable.

(1) Minimum requirements. All water conservation plans for municipal uses by public water
suppliers must include the following elements:

(A) a utility profile in accordance with the Texas Water Use Methodology, including, but not
limited to, information regarding population and customer data, water use data (including total
gallons per capita per day (GPCD) and residential GPCD), water supply system data, and
wastewater system data;

(B) a record management system which allows for the classification of water sales and uses
into the most detailed level of water use data currently available to it, including, if possible, the
sectors listed in clauses (i) - (vi) of this subparagraph. Any new billing system purchased by a
public water supplier must be capable of reporting detailed water use data as described in
clauses (i) - (vi) of this subparagraph:

(i) residential;
(1) single family;
(1) multi-family;
(ii) commercial;

(iii) institutional;
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(iv) industrial;
(v) agricultural; and,
(vi) wholesale.

(C) specific, quantified five-year and ten-year targets for water savings to include goals for
water loss programs and goals for municipal use in total GPCD and residential GPCD. The goals
established by a public water supplier under this subparagraph are not enforceable;

(D) metering device(s), within an accuracy of plus or minus 5.0% in order to measure and
account for the amount of water diverted from the source of supply;

(E) a program for universal metering of both customer and public uses of water, for meter
testing and repair, and for periodic meter replacement;

(F) measures to determine and control water loss (for example, periodic visual inspections
along distribution lines; annual or monthly audit of the water system to determine illegal
connections; abandoned services; etc.);

(G) a program of continuing public education and information regarding water conservation;

(H) a water rate structure which is not "promotional," i.e., a rate structure which is cost-
based and which does not encourage the excessive use of water;

() a reservoir systems operations plan, if applicable, providing for the coordinated operation
of reservoirs owned by the applicant within a common watershed or river basin in order to
optimize available water supplies; and

(J) a means of implementation and enforcement which shall be evidenced by:

(i) a copy of the ordinance, resolution, or tariff indicating official adoption of the water
conservation plan by the water supplier; and

(ii) a description of the authority by which the water supplier will implement and enforce
the conservation plan; and

(K) documentation of coordination with the regional water planning groups for the service
area of the public water supplier in order to ensure consistency with the appropriate approved
regional water plans.

(2) Additional content requirements. Water conservation plans for municipal uses by public

drinking water suppliers serving a current population of 5,000 or more and/or a projected
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population of 5,000 or more within the next ten years subsequent to the effective date of the
plan must include the following elements:

(A) a program of leak detection, repair, and water loss accounting for the water transmission,
delivery, and distribution system;

(B) a requirement in every wholesale water supply contract entered into or renewed after
official adoption of the plan (by either ordinance, resolution, or tariff), and including any
contract extension, that each successive wholesale customer develop and implement a water
conservation plan or water conservation measures using the applicable elements in this
chapter. If the customer intends to resell the water, the contract between the initial supplier
and customer must provide that the contract for the resale of the water must have water
conservation requirements so that each successive customer in the resale of the water will be
required to implement water conservation measures in accordance with the provisions of this
chapter.

(3) Additional conservation strategies. Any combination of the following strategies shall be
selected by the water supplier, in addition to the minimum requirements in paragraphs (1) and
(2) of this subsection, if they are necessary to achieve the stated water conservation goals of
the plan. The commission may require that any of the following strategies be implemented by
the water supplier if the commission determines that the strategy is necessary to achieve the
goals of the water conservation plan:

(A) conservation-oriented water rates and water rate structures such as uniform or increasing
block rate schedules, and/or seasonal rates, but not flat rate or decreasing block rates;

(B) adoption of ordinances, plumbing codes, and/or rules requiring water-conserving
plumbing fixtures to be installed in new structures and existing structures undergoing
substantial modification or addition;

(C) a program for the replacement or retrofit of water-conserving plumbing fixtures in
existing structures;

(D) reuse and/or recycling of wastewater and/or graywater;

(E) a program for pressure control and/or reduction in the distribution system and/or for

customer connections;
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(F) a program and/or ordinance(s) for landscape water management;

(G) a method for monitoring the effectiveness and efficiency of the water conservation plan;
and

(H) any other water conservation practice, method, or technique which the water supplier
shows to be appropriate for achieving the stated goal or goals of the water conservation plan.
(b) A water conservation plan prepared in accordance with 31 TAC §363.15 (relating to
Required Water Conservation Plan) of the Texas Water Development Board and substantially
meeting the requirements of this section and other applicable commission rules may be
submitted to meet application requirements in accordance with a memorandum of
understanding between the commission and the Texas Water Development Board.
(c) A public water supplier for municipal use shall review and update its water conservation
plan, as appropriate, based on an assessment of previous five-year and ten-year targets and any
other new or updated information. The public water supplier for municipal use shall review and
update the next revision of its water conservation plan every five years to coincide with the

regional water planning group.

Source Note: The provisions of this §288.2 adopted to be effective May 3, 1993, 18 TexReg 2558;
amended to be effective February 21, 1999, 24 TexReg 949; amended to be effective April 27, 2000, 25
TexReg 3544; amended to be effective October 7, 2004, 29 TexReg 9384; amended to be effective
December 6, 2012, 37 TexReg 9515
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TITLE 30 ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
PART 1 TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
CHAPTER 288 WATER CONSERVATION PLANS, DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLANS,
GUIDELINES AND REQUIREMENTS
SUBCHAPTER A WATER CONSERVATION PLANS
RULE §288.5 Water Conservation Plans for Wholesale Water Suppliers

A water conservation plan for a wholesale water supplier must provide information in response to each
of the following paragraphs. If the plan does not provide information for each requirement, the
wholesale water supplier shall include in the plan an explanation of why the requirement is not

applicable.

(1) Minimum requirements. All water conservation plans for wholesale water suppliers must include

the following elements:

(A) a description of the wholesaler's service area, including population and customer data, water use

data, water supply system data, and wastewater data;

(B) specific, quantified five-year and ten-year targets for water savings including, where appropriate,
target goals for municipal use in gallons per capita per day for the wholesaler's service area, maximum
acceptable water loss, and the basis for the development of these goals. The goals established by

wholesale water suppliers under this subparagraph are not enforceable;

(C) a description as to which practice(s) and/or device(s) will be utilized to measure and account for

the amount of water diverted from the source(s) of supply;
(D) a monitoring and record management program for determining water deliveries, sales, and losses;

(E) a program of metering and leak detection and repair for the wholesaler's water storage, delivery,

and distribution system;

(F) a requirement in every water supply contract entered into or renewed after official adoption of the
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water conservation plan, and including any contract extension, that each successive wholesale customer
develop and implement a water conservation plan or water conservation measures using the applicable
elements of this chapter. If the customer intends to resell the water, then the contract between the
initial supplier and customer must provide that the contract for the resale of the water must have water
conservation requirements so that each successive customer in the resale of the water will be required

to implement water conservation measures in accordance with applicable provisions of this chapter;

(G) a reservoir systems operations plan, if applicable, providing for the coordinated operation of
reservoirs owned by the applicant within a common watershed or river basin. The reservoir systems

operations plans shall include optimization of water supplies as one of the significant goals of the plan;

(H) a means for implementation and enforcement, which shall be evidenced by a copy of the
ordinance, rule, resolution, or tariff, indicating official adoption of the water conservation plan by the
water supplier; and a description of the authority by which the water supplier will implement and

enforce the conservation plan; and

(I) documentation of coordination with the regional water planning groups for the service area of the
wholesale water supplier in order to ensure consistency with the appropriate approved regional water

plans.

(2) Additional conservation strategies. Any combination of the following strategies shall be selected by
the water wholesaler, in addition to the minimum requirements of paragraph (1) of this section, if they
are necessary in order to achieve the stated water conservation goals of the plan. The commission may
require by commission order that any of the following strategies be implemented by the water supplier
if the commission determines that the strategies are necessary in order for the conservation plan to be

achieved:

(A) conservation-oriented water rates and water rate structures such as uniform or increasing block

rate schedules, and/or seasonal rates, but not flat rate or decreasing block rates;

(B) a program to assist agricultural customers in the development of conservation pollution

prevention and abatement plans;
(C) a program for reuse and/or recycling of wastewater and/or graywater; and

(D) any other water conservation practice, method, or technique which the wholesaler shows to be
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appropriate for achieving the stated goal or goals of the water conservation plan.

(3) Review and update requirements. The wholesale water supplier shall review and update its water
conservation plan, as appropriate, based on an assessment of previous five-year and ten-year targets
and any other new or updated information. A wholesale water supplier shall review and update the next
revision of its water conservation plan every five years to coincide with the regional water planning

group.

Source Note: The provisions of this §288.5 adopted to be effective May 3, 1993, 18 TexReg 2558;
amended to be effective February 21, 1999, 24 TexReg 949; amended to be effective April 27, 2000, 25
TexReg 3544; amended to be effective October 7, 2004, 29 TexReg 9384; amended to be effective
December 6, 2012, 37 TexReg 9515
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TOWN OF WESTLAKE

ORDINANCE NO. 503

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 94, UTILITIES, ARTICLE II, WATER;
WASTEWATER, OF THE TOWN OF WESTLAKE CODE OF ORDINANCES, BY
ADDING SECTION 94-33 DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN; PROVIDING A
PENALTY CLAUSE; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen finds that conservation of water and protection of
water supplies is crucial to sustaining the quality of life of the residents and businesses of the
Town of Westlake; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Westlake’s Wholesale Water Contract with the City of Fort
Worth requires that the Town of Westlake institute and apply the same rationing, conservation
measures, or restrictions to the use of water by Westlake customers for so long as any part of
Westlake’s total water supply is being furnished by Fort Worth; and

WHEREAS, The Board of Aldermen desires to comply with the Fort Worth Wholesale
Water Contract and TCEQ regulations concerning drought contingency planning.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE
TOWN OF WESTLAKE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That all matters stated in the preamble are found to be true and correct and
are incorporated herein as if copied in their entirety.

SECTION 2: That a new Section 94-33 Drought Contingency Plan is added to Chapter
94, Article II of the Town of Westlake Code of Ordinances to read as follows:

Sec. 94-33. Drought Contingency Plan

(a) Adoption

The Town of Westlake shall enforce drought contingency measures
stipulated by the City of Fort Worth via the Fort Worth Drought
Contingency Plan. Such measures will constitute the Town of Westlake
Drought Contingency Plan.

(b) Implementation

The Town shall implement the Drought Contingency Plan
whenever required by the City of Fort Worth. The Town will provide
public notice of the effective dates any time a stage of the plan is elevated
or terminated by the City of Fort Worth at the next available regularly
scheduled meeting of the Board of Aldermen.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Drought Contingency Plan Measures

1.

2,

Outdoor watering is prohibited between the hours of 10 a.m.
and 6 p.m.

Irrigation must not result in a substantial amount of water to
fall upon impervious areas instead of a lawn or landscape,
such that a constant stream of water overflows from the
lawn or landscape onto a street or other drainage area.

An irrigation system or other lawn watering device may not
operate during any form of precipitation.

An irrigation system with broken or missing sprinkler heads
may not be operated until repaired.

An irrigation system that has not been properly maintained
in a manner that prevents the waste of water may not be
operated until repaired.

All Westlake water customers supplied with irrigation by a
private water well must post signs provided exclusively by
the Town of Westlake identifying the private well irrigation
system. Each water customer must purchase the prescribed
sign, clearly post the sign in the front yard of the residence
or business, and maintain the sign for the duration of the
drought. The cost of the water well irrigation sign is $15.
Additional water conservation measures may be
implemented by the Board of Aldermen as dictated by the
City of Fort Worth

Enforcement

The Town of Westlake shall share enforcement water

restrictions and water conservation measures as required by the City
of Fort Worth.

Violations and penalties.

Any person, who violates, disobeys, omits, neglects or
refuses to comply with a measure implemented in accordance
with this section and the drought contingency plan shall be fined
up to the amount of $500.00 per violation or the maximum
amount as allowed by law for each and every violation. Each
day constitutes a new and separate violation.

SECTION 3: That all provisions of Section 94, not hereby amended shall remain in full

force and effect.



SECTION 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Aldermen of the
Town of Westlake, Texas, that sections, paragraphs, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are
severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be
declared legally invalid or unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court of
competent jurisdiction, such legal invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance since the same
would have been enacted by the Board of Aldermen of the Town of Westlake without the
incorporation in this Ordinance of any such legally invalid or unconstitutional, phrase, sentence,
paragraph or section.

SECTION 5: The Town Manager or his designee is hereby directed to file a copy of the
Water Conservation and Drought Contingency Plan and this Ordinance with the Texas
Commission on Environmental Quality in accordance with Title 30, Chapter 238 of the Texas
Administrative Code.

SECTION 6: In addition to and accumulative of all other penalties, the Town shall have
the right to seek injunctive relief for any and all violations of this ordinance.

SECTION 7: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage as
the law in such case provides.

PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS 12" DAY OF JUNE 2006.

Dox M

ATTEST: Scott Bradley, Mayor
Jéén Dwinnell, Town Secretary Trent O. Petty, Town}d%fmgér

L. Stanton Mrw Attorney
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TOWN OF WESTLAKE

ORDINANCE NO. 504

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF WESTLAKE, TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER
98, ARTICLE III, SECTION 98-83 OF THE TOWN OF WESTLAKE CODE OF
ORDINANCES BY ADDING SUB-SECTION (C) IRRIGATION CONSERVATION; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Town of Westlake’s Board of Aldermen finds conservation of water and
protection of water supplies are in the best interest of its citizens; and

WHEREAS, The Town of Westlake is obligated to implement and enforce water
conservation measures described in the Town’s wholesale water customer contract with the City
of Fort Worth; and

WHEREAS, The Board of Aldermen of the Town of Westlake desires to amend the
provisions of Section 98-83 related to irrigation requirements in the Town of Westlake, Texas:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE
TOWN OF WESTLAKE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That all matters stated in the preamble are found to be true and correct and
are incorporated herein as if copied in their entirety.

SECTION 2: Sec. 98-83 of the Westlake Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to add
sub-section (c¢) Irrigation Conservation to read as follows:

Sec. 98-83. Irrigation Requirements
(¢) Irrigation Conservation

(1) Maintenance. The owner of an irrigation system shall be responsible for
the maintenance and operation of the system. Irrigation systems must be
maintained and monitored to comply with all Town requirements including
alteration and/or limiting of irrigation scheduling during drought conditions. All
urigations systems must:

(1) prevent water to fall upon impervious areas instead of a
lawn or landscape, such that a constant stream of water
overflows from the lawn or landscape onto a street or other
drainage area.

(i1) cease operation during any form of precipitation.

(ili)  cease operation in the event a sprinkler head is broken or
missing until repaired.

(iv)  be properly maintained in a manner that prevents the waste
of water.


JGreenwood
Typewritten Text
Part B25


(2) Rain Sensing Devices and Freeze Gauges.

(1) Any commercial or industrial customer class irrigation
system installed within the Town on or after June 12, 2006
must be equipped with rain and freeze sensors.

(i1) Any commercial or industrial customer class irrigation
system installed before June 12, 2006 may not be operated
after June 12, 2007 without being equipped with rain and
freeze sensors.

(iii)  The potable water supply to lawn irrigation system shall be
protected against backflow in accordance with the most
current International Codes (IRC, IBC, IPC) and/or
ordinances adopted by the Board of Alderman relating to
cross connections. All rain and freeze sensors for
commercial customer class lawn irrigation systems shall
under go annual inspection and testing concurrent with
schedules associated with the requirements of the
International Codes.

(iv)  Any residential customer class irrigation system installed
within the Town on or after June 1, 2007 must be equipped
with rain and freeze sensors.

SECTION 3: That all provisions of Section 98-83, not hereby amended shall remain in
full force and effect.

SECTION 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Aldermen of the
Town of Westlake, Texas, that sections, paragraphs, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are
severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be
declared legally invalid or unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court of
competent jurisdiction, such legal invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance since the same
would have been enacted by the Board of Aldermen of the Town of Westlake without the
incorporation in this Ordinance of any such legally invalid or unconstitutional, phrase, sentence,
paragraph or section.

SECTION 5: Any person, who violates, disobeys, omits, neglects or refuses to comply
with a measure implemented in accordance with this section and the drought contingency plan
shall be fined up to the amount of $500.00 per violation or the maximum amount as allowed by
law for each and every violation. Each day constitutes a new and separate violation.

SECTION 6: In addition to and accumulative of all other penalties, the Town shall have
the right to seek injunctive relief for any and all violations of this ordinance.

SECTION 7: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage as
the law in such case provides.



PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS 12" DAY OF JUNE 2006.

ATTEST: Scott Bradl;?y, Mayor O
sz Aesriwety A = e

Jﬁ;(an Dwinnell, Town Secretary Trent O. Petty, Towyager

APPROVEWP AS TO-FORM:

LStanton LMW Attorney
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TOWN OF WESTLAKE

ORDINANCE NO. 735

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF WESTLAKE, TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 94,
UTILITIES, ARTICLE II, WATER AND WASTEWATER, SECTION 94-33, DROUGHT
CONTINGENCY, OF THE TOWN OF WESTLAKE CODE OF ORDINANCES, AS
AMENDED; PROVIDING A PENALTY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A CUMULATIVE CLAUSE;
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE;
AUTHORIZING PUBLICATION; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Town of Westlake Town Council finds conservation of water and protection
of water supplies are in the best interest of its citizens; and

WHEREAS, The Town of Westlake is obligated to implement and enforce drought
contingency efforts as acknowledged in the Town’s current water contract with the City of Fort Worth;
and

WHERFEAS, The Town Council desire to amend the provisions of Section 94-33 related to
drought contingency in the Town of Westlake, Texas Code of Ordinances:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
WESTLAKE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That all matters stated in the preamble are found to be true and correct and are
incorporated herein as if copied in their entirety.

SECTION 2: Chapter 94, Utilities, Article II, Water and Wastewater, Section 94-33 of the
Town of Westlake Code of Ordinances, as amended, is hereby further amended as follows:

ARTICLE II: WATER; WASTEWATER

Sec. 94-33. Drought Contingency Plan

(a) Adoption. The Town of Westlake shall enforce drought contingency measures stipulated by the
City of Fort Worth via the most recently adopted City of Fort Worth Drought Contingency
Plan. Such measures will constitute the Town of Westlake Drought Contingency Plan.

(b) Implementation. The town shall implement the drought contingency plan whenever required by
the City of Fort Worth. The town will provide public notice of the effective dates any time a
stage of the plan is elevated or terminated by the City of Fort Worth at the next available
regularly scheduled meeting of the Town Council.

(c) Drought contingency plan measures.

Ordinance 735
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(1) Outdoor watering is prohibited between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.

(2) Outdoor watering is permitted only on the day designated as an outdoor water use day
for the property’s address as adopted by Ordinance in Chapter 98 of the Town of
Westlake Code of Ordinances

(3) Irrigation must not result in a substantial amount of water to fall upon impervious areas
instead of a lawn or landscape, such that a constant stream of water overflows from the
lawn or landscape onto a street or other drainage area.

(4) An irrigation system or other lawn watering device may not operate during any form of
precipitation.

(5) An irrigation system with broken or missing sprinkler heads may not be operated until
repaired.

(6) An irrigation system that has not been properly maintained in a manner that prevents the
waste of water may not be operated until repaired.

(7) All Westlake water customers supplied with irrigation by private water well must post
signs identifying the private well irrigation system, clearly post the sign in the front
yard of the residence or business, and maintain the sign for the duration of the drought.

(8) Additional water conservation and drought contingency measures, as identified in
Chapter 98 of the Town of Westlake Code of Ordinances, may be implemented by the
Town of Westlake or as required by the City of Fort Worth.

(d) Enforcement. The Town of Westlake shall share enforcement of water restrictions, drought
contingency, and conservation measures as required by the City of Fort Worth.

SECTION 3: That all provisions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 4: That this Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other Town Ordinances and all
other provisions of other Ordinances adopted by the Town which are inconsistent with the terms or
provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 5: That any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of
this ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Code of Ordinances of the
Town of Westlake, and upon conviction shall be punishable by a fine not to exceed the sum of Two
Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense. Each day that a violation is permitted to exist shall
constitute a separate offense.

SECTION 6: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Town Council of the Town of
Westlake, Texas, that sections, paragraphs, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are severable, and if
any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be declared legally invalid or
unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such legal
invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences,
paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance since the same would have been enacted by the Town Council
of the Town of Westlake without the incorporation in this Ordinance of any such legally invalid or
unconstitutional, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section.

Ordinance 735
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SECTION 7: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage as the
law in such case provides.

PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS 22"° DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2014.

f;{éﬁfﬂ L V%M‘f

ATTEST: Laura Wheat, Mayor
Kelly Edwards:ﬂ" own Secretary Thomas E. Brym@wn Manager
APPROVED §TO FORM:
;
ﬁ‘{?/ / f‘d;
/f %gg/ Y
L.%fanton Lofvrys'T oﬁfn //éﬁomey
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Star-Telegram

808 Throckmorton St.
FORT WORTH, TX 76102
(817) 390-7761

Federal Tax ID 26-2674582

Bili To:

TOWN OF WESTLAKE
3 VILLAGE CIR STE 202
WESTLAKE, TX 76262-7940

TOWN OF WESTE

Misc Fee

THE STATE OF TE
County of Tarrant

INVOICE

Customer ID: TOW27
Invoice Number: 331557761

Invoice Date: 9/25/2014

Terms: Net due in 21 days
Due Date: 9/30/2014

PO Number:

Order Number: 33155776

Sales Rep: 073

Description: TOWN OF WESTLA

Publication Dates: 9/24/2014-9/25/2014

1 31 31 LINE $6.14 $380.72
$10.00
Net Amount: ’ $390.72

T CURISTY LYNNE HOLLAND
SOA %R Notary Public, State of Texas
My Commission Expires

R ey July 31, 2016

&
g
it

R

T

2]

Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, this day personally appeared Deborah Baylor, Bid and Legal Coordinator for the Star-
Telegram, published by the Star-Telegram, Inc. at Fort Worth, in Tarrant County, Texas; and who, after being duly sworn, did depose and say that the
attached clipping of an advertisement was published in the gbgve named paper on the listed dates: BIDS & LEGAL DEPT. STAR TELEGRAM

(817) 390-7039 \ ; D)

) L&Ls . Q v'k AN

Signed o

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME, THIS Thursday, Seglerbef/25, 2014.

O
g
Notary Public__|__ A (AL 7.‘,"‘_ / DI

Thank You For Your Payment

Remit To: Star-Telegram Customer ID: TOW27
P.O. BOX 901051 Customer Name: TOWN OF WESTLAKE
FORT WORTH, TX 76101-2051 Invoice Number: 331557761
Invoice Amount: $390.72

PO Number:
Amount Enclosed:

$




Date/Time Survey Submitted: 3/1/2018 1:11:24 PM

TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD
WATER USE SURVEY

Part B26

WATER USE IN CALENDAR YEAR: 2017
SYSTEM NAME: TOWN OF WESTLAKE SURVEY NUMBER: 0947001
OPERATOR NAME: PRIMARY USED COUNTY: TARRANT
MULTIPLE SURVEY ORG: PRIMARY USED RIVER BASIN: TRINITY
MAILING ADDRESS 1: 1500 Solana Blvd ORGANIZATION MAIN PHONE: 817-430-0941
MAILING ADDRESS 2: Bldg 7, Ste 7200 MAIN EMAIL: customerservice@westlake-tx.org
CITY/ISTATE/ZIP: Westlake TX 76262- WEB: www.westlake-tx.org
PWS NAME: TOWN OF WESTLAKE PWS CODE: 2200350
INTAKE:
Water Type County Basin Seller Name and/or Seller System Rgis\g?:/éir ’\éittierrnee?t:dr Salﬁgid((\i(sgr/N) . T:ce)elltnetc;kPerior Total Volume (gallons)
SURFACE WATER PURCHASED CITY OF FORT M N 100.00 450,208,222
WORTH
JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER
19,129,162 24,398,760 24,610,355 31,618,887 43,443,315 42,421,529 58,129,354 49,821,260 54,859,914 45,456,865 32,830,361 23,488,460
COUNTY CONNECTIONS:
COUNTY NAME TOTAL CONNECTIONS
DENTON 5
TARRANT 803

CONNECTIONS & CONNECTIONS VOLUME (GALLONS)
USAGE:
TOTAL METERED RETAIL: 810 419,521,000

Residential - Single Family 700 287,299,000

Residential - Multi Family 0 0

Institutional 28 33,202,000

Commercial 82 99,020,000

Industrial 0 0

Agriculture 0 0

Reuse 0 0
TOTAL UNMETERED: 0 30,687,222

WATER SYSTEM INFORMATION:

|Estimated full-time residential population served directly by this system

1,300
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Part B27

TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD
P.0. BOX 13231, CAPITOL STATION

AUSTIN, TX 78711-3231
2017 WATER AUDIT REPORT

A. Water Utility General Information

1.

7.
8.

9.

Water Utility Name
la. Regional Water Planning Area

1b. Address

. Contact Information

2a. Name

2b. Telephone Number
2c. Email Address

. Reporting Period

3a. Start Date
3b. End Date

. Source Water Utilization

4a. Surface Water

4b. Ground Water

. Population Served

5a. Retail Population Served

5b. Wholesale Population Served

. Utility's Length of Main Lines

TOWN OF WESTLAKE

C

3 VILLAGE CIR STE 202

WESTLAKE, TX 76262-7940

Jarrod Greenwood

(817) 490-5717

joreenwood@westlake-tx.org

01/01/2017
12/31/2017

100.00

0.00

1,300

34.00

Total Retail Metered Connections - Active and Inactive

810

Number of Wholesale Connections Served

Service Connection Density

0

23.82

10. Average Yearly System Operating Pressure

11. Volume Units of Measure

. System Input Volume

12. Volume of Water Intake

13. Produced Water

13a. Production Meter Accuracy

13b. Corrected Input Volume

14. Total Treated Purchased Water

85.00

Gallons

0

0

0.0

0

450,208,222

14a. Treated Purchased Water Meter Accuracy

100.0

14b. Corrected Treated Purchased Water Volume

450,208,222

%
%

Assessment
Scale

miles 4

connections per mile

psi 2
gallons
gallons N/A
% N/A
gallons
gallons 5
% 5
gallons

4/5/2018 4:37:06 PM
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TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD
P.0. BOX 13231, CAPITOL STATION

AUSTIN, TX 78711-3231
2017 WATER AUDIT REPORT

15. Total Treated Wholesale Water Sales

15a. Treated Wholesale Water Meter Accuracy

0.0

15b. Corrected Treated Wholesale Water Sales Volume

16. Total System Input Volume

Line 13b + Line 14b - Line 15b

C. Authorized Consumption
17. Billed Metered
18. Billed Unmetered

19. Unbilled Metered
20. Unbilled Unmetered

21. Total Authorized Consumption

D. Water Losses

22. Water Losses
Line 16 - Line 21

E. Apparent Losses

23. Average Customer Meter Accuracy

24. Customer Meter Accuracy Loss

0

450,208,222

419,521,000

0

0

5,627,603

425,148,603

25,059,619

99.00

4,237,586

25. Systematic Data Handling Discrepancy

26. Unauthorized Consumption
27. Total Apparent Losses

F. Real Losses
28. Reported Breaks and Leaks
29. Unreported Loss

30. Total Real Losses
Line 28 + Line 29

31. Total Water Losses
Line 27 + Line 30

32. Non-Revenue Water
Line 31 + Line 19 + Line 20

0

1,125,521

5,363,106

0

19,696,513

19,696,513

25,059,619

30,687,222

G. Technical Performance Indicator for Apparent Loss

33. Apparent Losses Normalized
Line 27 / Line 7 / 365

18.14

gallons N/A

% N/A

gallons

gallons

Assessment

Scale

gallons 4

gallons 5

gallons 5

gallons 5

gallons

gallons

% 2

gallons

gallons 2

gallons 2

gallons

gallons 2

gallons 2

gallons

gallons

gallons

gallons lost per
connection per day

4/5/2018 4:37:06 PM
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TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD
P.0. BOX 13231, CAPITOL STATION

AUSTIN, TX 78711-3231

2017 WATER AUDIT REPORT

H. Technical Performance Indicators for Real Loss

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

Real Loss Volume

Line 30

Unavoidable Annual Real Losses Volume
(5.41 * Line 6 + (Line 7 *0.15)) * 365 * Line 10

Infrastructure Leakage Index
Line 34 / Line 35

Real Losses Normalized - Service Connections
Line 34/ Line 7 / 365

Real Losses Normalized - Main Lines
Line 34/ Line 6/ 365

I. Financial Performance Indicators

39.

40.
41.

42.

43.
44,

45.

46.
. System Losses and Gallons Per Capita per Day (GPCD)

47.
48.

49.

Total Apparent Losses
Line 27

Retail Price of Water

Cost of Apparent Losses
Line 39 x Line 40

Total Real Losses
Line 30
Variable Production Cost of Water

Cost of Real Losses
Line 42 x Line 43

Total Cost Impact of Apparent and Real Losses
Line 41 + Line 44

Total Assessment Score

Total Water Loss - Percentage
GPCD Input

Line 16 / Line 5a/ 365

GPCD Loss

Line 31/ Line 5a/ 365

K. Wholesale Factor Adjustments

50. Percent of Treated Wholesale Water Traveling through

General Distribution System

19,696,513

0.00

0.00

1587.15

5,363,106

0.00539

$28,907.14

19,696,513

1,045.99574

$20,602,468,511.81

$20,602,497,418.95

79

5.57

949

53

0.00

gallons

gallons

I.L.I

gallons lost per
connection per day

gallons lost per

mile per day
Assessment
Scale
gallons
$/gallons 5
gallons
$/gallons 5

%

%

4/5/2018 4:37:06 PM
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TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD
P.0. BOX 13231, CAPITOL STATION

AUSTIN, TX 78711-3231
2017 WATER AUDIT REPORT

51. Volume of Treated Wholesale Water Traveling through 0 gallons
General Distribution System

(Line 50/100) * Line 15b

52. Wholesale Factor 0.00
Line 15b / (Line 13b + Line 14b)

53. Adjusted Real Loss Volume 19,696,513 gallons

((1 - Line 52) x (Line 30 * Line 50/ 100)) +
(Line 30 - (Line 30 * Line 50/100))

54. Adjusted Cost of Real Losses $20,602,468,511.81

((1 - Line 52) x (Line 44 * Line 50/ 100)) +
(Line 44 - (Line 44 * Line 50/100))

55. Adjusted Total Water Loss Volume 25,059,619 gallons

((2 - Line 52) x (Line 31 * Line 50 / 100)) +
(Line 31 - (Line 31 * Line 50/100))

56. Adjusted Total Cost Impact of Apparent and Real Losses $20,602,497,418.95

((1 - Line 52) x (Line 45 * Line 50 / 100)) +
(Line 45 - (Line 45 * Line 50/100))

57. Adjusted Real Loss Per Connection 0.00 gallons lost per
((1 - Line 52) x (Line 37 * Line 50 / 100)) + connection per day
(Line 37 - (Line 37 * Line 50/100))
((1 - Line 52) x (Line 38 * Line 50 / 100)) + mile per day
(Line 38 - (Line 38 * Line 50/100))
59. Adjusted Infrastructure Leakage Index 0.00 I.L.

((2 - Line 52) x (Line 36 * Line 50 / 100)) +
(Line 36 - (Line 36 * Line 50/100))

60. Adjusted Total Water Loss - Percentage 557 %

((1 - Line 52) x (Line 47 * Line 50 / 100)) +
(Line 47 - (Line 47 * Line 50/100))

61. Adjusted GPCD Loss 53

((1 - Line 52) x (Line 49 * Line 50/ 100)) +
(Line 49 - (Line 49 * Line 50/100))

Comments

4/5/2018 4:37:06 PM Page 4 of 4



TWDB-0148
Version: 6-2-15

Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part D5”)

Part C: Financial Information

Regional or wholesale providers, complete questions 29-31.
Retail providers, complete questions 32-34.

29. List top TEN customers of the system by annual usage in gallons and percentage of total usage,

including whether any are in bankruptcy.

Customer Name

Annual Usage
(gal)

Percent of Usage

Bankruptcy
(Y/N)

N/A

Comments:

30. List the top TEN customers of the system by gross revenues and percent of total revenues, including

whether any are in bankruptcy

Customer Name

Annual
Revenue($)

Percent of Revenue

Bankruptcy
(Y/N)

N/A

10



TWDB-0148
Version: 6-2-15

Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part D5”)

31. Provide a summary of the wholesale contracts with customers

Annual
Minimum Usage fee | Operations Annual
Contract Type annual per 1,000 and Capital Annual
amount gallons Maintenance Costs Other
Service
N/A
32. List top TEN customers of the water and/or wastewater system by annual revenue with
corresponding usage and percentage of total use, including whether any are in bankruptcy.
a. WATER
Annual Usage Percent of Total Bankruptcy
Customer Name (gal) Water Revenue (YIN)

Deloitte 17,228,000 115 N

Fidelity Real Estate 14,497,000 9.8 N

Town of Westlake 6,435,000 8.2 N

Vaquero Club 1,974,000 3.9 N

HW 2421 Bam 2,676,000 3.0 N

Vaquero HOA 2,685,000 1.9 N

Hillwood Properties 3.333,000 1.6 N

Charles Schwab & Co 3,719,000 1.6 N
Westlake Academy 2,545,000 1.4 N
Glenwyck Farms H 2,142,000D .8 N

11



TWDB-0148
Version: 6-2-15

Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part D5”)

b. WASTEWATER

Annual Usage Percent of Total Bankruptcy
Customer Name (gal) Wastewater Revenue (YIN)
Deloitte 18,514,000 13.4 N
Fidelity Real Estate 13,837,000 11-7 N
Vaquero Club 1,639,000 2.3 N
HW 2421 2,795,000 2.1 N
RES326 Leasing 1,626,000 1.0 N
Calais Custom Homes 252,000 0.9 N
Westlake Academy 661,000 0.8 N
Quick Trip Corporation 767,000 0.6 N
Pentavia Custom Homes 232,000 0.6 N
Vernon Wells 762,000 0.6 N

33. Current Average Residential Usage and Rate Information
Avg.
Date of Last Avg. Monthly
Rate Monthly Avg. Increase Projected Monthly
Increase Usage Monthly Bill Per Increase Necessary
Service (gallons) %) Customer($) ($)
Water 1-23-2017 45,000 307.50 0.00 0.00
Wastewater 1-23-2017 15,000 161.50 0.00 0.00
34. Provide the number of customers for each of the past five years.
Year Number of
Customers
2017 792
2016 759
2015 660
2014 568
2013 541

All applicants complete questions 35-51 of the financial section, as applicable.

35.

Disclose all issues that may affect the project or the applicant's ability to issue and/or repay debt

(such as anticipated lawsuits, judgments, bankruptcies, major customer closings, etc.).

None

36.

Yes Ifyes,d

Has the applicant ever defaulted on any debt?

circumstances surrounding prior default(s).

X

No

12



TWDB-0148
Version: 6-2-15

Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part D5”)

37. Does the applicant have taxing authority?
XI  Yes
[] No

38. Provide the last five-years of data showing total taxable assessed valuation including net ad
valorem taxes levied, corresponding tax rate (detailing debt service and general purposes), and
tax collection rate.

Fiscal Percentage | Percentage
Year Net Taxable Tax General Interest & Tax Current Total
Ending Assessed Value ($) | Rate Fund Sinking Fund Levy $ | Collections | Collections
2017 1105075652 .13695 | .12882 .00813 1514086 | NA NA
2016 946567754 15634 | .13947 .01687 1470666 | 98.16 99.77
2015 901719544 .15634 | .13710 .01924 1450643 | 96.59 98.02
2014 898462598 .15684 | .13888 .01796 1350188 | 99.23 99.20
2013 886227159 .15684 | .14 .01487 1352097 | 99.90 99.93

Comments:

39. Attach the last five-years of tax assessed values delineated by Classification (Residential,
Commercial and Industrial). If applicant does not have taxing authority, provide the
assessed values of the county.

a) = 2017 attached (See Table 2 in Attached Annual Continuing Disclosure Report)
b) X 2016 attached (See Table 2 in Attached Annual Continuing Disclosure Report)
c) X 2015 attached (See Table 2 in Attached Annual Continuing Disclosure Report)
d) = 2014 attached (See Table 2 in Attached Annual Continuing Disclosure Report)
e) = 2013 attached (See Table 2 in Attached Annual Continuing Disclosure Report)
40. Attach the direct and overlapping tax rate table:
X Attached tax rate table
41. Provide the current top TEN taxpayers showing percentage of ownership to total assessed

valuation. State if any are in bankruptcy and explain anticipated prospective impacts in the

Comments blank, below. If any of these have changed in the past three years, please provide
information on the changes to the top ten.

Taxpayer Name

Assessed Value Percent of Total Bankruptcy (Y/N)

Attachment C-41

See CAFR Pg. 105,
Exhibit S-6
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TWDB-0148
Version: 6-2-15

Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part D5”)

Comments:

42. Provide the maximum tax rate permitted by law per $100 of property value. $1.50

43. Does the applicant collect sales tax?

Yes

Provide the sales tax collection history for the past five years.

Fiscal Year
Ending

Total Collections

2016

See Table 11 in attached Annual Continue Disclosure Report, Part C-43

2015

See Table 11 in attached Annual Continue Disclosure Report, Part C-43

2014

See Table 11 in attached Annual Continue Disclosure Report, Part C-43

2013

2012

[] No

44, Indicate the tax status of the proposed loan?
] Tax-Exempt
X Taxable

45, Proforma (Select one of the four listed below) Please be sure the proforma reflects the
schedule requested, including multi-phased funding options.
a. System revenues are anticipated to be used to repay the proposed debt. Attach a proforma
indicating the following information for each year the debt is outstanding:

[]
[]
[]
[]

projected gross revenues

operating and maintenance expenditures

outstanding and proposed debt service requirements

net revenues available for debt service and coverage of current and proposed
debt paid from revenues

b. Taxes are anticipated to be used to repay the proposed debt. Attach a pro forma indicating
the following information for each year the debt is outstanding:

X
X
X

outstanding and proposed debt service requirements
the tax rate necessary to repay current and proposed debt paid from taxes
list the assumed collection rate and tax base used to prepare the schedule

c. Combination of system revenues and taxes to be used to repay the proposed debt. Attach a
pro forma indicating the following information for each year the debt is outstanding:

[

L0

projected gross revenues, operating and maintenance expenditures, net revenues
available for debt service

outstanding and proposed debt service requirements

the tax rate necessary to pay the current and proposed debt

list the assumed collection rate and tax base used to prepare the schedule

14



TWDB-0148
Version: 6-2-15

Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part D5”)

46.

47.

48.

49.

d. Another type of pledge will be used to repay the proposed debt. Attach a pro forma with
information for each year the debt is outstanding, which includes projected revenues, annual
expenditures, outstanding debt requirements, and revenues available for debt service.

[] Attached

Attach a FIVE year comparative system operating statement (not condensed) including audited
prior years and an unaudited year-to-date statement. Unaudited year-to-date statement must
reflect the financial status for a period not exceeding the latest six months.

X Attached Operating Statement.

Attach ONE copy of an annual audit of financial statements, including the management letter, for
the preceding fiscal year prepared by a certified public accountant or firm of accountants and, if
the last annual audit was more than 6 months ago, then, provide interim financial information.

[] Attached Annual Audit

[] Attached Management Letter

] If applicable, attached interim financial information

Does the applicant have any outstanding debt? (Check all that apply)
Yes, General obligation debt

[]  Yes, Revenue debt

D Yes, Authorized but unissued debt

[] No

Attach a listing of total outstanding debt and identify the debt holder. Segregate by type (General
Obligation or Revenue) and present a consolidated schedule for each, showing total annual
requirements. Note any authorized but unissued debt.

a. General Obligation Debt:

X Yes
X Attached schedule. The schedule should also identify the debt
holder.
[] No
b. Revenue:
[] Yes
] Attached schedule. The schedule should also identify the debt
holder.
[] No
C. Authorized by Unissued Debt:
[] Yes
] Attached schedule. The schedule should also identify the debt
holder.
[] No

15



TWDB-0148
Version: 6-2-15

Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part D5”)

50.

51.

52.

List the ten largest employers of the Applicant’s service area:

Name

Number of Employees

Attached Part C 50

Comments (example, any anticipated changes to the tax base, employers etc.)

Provide any current bond ratings with date received.

Standard &
Poor’s

Date
Received

Moody’s

Date
Received

Fitch

Date
Received

G.0O.

Revenue

Is the project intended to allow the applicant to provide or receive water or sewer services to or

from another entity?

X Yes. If yes, the applicant must attach, at a minimum, the proposed agreement, contract,
or other documentation establishing the service relationship, with the final and
binding agreements provided prior to loan closing.
X Attached

[] No.
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Part C39

Municipal Secondary Market

This cover sheet is provided with a submission of information to th

Disclosure Information Cover Sheet

e Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) Dataport of the

Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) pursuant to Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Rule 15¢2-12.

Obligations for which this Submission of Information is Being Made:
Name of [ssuer and/or Obligor: Town of Westlake, Texas

Name of Issue(s): See Attachment

CUSIP Numbers to which the information filed
__ X Nine-digit numbers:See Attachment
Six-digit number if information filed relates to all

Event Filing Pursuant to Rule 15¢2-12:

__ Principal/interest payment delinquency

__ Non-payment related default

relates:

securities of the issuer:

Additional/Voluntary Disclosure:
__ Amendment to continuing disclosure undertaking

__ Change in obligated person

Unscheduled draws on debt service reserve reflecting financial difficulties Notice to investor pursuant to bond documents

__Unscheduled draw on credit enhancement reflecting financial difficulties
__Substitution of credit or liquidity provider, or its failure to perform

__ Adverse tax opinion or event affecting the tax-exempt status
__Modification to rights of security holders

__ Bondcall

__ Defeasance

___Release, substitution or sale of prop. securing repayment of the securities
__ Rating change

_ Failure to provide event filing information as required

__ Tender offer/secondary market purchases

_ Communication from the Internal Revenue Service

__ Bid for auction rate or other securities

__ Capital or other financing plan

__ Litigation/enforcement action

__ Change in tender agent, remarketing agent or other
ongoing party

__ Derivative or other similar transaction

___ Other Event-based disclosures

__ Merger/consolidation/acquisition, and sale of all or substantially all assets

Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event

_ Successor, Additional or Change in Trustee

Financial or Operating Information being Submitted Herewith:

_X_Annual Financial Report or CAFR
~X_Financial Information & Operating Datz
____ Other (describe)

Fiscal Period Covered: September 30, 2016
___ Monthly _ Quarterly _X_ Annual

Contact Information:

Name of Contact Person: Debbie Piper
Email Address: dpiper@westlake-tx.org
Voice Telephone Number: 817-490-5712

Employer: Town of Westlake, Texas

Above contact information is for: X The Issuer

Date: March 6, 2017

___ Other:

Title: Finance Director
Web Site Address: http://www.westlake-tx.org/
Fax Number: 817-430-1812

__ The Obligor _ The Dissemination Agen


JGreenwood
Typewritten Text
Part C39


ATTACHMENT TO RULE 15¢2-12 FILING COVER SHEET
TOWN OF WESTLAKE, TEXAS
CUSIP NUMBERS OF SECURITIES COVERED BY THIS FILING

Issuer #96048P
(1) 89,125,000 General Obligation (5) 81,910,000 General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2007 Refunding Bonds, Series 2014
Maturity CUSIP No. Maturity CUSIP No.
5/1/2017 96048PCF1 2/15/2028 96048PFA9
2/15/2029 96048PFB7
(2) 87,375,000 General Obligation 2/15/2030 96048PFC5
Refunding Bonds, Series 2011 2/15/2031 96048PFD3
Maturity CUSIP No. 2/15/2032 96048PFE1
2/15/2018 96048PDC7
2/15/2019 96048PDD5 (6) 35,795,000 General Obligation
2/15/2020 96048PDE3 Refunding Bonds, Series 2017
2/15/2021 96048PDF0 Maturity CUSIP No.
2/15/2022 96048PDGS 2/15/2018 96048PFV3
2/15/2023 96048PDH6 2/15/2019 96048PFW1
2/15/2024 96048PDJ2 2/15/2020 96048PFX9
2/15/2025 96048PDK9 2/15/2021 96048PFY7
2/15/2026 96048PDL7 2/15/2022 96048PFZ4
2/15/2027 96048PDM5 2/15/2023 96048PGAS
2/15/2028 96048PDN3 2/15/2024 96048PGB6
2/15/2025 96048PGC4
(3) 32,200,000 General Obligation 2/15/2026 96048PGD2
Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 2/15/2027 96048PGEO
Maturity CUSIP No. 2/15/2028 96048PGF7
2/15/2018 96048PDU7 2/15/2029 96048PGG5
2/15/2019 96048PDV5 2/15/2030 96048PGH3
2/15/2020 96048PDW3 2/15/2031 96048PGJ9
2/15/2022 96048PDY9 2/15/2032 96048PGK6
2/15/2025 96048PEA0
2/15/2028 96048PEBS

(4) $9,320,000 Combination Tax & Revenue
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2013

Maturity CUSIP No.
2/15/2018 96048PEG7
2/15/2019 96048PEHS
2/15/2020 96048PEJ1
2/15/2021 96048PEKS
2/15/2022 96048PEL6
2/15/2024 96048PEM4
2/15/2026 96048PEN2
2/15/2028 96048PEP7
2/15/2029 96048PEQ5
2/15/2030 96048PER3
2/15/2031 96048PES1
2/15/2033 96048PEU6
2/15/2036 96048PEV4
2/15/2039 96048PEW2

2/15/2043 96048PEX0



ANNUAL CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REPORT
for fiscal year ended September 30, 2016

TOWN OF WESTLAKE, TEXAS
(Tarrant and Denton Counties)

The Town of Westlake, Texas (the "Issuer") is providing this Annual Continuing Disclosure Report, which includes updated quantitative
financial information and operating data of the general type included in tables that were part of its Official Statement(s) relating to the
securities listed in the preceding Attachment, although table numbers herein may vary from those in such Official Statement(s).

The Issuer's audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for its most recent fiscal year end is being filed simultaneously
herewith.

Table 1 - Current Appraised Valuation, Exemptions and Tax Supported Debt

Tarrant County Denton County Total
Total Market Value of Issuer Property for FY 2016-17 $1,568,214,122 $ 20,043,379 $1,588,257,501
Homestead Cap Loss (62,483,152) - (62,483,152)
Ag Deferrals (Productivity Loss) (78,172,761) (16,643,604) (94,816,365)
Total Appraised Value of Issuer Property for FY 2016-17 $1,427,558,209 $ 3,399,775 $1,430,957,984
Less Exemptions:
Homestead Exemption - Local Option (General) (100,346,357) - (100,346,357)
Homestead Exemption - Local Option (Over 65) (595,000) - (595,000)
Abatements'” (135,433,473) - (135,433.473)
Reduction for Cases Before ARB (59,278,265) - (59,278,265)
Reduction for Incomplete/In Process Accounts (12,758,433) - (12,758,433)
Absolute Exemptions (12,352,533) (2,241,248) (14,593,781)
Other Exemptions, Reductions (2,877,023) - (2,877,023)
Total Adjustments, Exemptions (323,641,084) (2,241,248) (325,882,332)
Taxable Assessed Valuation for FY 2016-17 $1,103917,125 § 1,158,527 $1.105,075,652
Gross Principal Amount of Ad Valorem Tax Supported Debt as of 12/31/2016 $ 36,322,000
Less: Principal Amount Such Debt Being Repaid From Sources Other Than Ad Valorem Taxes (34,695,000)
Net Amount of Ad Valorem Tax Supported Debt as of 12/31/2016 $ 1,627,000
Debt Service Fund Balance as of 09/30/2016 $ 30,468

Sources: Tarrant and Denton Central Appraisal Districts; Issuer financial statements.
(1) The Issuer has granted partial tax abatements for two major facilities within its boundaries, including those used by Deloitte LLP and Fidelity Investments. Such
abatements have 10-year terms and are subject to various terms and conditions, including in the case of both companies the satisfaction of certain employment targets,

in order to qualify for abatement in any given year. The Deloitte LLP abatement expires October 2021, and the Fidelity Investments abatement expires November 2019.



Table 2 - Market Valuation and Exemptions by Category

Fiscal Years Ending September 30,

2017 2016 2015
Market Valuation Amount % of Total Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
Real Estate, Residential $ 879,417,798 55.37% $ 669,171,945 50.52% $ 617,469,021 48.62%
Real Estate, Commercial 466,391,373 29.36% 455,595,734 34.40% 427,483,453  33.66%
Personal Prop, Comml/Indust 146,514,438 9.22% 122,122,330 9.22% 146,956,302 11.57%
Agricultural Properties 95,250,592 6.00% 77,073,547 5.82% 77,486,314  6.10%
Utilities 683,300 0.04% 555,495 0.04% 497,410  0.04%
Total Market Valuation 1,588,257,501 100.00% 1,324,519,051 100.00% 1,269,892,500 100.00%
Less Exemptions & Reductions
Homestead Cap Loss (62,483,152) (5,553,073) (16,626,670)
Agricultural, Productivity Loss (94,816,365) (76,467,922) (76,873,063)
Homestead - Local Option (100,346,357) (85,558,380) (86,061,862)
Over 65 - Local Option (595,000) (605,000) (561,700)
Disabled - Local Option - - -
Abatements'" (135,433,473) (162,354,187) (163,938,263)
Reduction for ARB Cases (59,278,265) (9,842,969) (7,517,937)
Reduction for Incomplete Accts (12,758,433) (22,863,722) (1,780,074)
Absolute Exemptions (14,593,781) (14,706,044) (14,813,387)
Disabled Veterans - - -
Nominal Value - - -
Other Exemptions, Reductions (2,877,023) - -
Net Taxable Assessed Valuation  $ 1,105,075,652 $ 946,567,754 $ 901,719,544
Fiscal Years Ending September 30,
2014 2013
Market Valuation Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
Real Estate, Residential $ 574,506,369 46.22% $ 545,598,263 44.65%
Real Estate, Commercial 438,047,262 35.24% 443,779,916 36.31%
Personal Prop., Commercial/Indust. 151,927,427 12.22% 140,063,086 11.46%
Agricultural Properties 78,589,129 6.32% 92,015,149 7.53%
Utilities - 0.00% 584,960 0.05%
Total Market Valuation 1,243,070,187 100.00% 1,222,041,374 100.00%
Less Exemptions & Reductions
Homestead Cap Loss (2,499,033) (4,783,528)
Agricultural, Productivity Loss (76,828,073) (80,257,943)
Homestead - Local Option (77,856,727) (72,510,736)
Over 65 - Local Option (551,700) (535,000)
Disabled - Local Option - (10,000)

Abatements'” (172,174,981) (168,861,045)

Reduction for ARB Cases - -

Reduction for Incomplete Accts (2,574,101) (2,695,142)
Absolute Exemptions (12,122,064) (6,148,041)
Disabled Veterans - (12,000)
Nominal Value (910) (780)
Other Exemptions, Reductions - -
Net Taxable Assessed Valuation $ 898,462,598 $ 886,227,159

Source: Tarrant and Denton Central Appraisal Districts.
(1) The Issuer has granted partial tax abatements for two major facilities within its boundaries, including those used by Deloitte LLP and Fidelity Investments. Such
abatements have 10-year terms and are subject to various terms and conditions, including in the case of both companies the satisfaction of certain employment targets,

in order to qualify for abatement in any given year. The Deloitte LLP abatement expires October 2021, and the Fidelity Investments abatement expires November 2019.
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Table 3 - Tax Rates, Levies, Collections and Ratios
Fiscal Years Ending September 30,

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Bond Tax Rate $ 0.00813 $ 0.01687 $ 0.01924 $ 0.01796 $ 0.01487
Maintenance Tax Rate 0.12882 0.13947 0.13710 0.13888 0.14197
Total Tax Rate $ 0.13695 $ 0.15634 § 0.15634 $ 0.15684 $ 0.15684
Taxable Assessed Valuation $ 1,105,575,652 $ 946,567,764 $ 901,719,544 $ 898,462,598 § 886,227,159
Total Ad Valorem Taxes Levied  $ 1,514,086 $ 1,470,666 $ 1,450,643 $ 1,350,188 $ 1,352,097
Current Collection Ratio In process 98.16% 96.59% 99.23% 99.90%
Total Collection Ratio In process 99.77% 98.02% 99.20% 99.93%

Gross Ad Valorem Tax Debt”  § 34,677,000 $ 27,142,000 $ 28,232,000 $ 29,304,000 $ 30,212,000

Gross Tax Debt Ratio to TAV 3.14% 2.87% 3.13% 3.26% 3.41%

Net Ad Valorem Tax Debt'” $ 1,552,000 $ 1,627,000 $ 1,727,000 $ 1,824,000 $ 1,917,000
Net Tax Debt Ratio to TAV 0.14% 0.17% 0.19% 0.20% 0.22%
Estimated Population 1,200 1,200 1,194 1,194 1,014
TAV per Capita $ 921,313 § 788,806 $ 755209 $ 752,481 § 873,991
Gross Tax Debt per Capita'” $ 28,897.50 $ 2261833 $  23,644.89 § 2454271 $  29,794.87
Net Tax Debt per Capita® $ 1,293.33  § 1,355.83 § 1,446.40 $  1,527.64 $ 1,890.53

Sources: The District's audited financial statements; Tarrant and Denton Central Appraisal Districts; Texas Municipal Reports of the Municipal Advisory Council of Texas.
(1) As of fiscal year end,; most recent fiscal year end is a projection and is subject to change.

(2) Only that portion of aggregate debt service that is attributable to the Issuer's Combination Tax and Revenue Certificate of Obligation, Series 2011 (the "Series 2011
Certificate"), with outstanding principal of $1,627,000 as of 09/30/ 2016, is currently being paid from ad valorem tax revenues. Although the pledge of the Issuer's

ad valorem tax continues for as long as all debt reflected in this table remains outstanding, the Issuer may use other funds to pay debt service.

(3) In certain years, the total collection ratio may be slightly lower than the current collection ratio due to refunds attributable to a prior tax year.

Table 4 - Largest Taxpayers

Type of TAV for FY % of TAV
Name Business'” 2016-17 $ 1,105,075.652
BRE Solana LLC Commercial Real Estate $ 173,218,573 15.67%
FMR Texas [ LLC/Ltd. Partnership Commercial Real Estate 80,939,255 7.32%
DCLI, LLC Conference Center 47,521,483 4.30%
Fidelity Investments Inc. Financial Services 39,098,584 3.54%
Dallas MTA LP (dba Verizon Wireless Wireless Telecommunications 38,537,456 3.49%
Marsh USA Inc. Risk Mgt., Insurance 15,402,373 1.39%
Lexington TNI Westlake, LP Commercial Real Estate/REIT 14,618,533 1.32%
Prince Whipple Trust Private Trust 7,070,782 0.64%
Keith Hutton Personal 6,391,904 0.58%
Vernon Wells III and Charlene Wells Personal 5,837,063 0.53%
Totals $ 428.636.006 38.26%

Source: Tarrant and Denton Central Appraisal Districts.
(1) Of the top ten taxpayers, the valuations of three are related solely to commercial real estate, representing approximately 24% of the Issuer's total tax base. The valuations

of such property may fluctuate substantially from year to year. A downturn in the commercial real estate market could adversely affect the Issuer's tax base.



Table 5 - Debt Service Requirements

The following schedule sets forth the total debt service requirements of the Issuer's outstanding bonds and certificates of obligation for
which it has levied its ad valorem tax (although a portion of those obligations may be paid from other sources):

Principal Balance % of
Year End Ad Valorem Tax Debt'" at 02/15/2017 Principal
9/30 Principal Interest Total $35,787,000 Retired
2017 $ 1,110,000 $ 1,123,716 $ 2,233,716  $ 34,677,000 3.10%
2018 1,339,000 1,170,009 2,509,009 33,338,000 6.84%
2019 1,378,000 1,132,997 2,510,997 31,960,000 10.69%
2020 1,422,000 1,094,590 2,516,590 30,538,000 14.67%
2021 1,456,000 1,054,599 2,510,599 29,082,000 18.74%
2022 1,501,000 1,012,862 2,513,862 27,581,000 22.93%
2023 1,541,000 969,406 2,510,406 26,040,000 27.24%
2024 1,591,000 922,147 2,513,147 24,449,000 31.68%
2025 1,621,000 870,063 2,491,063 22,828,000 36.21%
2026 1,677,000 814,829 2,491,829 21,151,000 40.90%
2027 1,728,000 756,557 2,484,557 19,423,000 45.73%
2028 1,794,000 695,165 2,489,165 17,629,000 50.74%
2029 1,866,000 629,983 2,495,983 15,763,000 55.95%
2030 1,928,000 561,122 2,489,122 13,835,000 61.34%
2031 2,005,000 489,731 2,494,731 11,830,000 66.94%
2032 2,070,000 411,444 2,481,444 9,760,000 72.73%
2033 625,000 358,619 983,619 9,135,000 74.47%
2034 650,000 336,269 986,269 8,485,000 76.29%
2035 675,000 313,019 988,019 7,810,000 78.18%
2036 700,000 288,869 988,869 7,110,000 80.13%
2037 720,000 264,613 984,613 6,390,000 82.14%
2038 745,000 238,478 983,478 5,645,000 84.23%
2039 775,000 209,550 984,550 4,870,000 86.39%
2040 805,000 178,700 983,700 4,065,000 88.64%
2041 840,000 145,800 985,800 3,225,000 90.99%
2042 875,000 111,500 986,500 2,350,000 93.43%
2043 910,000 75,800 985,800 1,440,000 95.98%
2044 460,000 48,400 508,400 980,000 97.26%
2045 480,000 29,600 509,600 500,000 98.60%
2046 500,000 10,000 510,000 - 100.00%

Totals $ 35,787,000 $ 16318435 § 52,105.435

(1) Since the Issuer's fiscal year ended 09/30/2016, the Issuer issued refunding bonds and certificates of obligation. This debt service schedule takes

into account both such financings (neither of which is reflected in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report filed together herewith.



Table 6 - Authorized But Unissued Ad Valorem Tax Debt

Voter Authorized but Unissued Ad Valorem Tax Bonds: None
Ad Valorem Tax Bond Elections Planned for Next 12 Months: None
New Money Ad Valorem Tax Debt Not Requiring Voter Approval Planned During Next 12 Months: Undetermined

Table 7 - Other Obligations
As of September 30, 2016, the Issuer had certain other proprietary, contractual, special revenue and lease obligations payable from and

secured by sources other than ad valorem taxes as described more fully in Note 5 to the audited financial statements included in the Issuer's
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report filed together herewith (beginning on page 54).

Table 8 - Tax Adequacy

Gross Ad Est. Gross Net Ad Est. Net

Valorem Tax Ad Valorem Valorem Tax Ad Valorem

Fiscal Year Debt Service Tax Rate "? Debt Service Tax Rate "?
Current Year (2016-17) $2,233,716 $0.2021 $113,148 $0.0102
Maximum Annual Debt Service $2,516,590 $0.2277 $151,800 $0.0137
Average Annual Debt Service $1,736,848 $0.1572 $130,375 $0.0118

(1) Priorto FYE 09/30/2011, the Issuer had not levied an ad valorem tax. Instead it paid debt service on its ad valorem tax debt from other lawfully available

revenues. Only that portion of aggregate debt service that is attributable to the Issuer's Series 2011 Certificate, with an outstanding principal balance as of  09/30/2016
of $1,627,000 , is currently being paid from ad valorem tax revenues. Although the pledge of the Issuer's ad valorem tax continues for as long as all debt reflected in this
table remains outstanding, the Issuer may use other funds to pay debt service.

(2) The Estimated Ad Valorem Tax Rate is the rate that would be required to be levied to pay debt service assuming no other source of payment, and further assuming a

100% collection ratio applied to the Issuer's current Taxable Assessed Valuation.



Table 9 - General Fund Summary Revenues and Expenditures

Fiscal Years Ended September 30,

Revenues: 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Sales tax $ 3,345,688 $ 3,587,323  $ 3,471,344 § 3,061,948 $ 2,534,774
Property tax 1,318,058 1,256,796 1,198,374 1,236,978 1,271,975
Mixed beverage tax 61,476 59,184 51,602 39,727 38,286
Franchise tax 930,043 963,040 795,322 734,935 664,991
Interest income 18,911 10,078 10,503 9,286 14,060
Building permits and fees 2,715,236 1,200,790 1,175,075 969,735 598,394
Fines and penalties 796,014 734,152 730,441 695,167 622,338
Intergovernmental - 3,810 3,540 10,331 -
Contributions 13,299 10,000 - 11,094 325,520
Miscellaneous 227,886 81,539 70,338 73.933 80,936

Total Revenues 9,426,611 7,906,712 7,506,539 6,843,134 6,151,274

Expenditures:

General government and admin. 3,280,507 2,411,239 2,236,360 1,910,545 1,878,885
Public safety 2,453,857 2,490,551 2,146,587 1,967,584 2,224,469
Cultural and recreational 185,923 130,322 123,541 113,924 111,765
Public works 773,751 744,028 615,781 532,675 391,115
Capital outlay 50,563 748,297 20,875 50,014 -
Debt service 48,247 48,237 48,240 - -
Total Operating Expenditures 6,792,848 6,572,674 5,191,384 4,574,742 4,606,234
Excess (deficiency) of revs over ex 2,633,763 1,334,038 2,315,155 2,268,392 1,545,040

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from sale of assets - - - - R

Note proceeds - - 34,710 - -
Other proceeds (insurance, asset sales; - 162,059
Transfers in'" 277,878 521,320 56,419 609,826 583,857
Transfers out'” (912,718) (2.290,385) (1,504,397) __ (1,090,392) (880.,486)
Total Other Sources (Uses) (634,840) (1,607,006) (1.413.,268) (480,566) (296.,629)
Net Change in Fund Balance 1,998,923 (272,968) 901,887 1,787,826 1,248,411
Beginning Fund Balance 7,680,550 7,953,518 7,051,631 5,263,805 4,015,394
Ending Fund Balance $ 9,679,473 $ 7,680,550 ' $ 7,953,518 § 7,051,631 $ 5,263,805

Source: Derived from Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, please refer directly to such Reports for important Notes and more detailed information.
(1) Detailed information relating to transfers may be found in the notes to the audited financial statements included in the Issuer's Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports.

For the most recent fiscal year, see Note 9 on page 63 of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report filed together herewith.



Table 9A - Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities - Fiscal Years Ended September 30,

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Fees, fines, charges for services  $ 3,794,327 $ 2,466,032 $ 2,127,786 $ 1,798,529 $ 1,417,879
Operating grants, contributions 7,863,168 7,615,653 6,592,642 4,907,472 5,269,841
Capital grants, contributions 269,185 19,983,078 80,472 5,897,456 -
General revenues:
Taxes
Sales taxes 4,609,523 4,925,428 4,725,845 4,375,397 3,657,274
Property taxes 1,476,355 1,438,969 1,367,069 1,366,633 1,441,238
Hotel occupancy taxes 822,490 872,179 796,481 709,578 590,853
Mixed beverage taxes 61,476 59,184 51,602 39,727 38,286
Franchises taxes 930,043 963,040 795,322 734,935 664,991
Unrestricted grants - 28,904 - - -
Interest on investments 55,600 198,199 26,713 24218 33,353
Miscellaneous 241,501 - 246,633 1,023,149 1,112,858
Extraordinary items - - - - (124,346)
Special item - - - - 67,760
Total revenues 20,123,668 38,550,666 16,810,565 20,877,094 14,169,987
Expenses:
General government 4,491,557 3,145,716 2,784,587 2,606,785 2,518,490
Public safety 2,737,084 2,381,437 2,190,050 1,978,803 1,883,424
Culture and recreation 187,274 129,970 123,541 113,924 111,765
Economic development 141,779 171,757 147,680 267,973 216,901
Public works 1,102,636 1,081,996 955,794 626,423 546,039
Visitor services 740,835 665,936 493,087 521,521 475,719
Education 9,516,287 8,598,261 7,147,411 5,803,611 6,193,560
Interest on long-term debt 990,413 1,022,201 998,951 1,031,328 897,573
Total expenses 19,907,865 17,197,274 14,841,101 12,950,368 12,843,471
Excess (deficiency) before transfer: 215,803 21,353,392 1,969,464 7,926,726 1,326,516
Transfers 264,578 323,100 43,399 (485,591) 45,507
Change in net position 480,381 21,676,492 2,012,863 7,441,135 1,372,023
Effect of accounting principle change - (530,877) (647,443) - -
Net position, beginning 54,568,576 33,422,961 32,057,541 24,616,406 23,244,383
Net position, ending $ 55,048,957 $ 54,568,576 $§ 33,422,961 $ 32,057,541 $ 24,616,406

Source: Derived from Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, please refer directly to such Reports for important Notes and more detailed information.



Table 10 - General Fund Summary Balance Sheet
Fiscal Years Ended September 30,

Assets: 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Cash and investments $ 8,939,772 § 7,106,297 $ 7,399,920 $§ 6,219,206 $ 4,637,252
Property tax receivables 2,674 5,379 14,353 1,961 1,796
Accounts receivable 991,831 824,725 771,499 703,875 557,579
Due from other funds 199,237 164,147 157,353 165,140 149,641
Prepaid items 12,794 13,334 8,821 6,906 6,856
Restricted cash & investments - - - 293,363 264,709

Total Assets $ 10.146.308 $§ 8.113.882 § 8351946 $§ 7390451 $§ 5.617.833

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balance:

Liabilities:

Unearned revenue - - - 1,961 1,796
Accounts payable 464,160 427,953 372,092 336,859 352,232
Due to other funds - - 11,983 - -

Total Liabilities 464,160 427,953 384,075 338,820 354,028

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable resources - prop taxes 2,675 5,379 14,353 - -

Total Deferred Inflows 2,675 5.379 14,353 - -

Fund Balances:

Restricted/Committed/Nonspendabl 586,752 296,949 282,345 300,269 271,565
Unassigned 9,092,721 7,383,601 7,671,173 6,751,362 4,992,240
Total Fund Equity 9.679.473 7,680,550 7,953,518 7,051,631 5,263,805

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity  § 10,146,308 § 8113882 § 8351946 § 7390451 § 5.617.833

Source: Derived from Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, please refer directly to such Reports for important Notes and more detailed information.

Table 10A - Condensed Statement of Net Position
Governmental Activities - Fiscal Years Ended September 30,

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Assets
Current and other assets $ 23,271,426 $§ 29451,181 $§ 14,197,535 § 21,781,962 $ 12,185,864
Capital assets 62,414,763 54,470,449 50,205,686 41,121,883 34,313,615
Total Assets 85,686,189 83,921,630 64,403,221 62,903,845 46,499,479
Deferred outflows of resources 2,546,463 1,549,467 1,194,749 1,247,851 -
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities 30,117,478 29,466,305 29,866,622 27,611,536 20,098,829
Other liabilities 2,984,891 1,377,466 2,308,387 1,986,917 1,784,244
Total Liabilities 33,102,369 30,843,771 32,175,009 29,598,453 21,883,073
Deferred inflows of resources 81,326 58,750 - - -
Net Position
Net investments in capital assets 38,299,337 29,633,298 32,048,991 21,177,426 14,866,299
Restricted 7,489,048 17,827,177 2,284,947 4,242,491 4,726,376
Unrestricted 9,260,572 7,108,101 (910,977) 6,637,624 5,023,731
Total Net Position $ 55,048,957 $ 54,568,576 $ 33,422,961 $ 32,057,541 $ 24,616,406

Source: Derived from Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, please refer directly to such Reports for important Notes and more detailed information.



Table 11 - Municipal Sales Tax History

Sales Tax Percentage Ad Valorem

FYE Revenues - of Ad Valorem Tax Rate Breakdown of Sales Tax Collected
30-Sep Govt'l. Funds " Tax Levy Equivalent Taxing Unit Tax Rate

2012 $3,657,274 254.02% $0.3868 The Issuer (approximate allocation) -

2013 $4,375,397 323.60% $0.4937 General Fund $0.0100

2014 $4,725,845 350.01% $0.5260 4B Economic Dev. Fund $0.0050

2015 $4,925,428 339.53% $0.5462 Property Tax Reduction $0.0050

2016 $4,609,523 313.43% $0.0487 State of Texas $0.0625

Total $0.0825

Source: the Issuer's audited financial statements.

Table 12 - Status of Current Investments

As of November 30, 2016, the Issuer's investment portfolio, including its General Fund, Capital Projects Fund, Utility Fund, and other
miscellaneous governmental, proprietary and component unit funds, was invested as follows (with no material difference between book
and market values):

Westlake
Investment Description Issuer Academy(l) Total
Bank Accounts (cash and cash equivalents) $ 15,665559 $ 1,143,963 $ 16,809,522
TexPool 250 100 350
Total $ 15665809 $ 1,144,063 § 16,809,872

Source: The Issuer's monthly statements and financial records; unaudited. See Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Note I1l) for more investment
information.

(1) Represents investments of the Westlake Academy, a component unit of the Issuer the balances and transactions of which are blended with the
balances and transactions of the Issuer. Investments of other component units of the Issuer may also be blended with the Issuer or alternatively may
be excluded and "discretely presented.” See Footnotes I-A and I-B of the Issuer's audited financial statements included in its Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report for more information regarding component units.

Estimated Overlapping Debt

Updated information relating to the Issuer as contained in the "Estimated Overlapping Debt" table of the final official statement(s) of debt
previously issued, is contained in other tables of this annual continuing disclosure report. Information relating to the debt of other taxing
entities within the boundaries of the Issuer that was contained in the "Estimated Overlapping Debt" table of the final official statement(s) ha
not been updated because it is not financial information or operating data of the Issuer However, information relating to other taxing entities
is contained in individual "Texas Municipal Reports" published by and available from the Texas Municipal Advisory Council at

http://www.mactexas.com.




2585 - Westlake, Town of (General Obligation Debt)

Overlapping Debt

o O Westlake, Town of (General Obligation Debt)

Download To Excel

Taxing Body Debt Amount
Ovlpg Amt

Carroll ISD $269,575,246
$29,141,084

Denton Co 645,305,000
129,061

Keller ISD 706,960,916
8,412,835

Northwest ISD 803,407,028
01/31/18 2.64 21,209,946
Tarrant Co 321,795,000
2,445,642

Tarrant Co Hosp Dist 20,835,000
164,597

Trophy Club MUD # 1 9,450,000
1,793,610

Total Overlapping
Debt:

Westlake, Town of
$36,207,000%*

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt:
$99,503,774

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt % of

A.V.: 8.22%
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt per
Capita: $78,349

* Gross Debt

As Of SOvlpg

01/31/18 10.81

01/31/18 0.02
01/31/18 1.19
01/31/18 0.76
01/31/18 0.79

01/31/18 18.98

$63,296,774

01/31/18
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Part C41

EXHIBIT S-6
TOWN OF WESTLAKE
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS
CURRENT AND FIVE YEARS AGO
(UNAUDITED)
2016 2011
Percentage Percentage
Taxable of Total Town Taxable of Total Town
Assessed Taxable Assessed Taxable
Taxpayer Value Rank Assessed Value Taxpayer Value Rank Assessed Value

BRE Solana LLC $ 164,977,385 1 17.44% Maguire Thomas Partners, etal $ 116,839,380 1 13.31%
FMR Texas, LLC/LTD Partnership 73,943,304 2 7.82% FMR Texas, LLC/LTD Partnership 148,569,643 2 16.93%
DCLI, LLC 51,201,275 3 5.41% Maguire Partners 39,117,985 3 4.46%
Fidelity Investments Inc. 19,681,046 4 2.08% Lexington TNI Westlake LP 18,249,200 4 2.08%
Marsh USA Inc 15,402,374 5 1.63% First American Leasing/Real Estate 17,636,457 5 2.01%
Lexington TNI Westlake LP 12,750,000 6 1.35% DCLI, LLC 13,234,691 6 1.51%
Corelogic Solutions LLC 6,494,537 7 0.69% Fidelity Investments 12,277,810 7 1.40%
Prince Whipple Trust 5,802,272 8 0.61% Levi Strauss & Co. 8,215,271 8 0.94%
Vaquero Club, Inc. 5,383,416 9 0.57% Westlake Terra, LLC 7,400,002 9 0.84%
Wells Vernon 111 5,310,200 10 0.56% EMC Corp 6,418,484 10 0.73%

Total 38.16% Total 44.20%

Source: Tarrant County Appraisal District

Note: (1) Prior to fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, the Town of Westlake did not assess an ad valorem tax.

$ 360,945,809

(2) Total Taxable Assessed Value including real and personal property for tax year 2010 (fiscal year 2011) is $877,783,383.

(3) Total Taxable Assessed Value including real and personal property for tax year 2015 (fiscal year 2016) is $945,997,666.

105

$ 387,958,923
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Municipal Secondary Market

This cover sheet is provided with a submission of information to th

Disclosure Information Cover Sheet

e Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) Dataport of the

Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) pursuant to Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Rule 15¢2-12.

Obligations for which this Submission of Information is Being Made:
Name of [ssuer and/or Obligor: Town of Westlake, Texas

Name of Issue(s): See Attachment

CUSIP Numbers to which the information filed
__ X Nine-digit numbers:See Attachment
Six-digit number if information filed relates to all

Event Filing Pursuant to Rule 15¢2-12:

__ Principal/interest payment delinquency

__ Non-payment related default

relates:

securities of the issuer:

Additional/Voluntary Disclosure:
__ Amendment to continuing disclosure undertaking

__ Change in obligated person

Unscheduled draws on debt service reserve reflecting financial difficulties Notice to investor pursuant to bond documents

__Unscheduled draw on credit enhancement reflecting financial difficulties
__Substitution of credit or liquidity provider, or its failure to perform

__ Adverse tax opinion or event affecting the tax-exempt status
__Modification to rights of security holders

__ Bondcall

__ Defeasance

___Release, substitution or sale of prop. securing repayment of the securities
__ Rating change

_ Failure to provide event filing information as required

__ Tender offer/secondary market purchases

_ Communication from the Internal Revenue Service

__ Bid for auction rate or other securities

__ Capital or other financing plan

__ Litigation/enforcement action

__ Change in tender agent, remarketing agent or other
ongoing party

__ Derivative or other similar transaction

___ Other Event-based disclosures

__ Merger/consolidation/acquisition, and sale of all or substantially all assets

Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event

_ Successor, Additional or Change in Trustee

Financial or Operating Information being Submitted Herewith:

_X_Annual Financial Report or CAFR
~X_Financial Information & Operating Datz
____ Other (describe)

Fiscal Period Covered: September 30, 2016
___ Monthly _ Quarterly _X_ Annual

Contact Information:

Name of Contact Person: Debbie Piper
Email Address: dpiper@westlake-tx.org
Voice Telephone Number: 817-490-5712

Employer: Town of Westlake, Texas

Above contact information is for: X The Issuer

Date: March 6, 2017

___ Other:

Title: Finance Director
Web Site Address: http://www.westlake-tx.org/
Fax Number: 817-430-1812

__ The Obligor _ The Dissemination Agen
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ATTACHMENT TO RULE 15¢2-12 FILING COVER SHEET
TOWN OF WESTLAKE, TEXAS
CUSIP NUMBERS OF SECURITIES COVERED BY THIS FILING

Issuer #96048P
(1) 89,125,000 General Obligation (5) 81,910,000 General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2007 Refunding Bonds, Series 2014
Maturity CUSIP No. Maturity CUSIP No.
5/1/2017 96048PCF1 2/15/2028 96048PFA9
2/15/2029 96048PFB7
(2) 87,375,000 General Obligation 2/15/2030 96048PFC5
Refunding Bonds, Series 2011 2/15/2031 96048PFD3
Maturity CUSIP No. 2/15/2032 96048PFE1
2/15/2018 96048PDC7
2/15/2019 96048PDD5 (6) 35,795,000 General Obligation
2/15/2020 96048PDE3 Refunding Bonds, Series 2017
2/15/2021 96048PDF0 Maturity CUSIP No.
2/15/2022 96048PDGS 2/15/2018 96048PFV3
2/15/2023 96048PDH6 2/15/2019 96048PFW1
2/15/2024 96048PDJ2 2/15/2020 96048PFX9
2/15/2025 96048PDK9 2/15/2021 96048PFY7
2/15/2026 96048PDL7 2/15/2022 96048PFZ4
2/15/2027 96048PDM5 2/15/2023 96048PGAS
2/15/2028 96048PDN3 2/15/2024 96048PGB6
2/15/2025 96048PGC4
(3) 32,200,000 General Obligation 2/15/2026 96048PGD2
Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 2/15/2027 96048PGEO
Maturity CUSIP No. 2/15/2028 96048PGF7
2/15/2018 96048PDU7 2/15/2029 96048PGG5
2/15/2019 96048PDV5 2/15/2030 96048PGH3
2/15/2020 96048PDW3 2/15/2031 96048PGJ9
2/15/2022 96048PDY9 2/15/2032 96048PGK6
2/15/2025 96048PEA0
2/15/2028 96048PEBS

(4) $9,320,000 Combination Tax & Revenue
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2013

Maturity CUSIP No.
2/15/2018 96048PEG7
2/15/2019 96048PEHS
2/15/2020 96048PEJ1
2/15/2021 96048PEKS
2/15/2022 96048PEL6
2/15/2024 96048PEM4
2/15/2026 96048PEN2
2/15/2028 96048PEP7
2/15/2029 96048PEQ5
2/15/2030 96048PER3
2/15/2031 96048PES1
2/15/2033 96048PEU6
2/15/2036 96048PEV4
2/15/2039 96048PEW2

2/15/2043 96048PEX0



ANNUAL CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REPORT
for fiscal year ended September 30, 2016

TOWN OF WESTLAKE, TEXAS
(Tarrant and Denton Counties)

The Town of Westlake, Texas (the "Issuer") is providing this Annual Continuing Disclosure Report, which includes updated quantitative
financial information and operating data of the general type included in tables that were part of its Official Statement(s) relating to the
securities listed in the preceding Attachment, although table numbers herein may vary from those in such Official Statement(s).

The Issuer's audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for its most recent fiscal year end is being filed simultaneously
herewith.

Table 1 - Current Appraised Valuation, Exemptions and Tax Supported Debt

Tarrant County Denton County Total
Total Market Value of Issuer Property for FY 2016-17 $1,568,214,122 $ 20,043,379 $1,588,257,501
Homestead Cap Loss (62,483,152) - (62,483,152)
Ag Deferrals (Productivity Loss) (78,172,761) (16,643,604) (94,816,365)
Total Appraised Value of Issuer Property for FY 2016-17 $1,427,558,209 $ 3,399,775 $1,430,957,984
Less Exemptions:
Homestead Exemption - Local Option (General) (100,346,357) - (100,346,357)
Homestead Exemption - Local Option (Over 65) (595,000) - (595,000)
Abatements'” (135,433,473) - (135,433.473)
Reduction for Cases Before ARB (59,278,265) - (59,278,265)
Reduction for Incomplete/In Process Accounts (12,758,433) - (12,758,433)
Absolute Exemptions (12,352,533) (2,241,248) (14,593,781)
Other Exemptions, Reductions (2,877,023) - (2,877,023)
Total Adjustments, Exemptions (323,641,084) (2,241,248) (325,882,332)
Taxable Assessed Valuation for FY 2016-17 $1,103917,125 § 1,158,527 $1.105,075,652
Gross Principal Amount of Ad Valorem Tax Supported Debt as of 12/31/2016 $ 36,322,000
Less: Principal Amount Such Debt Being Repaid From Sources Other Than Ad Valorem Taxes (34,695,000)
Net Amount of Ad Valorem Tax Supported Debt as of 12/31/2016 $ 1,627,000
Debt Service Fund Balance as of 09/30/2016 $ 30,468

Sources: Tarrant and Denton Central Appraisal Districts; Issuer financial statements.
(1) The Issuer has granted partial tax abatements for two major facilities within its boundaries, including those used by Deloitte LLP and Fidelity Investments. Such
abatements have 10-year terms and are subject to various terms and conditions, including in the case of both companies the satisfaction of certain employment targets,

in order to qualify for abatement in any given year. The Deloitte LLP abatement expires October 2021, and the Fidelity Investments abatement expires November 2019.



Table 2 - Market Valuation and Exemptions by Category

Fiscal Years Ending September 30,

2017 2016 2015
Market Valuation Amount % of Total Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
Real Estate, Residential $ 879,417,798 55.37% $ 669,171,945 50.52% $ 617,469,021 48.62%
Real Estate, Commercial 466,391,373 29.36% 455,595,734 34.40% 427,483,453  33.66%
Personal Prop, Comml/Indust 146,514,438 9.22% 122,122,330 9.22% 146,956,302 11.57%
Agricultural Properties 95,250,592 6.00% 77,073,547 5.82% 77,486,314  6.10%
Utilities 683,300 0.04% 555,495 0.04% 497,410  0.04%
Total Market Valuation 1,588,257,501 100.00% 1,324,519,051 100.00% 1,269,892,500 100.00%
Less Exemptions & Reductions
Homestead Cap Loss (62,483,152) (5,553,073) (16,626,670)
Agricultural, Productivity Loss (94,816,365) (76,467,922) (76,873,063)
Homestead - Local Option (100,346,357) (85,558,380) (86,061,862)
Over 65 - Local Option (595,000) (605,000) (561,700)
Disabled - Local Option - - -
Abatements'" (135,433,473) (162,354,187) (163,938,263)
Reduction for ARB Cases (59,278,265) (9,842,969) (7,517,937)
Reduction for Incomplete Accts (12,758,433) (22,863,722) (1,780,074)
Absolute Exemptions (14,593,781) (14,706,044) (14,813,387)
Disabled Veterans - - -
Nominal Value - - -
Other Exemptions, Reductions (2,877,023) - -
Net Taxable Assessed Valuation  $ 1,105,075,652 $ 946,567,754 $ 901,719,544
Fiscal Years Ending September 30,
2014 2013
Market Valuation Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
Real Estate, Residential $ 574,506,369 46.22% $ 545,598,263 44.65%
Real Estate, Commercial 438,047,262 35.24% 443,779,916 36.31%
Personal Prop., Commercial/Indust. 151,927,427 12.22% 140,063,086 11.46%
Agricultural Properties 78,589,129 6.32% 92,015,149 7.53%
Utilities - 0.00% 584,960 0.05%
Total Market Valuation 1,243,070,187 100.00% 1,222,041,374 100.00%
Less Exemptions & Reductions
Homestead Cap Loss (2,499,033) (4,783,528)
Agricultural, Productivity Loss (76,828,073) (80,257,943)
Homestead - Local Option (77,856,727) (72,510,736)
Over 65 - Local Option (551,700) (535,000)
Disabled - Local Option - (10,000)

Abatements'” (172,174,981) (168,861,045)

Reduction for ARB Cases - -

Reduction for Incomplete Accts (2,574,101) (2,695,142)
Absolute Exemptions (12,122,064) (6,148,041)
Disabled Veterans - (12,000)
Nominal Value (910) (780)
Other Exemptions, Reductions - -
Net Taxable Assessed Valuation $ 898,462,598 $ 886,227,159

Source: Tarrant and Denton Central Appraisal Districts.
(1) The Issuer has granted partial tax abatements for two major facilities within its boundaries, including those used by Deloitte LLP and Fidelity Investments. Such
abatements have 10-year terms and are subject to various terms and conditions, including in the case of both companies the satisfaction of certain employment targets,

in order to qualify for abatement in any given year. The Deloitte LLP abatement expires October 2021, and the Fidelity Investments abatement expires November 2019.
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Table 3 - Tax Rates, Levies, Collections and Ratios
Fiscal Years Ending September 30,

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Bond Tax Rate $ 0.00813 $ 0.01687 $ 0.01924 $ 0.01796 $ 0.01487
Maintenance Tax Rate 0.12882 0.13947 0.13710 0.13888 0.14197
Total Tax Rate $ 0.13695 $ 0.15634 § 0.15634 $ 0.15684 $ 0.15684
Taxable Assessed Valuation $ 1,105,575,652 $ 946,567,764 $ 901,719,544 $ 898,462,598 § 886,227,159
Total Ad Valorem Taxes Levied  $ 1,514,086 $ 1,470,666 $ 1,450,643 $ 1,350,188 $ 1,352,097
Current Collection Ratio In process 98.16% 96.59% 99.23% 99.90%
Total Collection Ratio In process 99.77% 98.02% 99.20% 99.93%

Gross Ad Valorem Tax Debt”  § 34,677,000 $ 27,142,000 $ 28,232,000 $ 29,304,000 $ 30,212,000

Gross Tax Debt Ratio to TAV 3.14% 2.87% 3.13% 3.26% 3.41%

Net Ad Valorem Tax Debt'” $ 1,552,000 $ 1,627,000 $ 1,727,000 $ 1,824,000 $ 1,917,000
Net Tax Debt Ratio to TAV 0.14% 0.17% 0.19% 0.20% 0.22%
Estimated Population 1,200 1,200 1,194 1,194 1,014
TAV per Capita $ 921,313 § 788,806 $ 755209 $ 752,481 § 873,991
Gross Tax Debt per Capita'” $ 28,897.50 $ 2261833 $  23,644.89 § 2454271 $  29,794.87
Net Tax Debt per Capita® $ 1,293.33  § 1,355.83 § 1,446.40 $  1,527.64 $ 1,890.53

Sources: The District's audited financial statements; Tarrant and Denton Central Appraisal Districts; Texas Municipal Reports of the Municipal Advisory Council of Texas.
(1) As of fiscal year end,; most recent fiscal year end is a projection and is subject to change.

(2) Only that portion of aggregate debt service that is attributable to the Issuer's Combination Tax and Revenue Certificate of Obligation, Series 2011 (the "Series 2011
Certificate"), with outstanding principal of $1,627,000 as of 09/30/ 2016, is currently being paid from ad valorem tax revenues. Although the pledge of the Issuer's

ad valorem tax continues for as long as all debt reflected in this table remains outstanding, the Issuer may use other funds to pay debt service.

(3) In certain years, the total collection ratio may be slightly lower than the current collection ratio due to refunds attributable to a prior tax year.

Table 4 - Largest Taxpayers

Type of TAV for FY % of TAV
Name Business'” 2016-17 $ 1,105,075.652
BRE Solana LLC Commercial Real Estate $ 173,218,573 15.67%
FMR Texas [ LLC/Ltd. Partnership Commercial Real Estate 80,939,255 7.32%
DCLI, LLC Conference Center 47,521,483 4.30%
Fidelity Investments Inc. Financial Services 39,098,584 3.54%
Dallas MTA LP (dba Verizon Wireless Wireless Telecommunications 38,537,456 3.49%
Marsh USA Inc. Risk Mgt., Insurance 15,402,373 1.39%
Lexington TNI Westlake, LP Commercial Real Estate/REIT 14,618,533 1.32%
Prince Whipple Trust Private Trust 7,070,782 0.64%
Keith Hutton Personal 6,391,904 0.58%
Vernon Wells III and Charlene Wells Personal 5,837,063 0.53%
Totals $ 428.636.006 38.26%

Source: Tarrant and Denton Central Appraisal Districts.
(1) Of the top ten taxpayers, the valuations of three are related solely to commercial real estate, representing approximately 24% of the Issuer's total tax base. The valuations

of such property may fluctuate substantially from year to year. A downturn in the commercial real estate market could adversely affect the Issuer's tax base.



Table 5 - Debt Service Requirements

The following schedule sets forth the total debt service requirements of the Issuer's outstanding bonds and certificates of obligation for
which it has levied its ad valorem tax (although a portion of those obligations may be paid from other sources):

Principal Balance % of
Year End Ad Valorem Tax Debt'" at 02/15/2017 Principal
9/30 Principal Interest Total $35,787,000 Retired
2017 $ 1,110,000 $ 1,123,716 $ 2,233,716  $ 34,677,000 3.10%
2018 1,339,000 1,170,009 2,509,009 33,338,000 6.84%
2019 1,378,000 1,132,997 2,510,997 31,960,000 10.69%
2020 1,422,000 1,094,590 2,516,590 30,538,000 14.67%
2021 1,456,000 1,054,599 2,510,599 29,082,000 18.74%
2022 1,501,000 1,012,862 2,513,862 27,581,000 22.93%
2023 1,541,000 969,406 2,510,406 26,040,000 27.24%
2024 1,591,000 922,147 2,513,147 24,449,000 31.68%
2025 1,621,000 870,063 2,491,063 22,828,000 36.21%
2026 1,677,000 814,829 2,491,829 21,151,000 40.90%
2027 1,728,000 756,557 2,484,557 19,423,000 45.73%
2028 1,794,000 695,165 2,489,165 17,629,000 50.74%
2029 1,866,000 629,983 2,495,983 15,763,000 55.95%
2030 1,928,000 561,122 2,489,122 13,835,000 61.34%
2031 2,005,000 489,731 2,494,731 11,830,000 66.94%
2032 2,070,000 411,444 2,481,444 9,760,000 72.73%
2033 625,000 358,619 983,619 9,135,000 74.47%
2034 650,000 336,269 986,269 8,485,000 76.29%
2035 675,000 313,019 988,019 7,810,000 78.18%
2036 700,000 288,869 988,869 7,110,000 80.13%
2037 720,000 264,613 984,613 6,390,000 82.14%
2038 745,000 238,478 983,478 5,645,000 84.23%
2039 775,000 209,550 984,550 4,870,000 86.39%
2040 805,000 178,700 983,700 4,065,000 88.64%
2041 840,000 145,800 985,800 3,225,000 90.99%
2042 875,000 111,500 986,500 2,350,000 93.43%
2043 910,000 75,800 985,800 1,440,000 95.98%
2044 460,000 48,400 508,400 980,000 97.26%
2045 480,000 29,600 509,600 500,000 98.60%
2046 500,000 10,000 510,000 - 100.00%

Totals $ 35,787,000 $ 16318435 § 52,105.435

(1) Since the Issuer's fiscal year ended 09/30/2016, the Issuer issued refunding bonds and certificates of obligation. This debt service schedule takes

into account both such financings (neither of which is reflected in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report filed together herewith.



Table 6 - Authorized But Unissued Ad Valorem Tax Debt

Voter Authorized but Unissued Ad Valorem Tax Bonds: None
Ad Valorem Tax Bond Elections Planned for Next 12 Months: None
New Money Ad Valorem Tax Debt Not Requiring Voter Approval Planned During Next 12 Months: Undetermined

Table 7 - Other Obligations
As of September 30, 2016, the Issuer had certain other proprietary, contractual, special revenue and lease obligations payable from and

secured by sources other than ad valorem taxes as described more fully in Note 5 to the audited financial statements included in the Issuer's
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report filed together herewith (beginning on page 54).

Table 8 - Tax Adequacy

Gross Ad Est. Gross Net Ad Est. Net

Valorem Tax Ad Valorem Valorem Tax Ad Valorem

Fiscal Year Debt Service Tax Rate "? Debt Service Tax Rate "?
Current Year (2016-17) $2,233,716 $0.2021 $113,148 $0.0102
Maximum Annual Debt Service $2,516,590 $0.2277 $151,800 $0.0137
Average Annual Debt Service $1,736,848 $0.1572 $130,375 $0.0118

(1) Priorto FYE 09/30/2011, the Issuer had not levied an ad valorem tax. Instead it paid debt service on its ad valorem tax debt from other lawfully available

revenues. Only that portion of aggregate debt service that is attributable to the Issuer's Series 2011 Certificate, with an outstanding principal balance as of  09/30/2016
of $1,627,000 , is currently being paid from ad valorem tax revenues. Although the pledge of the Issuer's ad valorem tax continues for as long as all debt reflected in this
table remains outstanding, the Issuer may use other funds to pay debt service.

(2) The Estimated Ad Valorem Tax Rate is the rate that would be required to be levied to pay debt service assuming no other source of payment, and further assuming a

100% collection ratio applied to the Issuer's current Taxable Assessed Valuation.



Table 9 - General Fund Summary Revenues and Expenditures

Fiscal Years Ended September 30,

Revenues: 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Sales tax $ 3,345,688 $ 3,587,323  $ 3,471,344 § 3,061,948 $ 2,534,774
Property tax 1,318,058 1,256,796 1,198,374 1,236,978 1,271,975
Mixed beverage tax 61,476 59,184 51,602 39,727 38,286
Franchise tax 930,043 963,040 795,322 734,935 664,991
Interest income 18,911 10,078 10,503 9,286 14,060
Building permits and fees 2,715,236 1,200,790 1,175,075 969,735 598,394
Fines and penalties 796,014 734,152 730,441 695,167 622,338
Intergovernmental - 3,810 3,540 10,331 -
Contributions 13,299 10,000 - 11,094 325,520
Miscellaneous 227,886 81,539 70,338 73.933 80,936

Total Revenues 9,426,611 7,906,712 7,506,539 6,843,134 6,151,274

Expenditures:

General government and admin. 3,280,507 2,411,239 2,236,360 1,910,545 1,878,885
Public safety 2,453,857 2,490,551 2,146,587 1,967,584 2,224,469
Cultural and recreational 185,923 130,322 123,541 113,924 111,765
Public works 773,751 744,028 615,781 532,675 391,115
Capital outlay 50,563 748,297 20,875 50,014 -
Debt service 48,247 48,237 48,240 - -
Total Operating Expenditures 6,792,848 6,572,674 5,191,384 4,574,742 4,606,234
Excess (deficiency) of revs over ex 2,633,763 1,334,038 2,315,155 2,268,392 1,545,040

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from sale of assets - - - - R

Note proceeds - - 34,710 - -
Other proceeds (insurance, asset sales; - 162,059
Transfers in'" 277,878 521,320 56,419 609,826 583,857
Transfers out'” (912,718) (2.290,385) (1,504,397) __ (1,090,392) (880.,486)
Total Other Sources (Uses) (634,840) (1,607,006) (1.413.,268) (480,566) (296.,629)
Net Change in Fund Balance 1,998,923 (272,968) 901,887 1,787,826 1,248,411
Beginning Fund Balance 7,680,550 7,953,518 7,051,631 5,263,805 4,015,394
Ending Fund Balance $ 9,679,473 $ 7,680,550 ' $ 7,953,518 § 7,051,631 $ 5,263,805

Source: Derived from Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, please refer directly to such Reports for important Notes and more detailed information.
(1) Detailed information relating to transfers may be found in the notes to the audited financial statements included in the Issuer's Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports.

For the most recent fiscal year, see Note 9 on page 63 of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report filed together herewith.



Table 9A - Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities - Fiscal Years Ended September 30,

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Fees, fines, charges for services  $ 3,794,327 $ 2,466,032 $ 2,127,786 $ 1,798,529 $ 1,417,879
Operating grants, contributions 7,863,168 7,615,653 6,592,642 4,907,472 5,269,841
Capital grants, contributions 269,185 19,983,078 80,472 5,897,456 -
General revenues:
Taxes
Sales taxes 4,609,523 4,925,428 4,725,845 4,375,397 3,657,274
Property taxes 1,476,355 1,438,969 1,367,069 1,366,633 1,441,238
Hotel occupancy taxes 822,490 872,179 796,481 709,578 590,853
Mixed beverage taxes 61,476 59,184 51,602 39,727 38,286
Franchises taxes 930,043 963,040 795,322 734,935 664,991
Unrestricted grants - 28,904 - - -
Interest on investments 55,600 198,199 26,713 24218 33,353
Miscellaneous 241,501 - 246,633 1,023,149 1,112,858
Extraordinary items - - - - (124,346)
Special item - - - - 67,760
Total revenues 20,123,668 38,550,666 16,810,565 20,877,094 14,169,987
Expenses:
General government 4,491,557 3,145,716 2,784,587 2,606,785 2,518,490
Public safety 2,737,084 2,381,437 2,190,050 1,978,803 1,883,424
Culture and recreation 187,274 129,970 123,541 113,924 111,765
Economic development 141,779 171,757 147,680 267,973 216,901
Public works 1,102,636 1,081,996 955,794 626,423 546,039
Visitor services 740,835 665,936 493,087 521,521 475,719
Education 9,516,287 8,598,261 7,147,411 5,803,611 6,193,560
Interest on long-term debt 990,413 1,022,201 998,951 1,031,328 897,573
Total expenses 19,907,865 17,197,274 14,841,101 12,950,368 12,843,471
Excess (deficiency) before transfer: 215,803 21,353,392 1,969,464 7,926,726 1,326,516
Transfers 264,578 323,100 43,399 (485,591) 45,507
Change in net position 480,381 21,676,492 2,012,863 7,441,135 1,372,023
Effect of accounting principle change - (530,877) (647,443) - -
Net position, beginning 54,568,576 33,422,961 32,057,541 24,616,406 23,244,383
Net position, ending $ 55,048,957 $ 54,568,576 $§ 33,422,961 $ 32,057,541 $ 24,616,406

Source: Derived from Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, please refer directly to such Reports for important Notes and more detailed information.



Table 10 - General Fund Summary Balance Sheet
Fiscal Years Ended September 30,

Assets: 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Cash and investments $ 8,939,772 § 7,106,297 $ 7,399,920 $§ 6,219,206 $ 4,637,252
Property tax receivables 2,674 5,379 14,353 1,961 1,796
Accounts receivable 991,831 824,725 771,499 703,875 557,579
Due from other funds 199,237 164,147 157,353 165,140 149,641
Prepaid items 12,794 13,334 8,821 6,906 6,856
Restricted cash & investments - - - 293,363 264,709

Total Assets $ 10.146.308 $§ 8.113.882 § 8351946 $§ 7390451 $§ 5.617.833

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balance:

Liabilities:

Unearned revenue - - - 1,961 1,796
Accounts payable 464,160 427,953 372,092 336,859 352,232
Due to other funds - - 11,983 - -

Total Liabilities 464,160 427,953 384,075 338,820 354,028

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable resources - prop taxes 2,675 5,379 14,353 - -

Total Deferred Inflows 2,675 5.379 14,353 - -

Fund Balances:

Restricted/Committed/Nonspendabl 586,752 296,949 282,345 300,269 271,565
Unassigned 9,092,721 7,383,601 7,671,173 6,751,362 4,992,240
Total Fund Equity 9.679.473 7,680,550 7,953,518 7,051,631 5,263,805

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity  § 10,146,308 § 8113882 § 8351946 § 7390451 § 5.617.833

Source: Derived from Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, please refer directly to such Reports for important Notes and more detailed information.

Table 10A - Condensed Statement of Net Position
Governmental Activities - Fiscal Years Ended September 30,

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Assets
Current and other assets $ 23,271,426 $§ 29451,181 $§ 14,197,535 § 21,781,962 $ 12,185,864
Capital assets 62,414,763 54,470,449 50,205,686 41,121,883 34,313,615
Total Assets 85,686,189 83,921,630 64,403,221 62,903,845 46,499,479
Deferred outflows of resources 2,546,463 1,549,467 1,194,749 1,247,851 -
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities 30,117,478 29,466,305 29,866,622 27,611,536 20,098,829
Other liabilities 2,984,891 1,377,466 2,308,387 1,986,917 1,784,244
Total Liabilities 33,102,369 30,843,771 32,175,009 29,598,453 21,883,073
Deferred inflows of resources 81,326 58,750 - - -
Net Position
Net investments in capital assets 38,299,337 29,633,298 32,048,991 21,177,426 14,866,299
Restricted 7,489,048 17,827,177 2,284,947 4,242,491 4,726,376
Unrestricted 9,260,572 7,108,101 (910,977) 6,637,624 5,023,731
Total Net Position $ 55,048,957 $ 54,568,576 $ 33,422,961 $ 32,057,541 $ 24,616,406

Source: Derived from Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, please refer directly to such Reports for important Notes and more detailed information.



Table 11 - Municipal Sales Tax History

Sales Tax Percentage Ad Valorem

FYE Revenues - of Ad Valorem Tax Rate Breakdown of Sales Tax Collected
30-Sep Govt'l. Funds " Tax Levy Equivalent Taxing Unit Tax Rate

2012 $3,657,274 254.02% $0.3868 The Issuer (approximate allocation) -

2013 $4,375,397 323.60% $0.4937 General Fund $0.0100

2014 $4,725,845 350.01% $0.5260 4B Economic Dev. Fund $0.0050

2015 $4,925,428 339.53% $0.5462 Property Tax Reduction $0.0050

2016 $4,609,523 313.43% $0.0487 State of Texas $0.0625

Total $0.0825

Source: the Issuer's audited financial statements.

Table 12 - Status of Current Investments

As of November 30, 2016, the Issuer's investment portfolio, including its General Fund, Capital Projects Fund, Utility Fund, and other
miscellaneous governmental, proprietary and component unit funds, was invested as follows (with no material difference between book
and market values):

Westlake
Investment Description Issuer Academy(l) Total
Bank Accounts (cash and cash equivalents) $ 15,665559 $ 1,143,963 $ 16,809,522
TexPool 250 100 350
Total $ 15665809 $ 1,144,063 § 16,809,872

Source: The Issuer's monthly statements and financial records; unaudited. See Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Note I1l) for more investment
information.

(1) Represents investments of the Westlake Academy, a component unit of the Issuer the balances and transactions of which are blended with the
balances and transactions of the Issuer. Investments of other component units of the Issuer may also be blended with the Issuer or alternatively may
be excluded and "discretely presented.” See Footnotes I-A and I-B of the Issuer's audited financial statements included in its Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report for more information regarding component units.

Estimated Overlapping Debt

Updated information relating to the Issuer as contained in the "Estimated Overlapping Debt" table of the final official statement(s) of debt
previously issued, is contained in other tables of this annual continuing disclosure report. Information relating to the debt of other taxing
entities within the boundaries of the Issuer that was contained in the "Estimated Overlapping Debt" table of the final official statement(s) ha
not been updated because it is not financial information or operating data of the Issuer However, information relating to other taxing entities
is contained in individual "Texas Municipal Reports" published by and available from the Texas Municipal Advisory Council at

http://www.mactexas.com.




Part C45b

TOWN OF WESTLAKE, TEXAS
APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS

PART C, Question 45b - Proforma Debt Service and I&S Tax Rate
Total outstanding Ad Valorem Tax Supported GO Debt (9/30/17): $36,207,000
Taxable Assessed Valuation Used for All Years (Actual 2017-18): $1,105,675,661
Annual I&S Tax Collection Ratio based on historical collections: 100%

Ad Valorem 1&S Tax Supported GO Debt

Outstanding $2,100,000 CO, Series 2018 Gross Net Pro Forma
FYE GO Debt (Proposed TWDB Financing)* Annual GO Annual GO 1&S
9/30 (Bonds, COs) Principal Interest Total Debt Service!”  Debt Service® Tax Rate
2018 $ 2,743,182  $ - $ - 8 - $ 2,743,182 § 277,700  $0.02482  (actual rate)
2019 2,745,115 - 26,695 26,695 2,771,811 286,819 0.02594
2020 2,749,844 100,000 35,204 135,204 2,885,047 425,545 0.03849
2021 2,743,925 100,000 34,399 134,399 2,878,323 428,041 0.03871
2022 2,747,188 100,000 33,534 133,534 2,880,722 426,307 0.03856
2023 2,743,659 100,000 32,594 132,594 2,876,253 429,541 0.03885
2024 2,747,246 100,000 31,554 131,554 2,878,800 422,772 0.03824
2025 2,491,063 100,000 30,399 130,399 2,621,461 430,713 0.03895
2026 2,491,829 105,000 29,111 134,111 2,625,940 443,922 0.04015
2027 2,484,557 105,000 27,688 132,688 2,617,245 436,556 0.03948
2028 2,489,165 105,000 26,166 131,166 2,620,331 434,010 0.03925
2029 2,495,983 110,000 24,520 134,520 2,630,503 279,184 0.02525
2030 2,489,122 110,000 22,716 132,716 2,621,838 281,032 0.02542
2031 2,494,731 110,000 20,742 130,742 2,625,473 282,542 0.02555
2032 2,481,444 115,000 18,540 133,540 2,614,984 133,540 0.01208
2033 983,619 115,000 16,120 131,120 1,114,738 131,120 0.01186
2034 986,269 120,000 13,510 133,510 1,119,779 133,510 0.01207
2035 988,019 120,000 10,756 130,756 1,118,775 130,756 0.01183
2036 988,869 125,000 7,871 132,871 1,121,739 132,871 0.01202
2037 984,613 130,000 4,810 134,810 1,119,423 134,810 0.01219
2038 983,478 130,000 1,619 131,619 1,115,097 131,619 0.01190
2039 984,550 - - - 984,550 - 0.00000
2040 983,700 - - - 983,700 - 0.00000
2041 985,800 - - - 985,300 - 0.00000
2042 986,500 - - - 986,500 - 0.00000
2043 985,800 - - - 985,300 - 0.00000
2044 508,400 - - - 508,400 - 0.00000
2045 509,600 - - - 509,600 - 0.00000
2046 510,000 - - - 510,000 - 0.00000

Totals $ 51,507,269 § 2,100,000 § 448,543 § 2,548,543 § 54,055,813 $§ 6,212,905

Source: the Town's audited financial statements and number runs prepared by its financial advisor.

(1) Although all of the debt reflected in the above table is secured by a pledge of I&S ad valorem taxes, the Town has historically
paid most of such debt from other sources (primarily sales tax revenues). The only financings currently being paid from ad valorem
tax revenues are the Town's 2011 Certificate of Obligation and 2013 Refunding Bonds which had a combined outstanding principal
balance of $3,177,000 as of 09/30/2017, the debt service for which is included under "Net Annual GO Debt Service."

(2) Includes debt service on the Town's 2011 Certificates of Obligation and 2013 Refunding Bonds, the only Town financings
currently being paid from 1&S ad valorem tax revenues. Beginning in fiscal year ending 9/30/2020, also includes debt service on the
2018 CO to be sold to TWDB thereby showing the maximum possible impact such debt service may have on the Town's I&S tax rate.

* Preliminary (based on assumed net interest cost rate of 1.99%),; subject to change.
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Operating Revenues
Charges for services
Miscellaneous revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Payroll costs

Professional and contract services
Depreciation

Amortization of WW treatment rights
Water purchases

Other operating costs

Total operating expenses

Net operating income

Part C46

PART C, Question 46 - Utility Fund Comparative Operating Statement

Fiscal Years Ending September 30,

From 10/01/17

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 To 03/31/18"
$ 3,157,332 $ 3,028,787 $ 3,352,471 $ 3,830,533 $ 4,636,861 $ 1,890,464
224,995 399,915 197,304 137,553 178,774 53,560
3,382,327 3,428,702 3,549,775 3,968,086 4,815,635 1,944,024
275,910 328,944 358,353 423,436 497,740 NA
81,630 94,069 1,129,962 1,186,445 87,632 NA
432,628 430,527 493,101 496,738 495,381 NA
31,428 31,760 31,774 31,847 31,760 NA
965,192 1,048,219 1,223,393 1,358,068 1,215,465 426,669
859,717 987,547 829,343 1,203,193 1,687,411 1,666,099
2,646,505 2,921,066 4,065,926 4,699,727 4,015,389 2,092,768
$ 735822 $ 507,636 $  (516,151) § (731,641) $ 800246 $ (148,744)

Source: audited financial statements for fiscal years ended 09/30/2013 - 09/30/2017; unaudited financial records of the Town for the

current fiscal year-to-date.

(1) Detailed expenses for interim current fiscal year figures will not be available until post-year end journal entries are prepared.
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FY2017-2018 Actuals - 10/01/17 thru 03/31/2018
All Funds - Revenues, Expenditures and Fund Balance

Part

C46

ENTERPRISE FUNDS MAINTENANCE & REPLACEMENT FUNDS SPECIAL REVENUES FUNDS DEBT SERVICE FUNDS CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
Fund 100 Fund 255 Fund 500 Fund 505 Fund 605 Fund 510 Fund 600 Fund 220 Fund 200 Fund 210 Fund 215 Fund 418 Fund 300 Fund 301 Fund 405 Fund 410 Fund 415 Fund 412
General Cemefry | it ting Veh&fl::yM“ Vehicle M&R| Utility M&R| General M&R Ass‘ﬁ::;:on ;:vzg;;“;i; D::;::':‘:’m Ir';“:)crg:,:‘:"‘i; Lone Star | Debt Service| Debt Service Ag’:;‘:;“' Fire Station | PID Capital E‘;‘;Z:;’::
Fund Fund General Fund Fund Fund s Public Fund Fund Fund . Project Fund | Project Fund
Account Type Descripfions Fund Fund Fund Fund Distric Fund Projects Fund Fund

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
General Sales Tax $ 1263736 $ 0% % -1 % % -1 % % -l $ 392056 $  (87.570)| $ % 1% % 1% % 1% % -[ $ 1,568,222
Property Tax 1,282,247 - - - - - - - - - - - - 287,761 - - - - 1,570,007
Charge for Services - 10,393 1,799,819 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,810,211
Hotel Tax - - - - - - - 305,006 - 14,975 - - - - - - - - 319,981
Beverage Tax 16,111 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 16,111
Franchise Fees 214,895 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 214,895
Permits and Fees Other 112,589 - - - - - 300 - - - - - - - - - - - 112,889
Permits and Fees Building 1,055,954 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,055,954
Permits and Fees Utility - - 90,645 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 90,645
Fines & Forfeitures 321,592 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 321,592
Investment Earnings 98,454 1,174 33,601 158 1,226 8,198 - 7,331 - - - 136 - - - 17,901 - 14,732 182,911
Contributions 12,238 - - - - - - 1,900 - 80,000 - - - - - 26,389 - - 120,526
Misc Income 12,086 1,214 11,761 - - - - 6,938 - - 119,395 - - - - 333 - - 151,727
Total Revenues 4,389,901 12,781 1,935,826 158 1,226 8,198 300 321,174 392,056 7,405 119,395 136 - 287,761 - 44,622 - 14,732 7,535,672
Transfers In - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,874,743 - - - - 80,000 1,954,743
Total Other Sources - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,874,743 - - 80,000 1,954,743

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES
Payroll Salaries $ 1,655354| $ A% A% 0% A% 0% A% 0% A% 0% A% 0% - A% - A% A% - $ 1,655,354
Payroll Transfer In (374,642) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (374,642)
Payroll Insurance 279.614 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 279,614
Payroll Taxes TWC/WC 37,073 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 37,073
Payroll SS/Medicare 116,350 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 116,350
Payroll Retirement 225,311 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 225,311
Total Payroll & Related 1,939,061 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,939,061
Cost of Sales Inventory - 447 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 447
Debt 351,677 - 867,758 - - - - - - - - - 1,874,743 241,949 - - - - 3,336,128
Economic Development - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Insurance 35,280 - 8,122 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 43,402
Payroll Transfer Out - - 185,624 - - - - 214,611 - - - - - - - - - - 400,234
Rent & Utilities 148,583 - 38,793 - - - - 14,488 - - - - - - - - - - 201,864
Repair & Maintenance 65,693 - 37,074 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 102,767
Services 905,209 960 523,858 - - - - 130,163 - - 145,127 - 1,300 - 123,332 - - - 1,829,949
Supplies 84,723 - 2,640 - - - - 11,579 - - - - - - - - - - 98,942
Travel & Training 76,626 125 2,230 - - - - 4,005 - - - - - - - - - - 82,986
Water Purchases - - 426,669 . - . - - B - B - B - B - B - 426,669
Total Operations & Maintenance 1,667,791 1,532 2,092,768 - - - - 374,845 - - 145,127 - 1,876,043 241,949 123,332 - - - 6,523,388
Capital Project Funds - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,342,651 155,772 677792 - 2,176,214
Capital Outlay 3,831 - 13,054 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 16,885
Maintenance & Replacement - - - - 104,117 - 133,310 - - - - - - - - - - - 237,427
Total Capital 3,831 - 13,054 - 104,117 - 133,310 - - - - - - - 1,342,651 155,772 677,792 - 2,430,527
Transfers Out 1,689,625 - - - - - - - 76,368 80,000 - - - - - - - - 1,845,993
Total Other Uses 1,689,625 - - - - - - - 76,368 80,000 - - - - - - - - 1,845,993

SUMMARY
Excess Revenus over(under) Expenditures (910,408) 11,249 (169,997) 158 (102,891) 8,198 (133,010) (53.671) 315,688 (72,595) (25,732) 136 (1,300) 45812  (1,465,982) (111,150) (677,792) 94,732  (3.248,554)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 10,242,277 211,349 674,981 17,074 226,358 829,333 (19.621) 799,168 - - 488,485 13,790 - 11,961 11,169,629 1,700,249 797.234 1,413,345 28,575,611



JGreenwood
Typewritten Text
Part C46


FY2017-2018 Actuals - 10/01/17 thru 03/31/2018
All Funds - Revenues, Expenditures and Fund Balance
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS MAINTENANCE & REPLACEMENT FUNDS SPECIAL REVENUES FUNDS DEBT SERVICE FUNDS CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
Fund 100 Fund 255 Fund 500 Fund 505 Fund 605 Fund 510 Fund 600 Fund 220 Fund 200 Fund 210 Fund 215 Fund 418 Fund 300 Fund 301 Fund 405 Fund 410 Fund 415 Fund 412
General Cemefry | it ting Veh&fl::yM“ Vehicle M&R| Utility M&R| General M&R Ass‘ﬁ::;:on ;:vzg;;“;i; D::;::':‘:’m Ir';“:)crg:,:‘:"‘i; Lone Star | Debt Service| Debt Service Ag’:;‘:;“' Fire Station | PID Capital E‘;‘;Z:;’::
Fund Fund General Fund Fund Fund s Public Fund Fund Fund . Project Fund | Project Fund
Account Type Descripfions Fund Fund Fund Fund Distric Fund Projects Fund Fund

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
General Sales Tax $ 1263736 $ 0% % -1 % % -1 % % -l $ 392056 $  (87.570)| $ % 1% % 1% % 1% % -[ $ 1,568,222
Property Tax 1,282,247 - - - - - - - - - - - - 287,761 - - - - 1,570,007
Charge for Services - 10,393 1,799,819 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,810,211
Hotel Tax - - - - - - - 305,006 - 14,975 - - - - - - - - 319,981
Beverage Tax 16,111 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 16,111
Franchise Fees 214,895 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 214,895
Permits and Fees Other 112,589 - - - - - 300 - - - - - - - - - - - 112,889
Permits and Fees Building 1,055,954 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,055,954
Permits and Fees Utility - - 90,645 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 90,645
Fines & Forfeitures 321,592 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 321,592
Investment Earnings 98,454 1,174 33,601 158 1,226 8,198 - 7,331 - - - 136 - - - 17,901 - 14,732 182,911
Contributions 12,238 - - - - - - 1,900 - 80,000 - - - - - 26,389 - - 120,526
Misc Income 12,086 1,214 11,761 - - - - 6,938 - - 119,395 - - - - 333 - - 151,727
Total Revenues 4,389,901 12,781 1,935,826 158 1,226 8,198 300 321,174 392,056 7,405 119,395 136 - 287,761 - 44,622 - 14,732 7,535,672
Transfers In - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,874,743 - - - - 80,000 1,954,743
Total Other Sources - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,874,743 - - 80,000 1,954,743

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES
Payroll Salaries $ 1,655354| $ A% A% 0% A% 0% A% 0% A% 0% A% 0% - A% - A% A% - $ 1,655,354
Payroll Transfer In (374,642) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (374,642)
Payroll Insurance 279.614 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 279,614
Payroll Taxes TWC/WC 37,073 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 37,073
Payroll SS/Medicare 116,350 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 116,350
Payroll Retirement 225,311 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 225,311
Total Payroll & Related 1,939,061 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,939,061
Cost of Sales Inventory - 447 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 447
Debt 351,677 - 867,758 - - - - - - - - - 1,874,743 241,949 - - - - 3,336,128
Economic Development - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Insurance 35,280 - 8,122 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 43,402
Payroll Transfer Out - - 185,624 - - - - 214,611 - - - - - - - - - - 400,234
Rent & Utilities 148,583 - 38,793 - - - - 14,488 - - - - - - - - - - 201,864
Repair & Maintenance 65,693 - 37,074 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 102,767
Services 905,209 960 523,858 - - - - 130,163 - - 145,127 - 1,300 - 123,332 - - - 1,829,949
Supplies 84,723 - 2,640 - - - - 11,579 - - - - - - - - - - 98,942
Travel & Training 76,626 125 2,230 - - - - 4,005 - - - - - - - - - - 82,986
Water Purchases - - 426,669 . - . - - B - B - B - B - B - 426,669
Total Operations & Maintenance 1,667,791 1,532 2,092,768 - - - - 374,845 - - 145,127 - 1,876,043 241,949 123,332 - - - 6,523,388
Capital Project Funds - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,342,651 155,772 677792 - 2,176,214
Capital Outlay 3,831 - 13,054 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 16,885
Maintenance & Replacement - - - - 104,117 - 133,310 - - - - - - - - - - - 237,427
Total Capital 3,831 - 13,054 - 104,117 - 133,310 - - - - - - - 1,342,651 155,772 677,792 - 2,430,527
Transfers Out 1,689,625 - - - - - - - 76,368 80,000 - - - - - - - - 1,845,993
Total Other Uses 1,689,625 - - - - - - - 76,368 80,000 - - - - - - - - 1,845,993

SUMMARY
Excess Revenus over(under) Expenditures (910,408) 11,249 (169,997) 158 (102,891) 8,198 (133,010) (53.671) 315,688 (72,595) (25,732) 136 (1,300) 45812  (1,465,982) (111,150) (677,792) 94,732  (3.248,554)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 10,242,277 211,349 674,981 17,074 226,358 829,333 (19.621) 799,168 - - 488,485 13,790 - 11,961 11,169,629 1,700,249 797.234 1,413,345 28,575,611



JGreenwood
Typewritten Text
Part C47


THE TOWN OF

ESTLAKE

For the Fiscal Year Ended Part C47
September 30, 2017
: gt

> 3 - 1 by
- ‘Q SR, 1. T (US
> - Sy > ’



JGreenwood
Typewritten Text
Part C47


Town of Westlake



Town of Westlake, Texas

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017

Prepared by:
Town of Westlake
Finance Department

1500 Solana Blvd, Suite 7200
Westlake, Texas 76262



Town of Westlake



Town of Westlake
Consolidated Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017
Table of Contents

Page

Infroductory Section

Letter of Transmittal jii

GFOA Certificate of Achievement xii

Organization Chart xiii

Town Officials XV
Financial Section

Independent Auditor’s Report 4

Management's Discussion and Analysis 10
Basic Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Statement of Net Position 24

Statement of Activities 25
Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds Financial Statements

Balance Sheet 27
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position 29
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 31
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 33
Proprietary Funds Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position 34
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 35
Statement of Cash Flows 36
Fiduciary Funds Financial Statements
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 37
Discretely Presented Component Units Financial Statements
Combining Statement of Net Position 38
Combining Statement of Activities 39
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 42
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual - General Fund 81
Schedule of Revenues, Expentitures and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual - W estlake Academy 82
Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules 83
Schedule of Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios - TMRS 84
Schedule of Contributions - TMRS 85
Notes to TMRS Required Supplementary Information 86
Schedule of Academy's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability - TRS 87

Schedule of Contributions - TRS 88

Exhibit

A-2

A-3

A-4
A-5

A-6

A-11
A-12

B-1

B-2

B-3
B-4

B-5
B-6



Town of Westlake
Consolidated Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017
Table of Contents — Continued

Page Exhibit

Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules
Major Governmental Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - Debt Service Fund 91 C-1
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet 93 C-2

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 94 C-3

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Budgetary Comparison Schedules

Visitors Association Fund 95 C-4

Lone Star Public Facilities Corporation Fund 96 C-5

Economic Development Fund 97 C-6

4B Economic Development Corporation Fund 98 C-7
Agency Funds

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - PID Agency Fund 100 C-8

Statistical Section

Net Position By Component 104 S-1
Changes in Net Position 105 S-2
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 107 S-3
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 108 S-4
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 110 S-5
Principal Property Tax Payers 111 S-6
Property Tax Levies and Collections 112 S-7
Direct and Ov erlapping Property Tax Rates 113 S-8
Taxable Sales by Industry Type 114 S-9
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 115 S-10
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 116 S-11
Direct and Ov erlapping Governmental Activities Debt 117 S-12
Demographic and Economic Statistics 118 S-13
Principal Employers 119 S-14
Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program 120 S-15
Operating Indicators by Function/Program 121 S-16

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program 122 S-17



Town of Westlake

March 23, 2018
Honorable Mayor, Council Members and the Citizens of the Town of Westlake,

The Town of Westlake (the "Town") Fiscal and Budgetary Policies require that the Town's Finance
Department prepare a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards by a firm of licensed certfified public accountants. Accordingly, the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) for the Town of Westlake, Texas for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, is
hereby issued.

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the Town.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all the
information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making representations, the Town
established a comprehensive internal control framework that was designed both to protect the Town's
assets from loss, theft or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the
Town's financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not
outweigh their benefits, the Town's comprehensive framework of infernal confrols has been designed to
provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements will be free from
material misstatements. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this
financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The Town's financial statements have been audited by Weaver and Tidwell, L.L.P. The goal of the
independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the Town for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, were free of material misstatements. The independent audit
involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management;
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded,
based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the
Town's financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, were fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditors' report is presented as the first component of the
financial section of this report.

This report is presented in three sections: Infroductory, Financial and Statistical. The Infroductory Section
includes this transmittal letter, a listing of Town Officials, and an organizational chart of the Town. The
Financial Section includes the independent auditor's report on the basic financial statements,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), basic financial statements, the notes to the basic
financial statements, and combining and individual fund statements and schedules. The MD&A is a
narrative infroduction, containing overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements.
This letter of tfransmittal is designed to complement, and should be read in conjunction with the MD&A.
The Town of Westlake's MD&A can be found immediately following the independent auditor’s report.
The Statistical Section includes financial and demographic information relevant to readers of the Town's
financial statements. The statistical data is generally presented on a multi-year basis.

1500 Solana Blvd., Suite 7200 Westlake, Texas 76262
Metro: 817-430-0941 & Fax: 817-430-1812 « www.westlake-tx.org
iii



Profile of the Town

Westlake is an oasis of natural beauty that maintains open spaces in balance with distinctive
development, trails, and quality of life amenities amidst an ever-expanding urban landscape.

Nestled in the DFW Metroplex, Westlake is a Gold Level Scenic City and home to many small independent
businesses and several corporate campuses

Distinctive developments and architecturally vibrant corporate campuses find harmony among our
meandering roads and trails, lined with native oaks and stone walls. We are leaders in education, known
for ourinnovative partnerships between the Town-operated Charter school and our corporate neighbors.

We strive to maintain strong aesthetic standards and preserve the natural beauty in our town. Hospitality
finds its home in Westlake, as a community, we are family friendly, welcoming, fully involved and invested
in our rich heritage, vibrant present and exciting, sustainable future.

Westlake is conveniently located between DFW Airport and Alliance Airport, on the south side of State
Highway 114, providing quick, easy access to all areas of the Dallas-Ft. Worth Metroplex.

The unigue location of Westlake is ideal for many of its major corporate campuses and residential
communities. A common ideal shared by our corporate and individual residents is their support of the
existing character and charm of the community as well as a commitment to excellence in new
development.

Minutes from downtown Fort Worth, Texas and DFW International Airport, the Town of Westlake is home to
several upscale residential communities and Forfune 500 companies, all of which share a unique
character and charm, along with a commitment to excellence. The Town is located in northeast Tarrant
County and may be conveniently accessed by several major thoroughfares, including SH 114 and US 377.
The Town occupies approximately 7 square miles and serves a population of approximately 1,310.1n 2017,
the average size of new home construction was 9,693 square feet with an average estimated
construction cost of $1.82 million.

The Town, incorporated in 1956, is considered a Type A general-law municipality. The Town operates
under the Council-Manager form of government. The Council is comprised of a mayor and five (5) council
members and is responsible for, among other things, passing ordinances, adopting the budget,
appointing committees, and hiring the Town Manager. The Town Manager is responsible for carrying out
the policies and ordinances of the Council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the Town and
appointing and supervising heads of various departments. The Mayor and Town Council members serve
two (2) year terms. All elected officials are elected at-large for a two-year staggered term each May.

The financial reporting entity (the government) includes all funds of the primary government (i.e. the Town
of Westlake), as well as all its component units. Component units are legally separate entities for The
financial reporting entity (the government) includes all funds of the primary government (i.e. the Town of
Westlake), as well as all its component units. Component units are legally separate entities for which the
primary government is financially accountable. The following entities are considered blended
component units:

Lone Star Public Facilities Corporation is a Texas nonprofit corporation that acts on behalf of the Town to
further the public purposes under the Public Facilities Corporation Act, as its duly constituted authority
and instrumentality. The board of directors, appointed by the Town's governing body, is comprised of
seven members, of whom five must be members of the Town's governing body.



4B Economic Development Corporation is a Texas nonprofit industrial corporation under the Development
Corporation Act of 1979 formed to promote economic development within the Town and the State of
Texas to eliminate unemployment and underemployment, and to promote and encourage employment
and the public welfare of, for, and on behalf of the Town by developing, implementing, financing, and
providing one or more projects defined and permitted under Section 4B of the Act. The board of directors
is composed of seven persons appointed by the members of the Town’s governing board. Four of the
members of the board of directors are members of the Town's governing board.

Westlake Academy (Academy) is an open-enrollment charter school, as provided by Subchapter D,
Chapter 12, of the Texas Education Code. The Town of Westlake (“Charter Holder”) applied for and
became the first municipality in Texas to ever receive this special charter designation. The Academy had
825 students in FY 15-16 and serves Kindergarten thru 12 grade. The Academy graduated their first class
in FY 09-10. The Board consists of six (6) tfrustees and is appointed by the Town's governing body. Currently,
all members of the board of frustees are members of the Town's governing body. The Academy’s year-
end is August 31.

Discretely presented component units are legally separate entities and not part of the primary
government’s operations. These component units are as follows: Texas Student Housing Corporation-
Denton Project, Texas Student Housing Corporation-College Stafion Project, and Texas Student Housing
Authority.

Services Provided

The Town provides to its citizens those services that have proven to be necessary and meaningful and
which the Town can provide for the least amount of cost. Major services provided under the general
government and enterprise functions are: Fire and emergency medical services, police, water and sewer
ufility services, park and recreational facilities, street improvements, education and administrative
services. The Town utilizes a combination of direct service delivery along with out-sourced services in its
service delivery mix. The decision as to which service to deliver directly versus out-sourcing is based on
analysis of cost-effectiveness, citizen responsiveness, and customer service quality.

Economic Conditions and Outlook

Local Challenges Involving Residential Growth

The information presented in the financial statements is pernaps best understood when it is considered
from the broader perspective of the environment within which the Town operates.

The Town staff is aware that the Town of Westlake does not create wealth, but instead, is entrusted with
public dollars collected on behalf of our citizens. We are stewards who are fully vested in the success of
the Town of Westlake and Westlake Academy. We exist as a municipal corporation for one reason and
one reason only: to prioritize and deliver the best services possible with the resources provided to achieve
an exceptional quality of life. This is a challenge the Staff takes very seriously, one that we pursue with
vigor every day. Over the previous fiscal year, the Town has achieved and/or is continuing to work toward
important initiatives and projects that will allow us to balance our “distinctive development, trails, and
quality of life amenities amidst an ever-expanding urban landscape.”

Because of the current and potential development within our community, it is both an exciting and
challenging time in Westlake! Adhering to the Town's Vision is the key to Westlake's success for managing
the significant growth. While growth is occurring, it also presents very clear challenges for our community
if we wish to contfinue to maintain the elements of Westlake that make it so unique. These community
aftributes include our beautiful neighborhoods with fop quality residences, strong aesthetic standards, a
top-tier Town owned K-12 charter school, open space preservation, streetscaping, emphasis on proactive
planning, and maintaining our view corridors. The “sea of change” that surrounds Westlake involves not
only our current internal development but also the current growth opportunities planned for the State



Highway (SH 114) corridor in northeast Tarrant County and into southern Denton County. The communities
that surround us are undergoing significant development as well, which adds to the “sea of change”
affecting Westlake.

The impact of anticipated growth along the SH 114 corridor is described by Mr. Robin McCaffrey (AIA and
APA) of MESA Planning, the firm that was engaged to update the Town's latest Comprehensive Plan,
Forging Westlake. According to Mr. McCaffrey:

Westlake, with the arrival of the Charles Schwab Corporation project, is crossing through a portal into the
future suggested by the Town's 2015 Comprehensive Plan. In conjunction with Fidelity and other financial
services in and around Westlake, Westlake hosts nearly 4 million square feet of an industry type (i.e.
financial services), constituting a significant Industry Cluster. At this scale, the aggregation of a single
industrial code activity is important enough to attract vertical and horizontal expansion, which further
substantiates Westlake's importance as a financial services center in the Dallas/ Fort Worth Metroplex.
Bringing the above described importance to the Town's other advantages of proximity, makes Westlake
a singularly important center for growth and development going forward.

Westlake’s Permanent Population Growth: This is the portion of our population considered to be our
permanent residents. From the 1990 population of 18510 2017's population of 1,310 represents anincrease
of 608% equal to 1,125 additional residents. We will need to continue to monitor and plan for the
continued increase in these numbers considering our Comprehensive Plan’s (Forging Westlake) forecast
of approximately 7.21% annual population growth between now and 2040. This would bring us to around
7.000 residents.

Traffic Demands Due to Growth in Westlake and Surrounding Areas: The four (4) municipalities surrounding
Westlake (Keller, Southlake, Trophy Club, and Roanoke) are projected to have a combined population
of 215,000 people by 2040. The growth in these communities will generate additional fraffic that
commutes through our Town. With our projected level of residents (7,000) and the existing zoning
entitlements (if executed) we would expect an estimated 300,000 vehicle trips per day. Local impacts
associated with this level of growth affect our street infrastructure, water and sewer system capital
investment requirements, as well as demand for daily municipal services. Policies established in Forging
Westlake will be essential for addressing this issue via the Town's thoroughfare plan as it pertains o
development which occurs in the community.

Balanced Growth to Impact Cost of Municipal Services: Likewise, the ability fo fund municipal services
utilizing a cost-effective revenue format requires balanced growth that provides for commercial
development and a diversified tax base, while maintaining the community’s open space and bucolic
atmosphere. At the same fime, we must continue to ensure the policy direction of the Town is focused on
growth paying for the infrastructure for which it creates the demand.

Housing Start Increases and Maintaining Westlake’s High Quality Residential Housing: We continue o see
strong single family residential construction demand. This has been demonstrated in Granada Phase 1 as
well as in existing subdivisions such as Vaquero, Paigebrooke, and Terra Bella. Additionally, the
infrastructure for three (3) new single family residential developments, Carlyle Court, Granada Phase 2
and Quail Hollow, has been completed, accepted by the Town and building permits issuance in those
developments is underway.

Also, the mixed-use development called Entrada continues to progress with infrastructure construction
making significant headway. Enfrada’s infrastructure is being financed with a Town approved Public
Improvement District (PID), the bonds for which are paid back by assessments on development within
Entrada. When the infrastructure is complete, it will add (over time) a wide variety of 322 residential units
to Westlake - ranging from single family homes, to villas, to fown homes. Once complete, these four (4)
developments will add approximately 463 new lots to our residential inventory.
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Our residential construction activity shows a steady increase in building permits for housing which has
occurred since we have emerged from the 2008-09 recession. Housing starts in Westlake, due to the high
value of our homes, add taxable value to our taxing base; however, this also impacts the demand for
municipal services, especially the Town's charter school, Westlake Academy.

As the area economy confinues to perform well, and Westlake and our surrounding communities confinue
to experience commercial development, this will further attract individuals who work for and own these
businesses. In turn, these individuals will need housing. As our housing stock expands in response to these
forces, we will need to manage our distinctive developments to ensure we maintain our community as
an ‘oasis of natural beauty’ and achieve high-end housing opfions as identified in the Housing element
of Forging Westlake.

Local Challenges Involving Commercial Growth

Commercial Development, Economic Development, and Daytime Population Growth: Because Westlake
is the home to major corporate office campuses, its Monday-Friday daytime population is growing and is
conservatively estimated to be approximately 10,000 - 12,000 individuals. These office complexes are
comprised of notable corporate clients that include Deloitte, LLP and Fidelity Investments. Currently,
Fidelity has almost 6,000 employees at their Westlake campus, with expansion room for two (2) more office
buildings in addition to their two (2) existing office buildings.

New Charles Schwab Corporate Campus: The announcement of their regional corporate campusin 2016
is beginning to come to fruition. Phase 1 will consist of a 500,000-sq. ft. office building and parking garage.
Adjacent to the Schwab campus will be a mixed-use development, which Hillwood Properties will
develop near the intersection of SH170 and SH114. The campus will initially have approximately 1,500-
1,200 employees and should round out with an estimated 5,000 employees when all phases are complete.
Presently, Schwab is well underway in the process of hiring 500 employees for its temporary Roanoke Road
location in Westlake.

Commercial Development in Entrada: The mixed-use development called Enfrada, located at
FM1938/Davis Blvd. and SH114, will also create growth in our commercial tax base. During the past budget
year, commercial buildings totaling 55,000 sq. ft. have been approved by the Town for the development.
A CVS Pharmacy is open for business as well as a Primrose Private School. Other commercial uses include
various retail, restaurants, amphitheater and hotels.

Solana Redevelopment/Reinvestment: The Solana Office Complex, acquired by Equity Office
(Blackstone) approximately two (2) years ago, has seen a resurgence in occupancy. Equity’'s multi-million-
dollar investment in the complex to improve its parking, landscaping and buildings has been a strong
positive path for Westlake. The investment is boosting office occupancy levels with Sabre Corporation
expanding their presence into Westlake by leasing significant office space in Solana. They are also hiring
up fo 500 new employees. The municipality has assisted in this revitalization effort by leasing 20,000 sq. ft.
of office space for the next 10 years. The new location in Solana allows the staff to be in one office suite
and better serve the Westlake community.

Economic Development: The Town has also pursued the ideas advanced in the Economic Development
element of Forging Westlake. That is, where appropriate, to pursue businesses that ultimately expand the
Town’'s tax base with high quality office buildings, and at the same time, compliments our financial
services business cluster, which has already been created through our corporate residents of Fidelity and
Deloitte. Further, we pursue the types of businesses interested in high quality office campus development
and creating well-paying positions for employees. With the Schwab announcement (and the start of
construction of the TD AmeriTrade’'s complex in Southlake) we are well on our way to becoming a
financial services corridor within the DFW Metroplex.
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While offering economic development incentives for the Schwab project, the tax abatement provided is
in-line with incentives offered in our region, plus the company is providing one-time funding for Westlake
Academy. Staff will continue to monitor our corporate stakeholders and attempt to identify avenues to
strengthen these relationships and assist in attracting new corporations to Westlake. The expansion of
commercial development will continue to grow Westlake's daytime population.

Local Challenges — Other

There are other local challenges involving both financial and physical site planning, strategic forecasting,
residential feedback through our survey instruments and the Town's public charter school, Westlake
Academy.

Westlake’s residential growth impact on the Academy: The number of Westlake residents who are
selecting Westlake Academy as the educational choice for their students has doubled in the past five
years. Resident surveys confinually indicate that the Academy is a strong motivator for our residents to
live in Westlake, and one of the top three (3) reasons why they plan to remain in our community. For
example, the 2017 municipal services survey results indicate 75% of the new residents say enroliment at
Westlake Academy was extremely important/important to their decision to live in the community. With
the majority of those residents then listing this as the number one (1) reason they will remain in Westlake
over the next five (5) years.

Planning for Academy growth in the face of residential development contfinues to be a challenge.
Wherever possible, the Town has entered economic development agreements with residential
developers to provide funding for Westlake Academy facilities to lessen the impact of their residential
development on the school’s enrollment.

Westlake Academy has experienced steady enrollment growth from 491 students in SY 2009-10 to a
projected 856 in SY 2017-18. The current increase of student population is a result of the Phase | expansion
efforts on the Academy campus and our development. Our growth requires that we carefully manage
our student admissions processes to provide adequate space for children of Westlake residents.

Approximately 39,000 sq. ft. of new facilities space was opened on campus in SY 14/15. It was comprised
of a secondary classroom building, field house, and a primary years’ multi-use hall. These buildings
increased our capacity and allowed for decompression of our current school facilities. The lottery waiting
list for student admissions from our secondary boundaries confinues to grow from 705 in 2011 to over
approximately 2,411 students for this coming school year.

Continued Public Education Funding Shorffall: State funding of public education was decreased by the
State Legislature in 2011. While it has increased somewhat since then, the allocation has not kept pace
with basic cost increases. And, in the Legislature’s most recent 2017 session, the per student funding for
public education was not increased for the next biennium. This negatively impacts Westlake since it owns
and operates our public charter school, Westlake Academy, which receives approximately 80% of its
operational funding from the State. The municipal government continues to allocate significant resources
to the school to deal with State funding limitations, maintain high quality educational services, provide
for the Academy’s facilities and support services, as well as preserve space for the children of Westlake
residents. Additionally, the Westlake Academy Foundation (WAF) raises significant operating funds for the
Academy, without which the school could not operate.

Pursuit of Infrastructure and Services Reinvestment While Combating Certain Cost Increases: We must also
reinvest in maintaining our infrastructure. However, with growth comes the need to allocate capital
spending in new public buildings and our water and sewer utility. An example of a key project needed
to deal with the Town's growth, is a Phase 2 water transmission line o our wholesale water provider. This is
a costly project which will require us to significantly invest in our water system.
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Staffing Levels, Insurance Costs, and Retention: Our infrastructure investment must be monitored in
tandem with the staffing needs to maintain our current service delivery levels. This includes keeping our
compensation/benefit package competitive to aftract and retain excellent employees, so we can
continue delivering exceptional service. We have found this to be especially true as it relates to having
adequate staffing to deal with development review and construction. We have balanced all these
components in light of maximizing staff efficiencies and processes to help contain large expenditure
drivers such as employee health insurance.

Customer interactions and our methodology to deliver services remains of interest to our residents and
we continue to receive high marks for our personalized approach. In early 2017, our consultant, Chris
Tathum with ETC presented Council with positive feedback indicating that our staff feam is “setting the
standard for service delivery compared to other communities”. Since 2009, our composite index score for
overall satisfaction has increased 21 points.

Users of this document, as well as others interested in the programs and services offered by the Town of
Westlake, are encouraged to read the Town's Fiscal Year 2017-18 Budget. The budget details the Town's
long-term goals and financial policies and describes program accomplishments and initiatives.

Other Information

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States of America and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Town of Westlake for
its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. This was
the tenth year the Town has received this prestigious award. To be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) confinues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program's requirements and we are submittfing it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, we also received our tenth GFOA Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for the fiscal year
beginning October 1, 2016 for our municipal budget and the 8th year for our educational services budget
for Westlake Academy, a component unit of the Town. To qualify for the Distinguished Budget
Presentation Award, the Town and Academy budget documents had to be judged proficient as a policy
document, a financial plan, an operations guide, and a communications device.

Westlake Academy has also received recognition from the Association of School Business Officials
International as a recipient of the International Award for Budget Excellence for the past seven years.

The Finance Department received its fifth Popular Annual Financial Report (PAFR) converting much of the
FY 2015-2016 audit document into an easy-to-read format for our residents. The goal is to encourage
resident awareness as it relates to Town finances through the condensed version of the budget. The report
provides an "overview of our financial position and policies and conveys our commitment to delivering
responsive services and programs in a fiscally responsible manner.”
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Honorable Mayor
and Members of Town Council
Town of Westlake, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Westlake (the Town) as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Town's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
infernal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

AN INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF WEAVER AND TIDWELL, L.L.P. 12221 MERIT DRIVE, SUITE 1400, DALLAS, TX 75251
BAKER TILLY INTERNATIONAL CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS P:972.490.1970 F:972.702.8321
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Town of Westlake, Texas
Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the Town, as of September 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter Regarding Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the discretely presented
component units will confinue as going concerns. As discussed in Note 17 to the financial statements, the
discretely presented component units are in default on their bonds due to failure to meet certain bond
covenants. This gives bond holders the right to accelerate and demand payment on the bonds in full.
This condition raises substantial doubt about the discretely presented component units’ ability to continue
as going concerns. Management's plans regarding these matters are also described in Note 17. The
financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 10 through 20 and budgetary comparison information
and pension schedules on pages 81 through 88 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town's basic financial statements. The infroductory section, combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules, and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the combining and individual fund statements and schedules are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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The infroductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 23,
2018 on our consideration of the Town's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of ifs
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, confracts, and grant agreements and other
maftters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town'’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Weavern amd Tidwdl, L.L.F
WEAVER AND TIDWELL, L.L.P.

Dallas, Texas
March 23,2018
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Management of the Town of Westlake offers the readers of the Town's financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities and financial position of the Town for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2017. Financial reporting is limited in its ability to provide the “big picture” but rather focuses
on financial position and changes in financial position. In other words, are revenues and/or expenditures
higher or lower than the previous year? Has the net position (containing both short- term and long-term
assets and liabilities) or fund balances (the current “spendable” assets less current liabilities) of the
government been maintained?2 Readers are encouraged to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with the additional information furnished in the letter of fransmittal (pages iii - x of this report)
and the stafistical section (pages 103 - 122 of this report) as well as information in the annual operating
budget, along with other community information found on the Town’'s website at www.westlake-tx.org.
It should be noted that the Independent Auditor’'s Report describes the auditors’ association with the
various sections of this report and that all the additional information from the website and other Town
sources are unaudited.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Town exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $59,885,306 (Net position). This
number must be viewed within the context that the vast majority of the Town's net position of
$52,083,443 (87.0%) is its investment in capital assets and that most capital assets in a government
entity do not directly generate revenue nor can they be sold to generate liquid capital. The net
position restricted for specific purposes totaled $2,034,916 (3.4%). The remaining amount,
$5.766,947 (9.6%), represents unrestricted net position.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town of Westlake's governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $27,808,118, which is an increase of $7,412,296 in comparison
with the prior year. Within this total, $17,444,416 is non-spendable, restricted, committed or
assigned by management or council.

e Af the end of the current fiscal year, fund balance for the general fund was $10,937,492 an
increase of $1,258,019 in comparison with the prior year. Of this total fund balance, $10,363,702 is
unassigned. This represents 125% of the total general fund expenditures and is equivalent to 489
operating days.

e The Town's capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) increased by $5,042,014. This is due
in large part to an increase of $6,503,931 in construction in progress accounts. This increase is
primarily due to the infrastructure construction expenditures related to the Public Improvement
District (PID), E. Dove Road and Drainage project and the Fire/EMS Complex.

e The Town's long-term debt increased by $9,547,067 in total, due to the issuance of $9,180,000
Combination Tax & Revenue Bonds and $1,530,000 Tax Notes.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is inftended to serve as an infroduction to the Town's basic financial statements.
The Town's basic financial statements are comprised of the following three components:

1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.


http://www.westlake-tx.org/

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
Town's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The government-wide financial
statements are prepared ufilizing the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting.

The statement of net position presents information on all the Town's assets and deferred outflows of
resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources with the difference between the two reported
as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Town's net position serves as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the Town is improving or weakening.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All the revenues and expenses are reported as soon as the underlying
event givingrise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods.

Both government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally
supported by sales taxes, property taxes, and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intfended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the Town include general government,
public safety, culture and recreation, economic development, public works, visitor services and
education. The business-type activities of the Town include water/sewer and cemetery.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the Town (known as the primary government),
but also discretely presented component units including all the Texas Student Housing entities. Financial
information for these component units is reported separately from the financial information presented for
the primary government itself. In addition, the Town has the following blended component units: Lone
Star Public Facilities Corporation, 4B Economic Development Corporation, and Westlake Academy, an
open enrollment charter school owned and operated by the Town of Westlake. See pages 42 — 43 of the
"Financial Section" for detail on these entities.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. Below
are the three types of funds.

Governmental funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as government activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term
financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, the reader may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities.



The Town maintains ten individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances for the General, Westlake Academy, Debt Service, Capital Projects,
Solana PID Capital Project, and Westlake Academy Expansion funds, all of which are presented as major
funds. Data from the other funds (Visitors Association, Economic Development, Lone Star Public Facilities
Corporation and Westlake 4B Economic Development Corporation) are combined into a single,
aggregate presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The Town adopts an annual appropriated budget for all funds, except the Capital Projects, Solana PID
Capital Project, and Westlake Academy Expansion funds which are project-length based budgets. A
budgetary comparison statement has been provided for all appropriate funds to demonstrate
compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 27 - 33 of this report.

Proprietary funds - There are two types of proprietary funds, Enterprise Funds and Internal Service Funds.
An Enterprise Fund is the only proprietary fund currently maintained by the Town. Enterprise funds are used
to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The Town uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer activities and its cemetery
activities. All activities associated with providing such services are accounted for in this fund, including
administration, operation, maintenance, debft service, capital improvements, biling and collection. The
Town's intent is that the costs of providing the services to the general public on a continuing basis is
financed through user based charges in a manner similar to a private enterprise. The Town has no Internal
Service Funds (fund to report activities that provide supplies and services for the Town's other programs
and activities, i.e. self-insurance and fleet management).

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 34 - 36 on this report.

Fiduciary funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because
the resources of those funds are not available to support the Town's own programs. The accounting used
for fiduciary funds is similar to the accounting used for proprietary funds. The Town of Westlake maintains
one fiduciary fund, the PID Agency (Debt Service) Fund.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found on pages 42 - 79 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying noftes, this report also
presents schedules that further support the information in the financial statements.

The schedules are presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements and can be
found on pages 81 - 88.



Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the government’s financial
position. In the case of the Town, assets exceeded liabilities by $59,885,306 at the close of the most recent
fiscal year.

The Town's combined net position changed from a year ago, increasing $2,833,346 from $57,051,960 to
$59,885,306. Our analysis below focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table
2) of the Town's governmental and business-type activities.

The largest portion of the Town's net position, 52,083,443 (87%), reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.
land, buildings, equipment, improvements, construction in progress, and infrastructure), less any debt
used to acquire capital assets still outstanding. The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Town's investment
in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay
this debt must be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liguidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the Town's net position, $2,034,916 (3.4%), represents resources that are subject
to external or internal restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of $5,766,947 (9.6%)
represents unrestricted net position which is available for the Town's ongoing expenses.

Table 1
Condensed Statement of Net Position
At September 30, 2017 and 2016

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Assets
Current and other assets $ 30,062,328 $ 23,271,426 $ 5,254,725 $ 4197173 $ 35.317,053 $ 27,468,599
Capital assets 67,940,280 62,414,763 11,690,171 12,173,674 79,630,451 74,588,437
Total Assets $ 98,002,608 $ 85,686,189 $ 16,944,896 $ 16,370,847 $114,947,504 $102,057,036
Deferred outflows of resources 2,446,574 2,546,463 94,162 84,021 2,540,736 2,630,484
Liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities 39,936,334 30,117,478 6,333,158 6,308,304 $ 46,269,492 $ 36,425,782
Other liabilities 2,402,774 2,984,891 8,869,026 8,143,561 11,271,800 11,128,452
Total Liabilities 42,339,108 33,102,369 15,202,184 14,451,865 $ 57,541,292 $ 47,554,234
Deferred inflows of resources 61,642 81,326 - - 61,642 81,326
Net Position
Net investments in capital assets 46,499,873 38,299,337 5,583,570 6,044,363 $ 52,083,443 $ 44,343,700
Restricted 2,034,916 7,489,048 - - 2,034,916 7,489,048
Unrestricted 9,513,643 9,260,572 (3,746,696) (4,041,360) 5,766,947 5,219,212
Total Net Position $ 58,048,432 $ 55,048,957 $ 1,836,874 $ 2,003,003 $ 59,885,306 $ 57,051,960




For the Years Ended September 30, 2017 and 2016

Revenues
Programrevenues

Fees, fines and charges for service:

Operating grant and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

General revenues
Taxes
Sales taxes
Property taxes
Hotel occupancy taxes
Mixed beverage taxes
Franchise taxes
Interest oninvestments
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenses
General governmental
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Economic development
Public works
Visitor services
Education
Interest on long-term debt
W ater and sewer
Cemetery

Total expenses
Increase (decrease) in net
position before transfers
Transfers
Change in net position

Net position, beginning

Net position, ending

Table 2
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
$ 4,471,161 $ 3.794327 $ 4,825,599 $ 3,979,201 $ 9,296,760 $ 7.773,528
8,047,113 7,863,168 - - 8,047,113 7,863,168
3,485,255 269,185 - - 3,485,255 269,185
4,650,744 4,609,523 - - 4,650,744 4,609,523
1,576,750 1,476,355 - - 1,576,750 1,476,355
751,601 822,490 - - 751,601 822,490
68,432 61,476 - - 68,432 61,476
818,423 930,043 - - 818,423 930,043
182,095 55,600 28,684 13,095 210,779 68,695
278,071 241,501 50,000 - 328,071 241,501
24,329,645 20,123,668 4,904,283 3,992,296 $ 29,233,928 $ 24115964
5,716,302 4,491,557 - - 5,716,302 4,491,557
3,063,003 2,737,084 - - 3,063,003 2,737,084
217,489 187,274 - - 217,489 187,274
163,578 141,779 - - 163,578 141,779
1,634,549 1,102,636 - - 1,634,549 1,102,636
737,071 740,835 - - 737,071 740,835
8,566,295 9,516,287 - - 8,566,295 9,516,287
1,401,199 990,413 - - 1,401,199 990,413
- - 4,893,075 5519,116 4,893,075 5,519,116
- - 8,021 7,831 8,021 7,831
21,499,486 19,907,865 4,901,096 5,526,947 26,400,582 25,434,812
2,830,159 215,803 3,187 (1.534,651) 2,833,346 (1,318,848)
169,316 264,578 (169.,316) (264,578) - -
2,999,475 480,381 (166,129) (1,799.229) 2,833,346 (1.318,848)
55,048,957 54,568,576 2,003,003 3,802,232 57,051,960 58,370,808
$ 58,048,432 $ 55,048,957 $ 1,836,874 $ 2,003,003 $ 59,885,306 $ 57,051,960
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Governmental activities: Governmental activities increased the Town's net position by $2,999,475 (5.45%),
increasing net position from $55,048,957 to $58,048,432. Unrestricted net position, the part of net position
that can be used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants,
enabling legislation, other legal requirements, and/or Council or management's decision, increased by

$816,934.

Total revenues for governmental activities increased by $4,205,977 when compared to the prior year.
General revenue had an increase of $129,128, while program revenues had an increase of $4,076,849.

Program revenues

Fees, fines and charges for services increased $676,834. The permit and review fees received
from Charles Schwab & Co. were the major confributor fo this increase

Operating Grants and Contributions increased by $293,945 mostly due the contribution of
funds to Westlake Academy for the purchase of a school bus as well as additional state
funding.

Capital Grants and Contributions increased by $3,106,070 with the major portion being
aftributed to the donation of land for the Fire/EMS station and revenues restricted for the
benefit of Westlake Academy based on economic development agreements.

General revenues

Interest on Investments increased by $182,095 due to the addition of bond and tax note funds.
Sales tax increased by $41,201 in addition to an increase of $98,364 in property tax.

Hotel occupancy taxes decreased by $70,889. There have been several new hotels in the area
that are competing with the Marriott. Efforts are being made to retain and attract additional

meetings and tourist stays.

Franchise fees decreased by $111,620 primarily due to AT&T and Verizon receipfs.

Expenses

Total expenses for governmental activities increased by $1,062,685 or approximately 5%.

General Government expenditures reflected a 40% increase of $1.3M; Payroll and related
taxes/retirement increased with the addition of staff; increase in consultant fees was related
to local PID expenditures with the majority of the increase due fo the relocation of Town Hall
including additional furniture, network equipment fransfer and replacements.

Education expenditures decreased by 5% ($426K) which was created by an accounting entry
made in the prior years to recognize a capital lease. This amount was offset with lease
proceeds in Other Resources.

Public Safety saw a 9% increase of $230K primarily due to payroll and related taxes/
retirement increases based on market adjustments.



Business-type Aclivities: The net position of our business-type activities ended fiscal year 2017 at
$1,836,874 compared with $2,003,003 in 2016. This represents a decrease in net position of $166,129 , or 8%
less than the prior fiscal year.

Revenues (Charges for Services) for business-type activities for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2017
were $4,825,599; an increase of $846,398 or 21%. Operating expenses for the business-type activities for
the fiscal year ending September 30, 2017 were $4,023,410; a decrease of $684,148 or 15%. This decrease
was primarily attributed to a payment to the City of Fort Worth for the Town's proportionate share of water
system upgrades to provide Westlake with future capacity needs in the prior year offset by a settle-up
with the City of Southlake related to wastewater treatment.

Financial Analysis of the Town's Funds

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Town's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town's
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a fown's
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $27,808,118; an increase of $7,412,296 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 35%
of this total ($10,363,702) constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the
government's discretion. The remainder of fund balance is non-spendable, restricted, committed or
assigned to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed.

The following tables present a summary of general, special revenue, capital project, and debft service
fund revenues and expenditures for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, and the amount and
percentage of increases and decreases in relation to the prior year.

Table 3
Summary of Governmental Funds Revenues
Increase Percent
2016-17 Percent (Decrease) Increase
Revenues Amount Of Total From2015-16 (Decrease)

Taxes
Sales taxes $ 4,650,744 20.6% $ 41,221 0.9%
Property taxes 1,577.815 7.0% 98,364 6.7%
Mixed beverage taxes 68,432 0.3% 6,956 11.3%
Hotel occupancy taxes 751,601 3.3% (70.889) -8.6%
Franchise taxes 818,423 3.6% (111,620) -12.0%
Subtotal - Taxes 7,867,015 34.8% (35,968) -0.5%
Stafte program 6,603,358 29.2% 54,996 0.8%
Federal program 140,152 0.6% 41,588 42.2%
Interest income 182,095 0.8% 138,076 313.7%
Building permits and fees 3,521,686 15.6% 806,450 29.7%
Fines and penalties 673,716 3.0% (122,298) -15.4%
Intergovernmental - 0.0% - 0.0%
Contributions 728,887 3.2% (18,502,269) -100.5%
Miscellaneous 2,863,801 12.8% 1,325,546 86.2%
Total Revenues $ 22,580,710 100.0% $ (16.293,879) -42.8%




Table 4
Summary of Governmental Funds Expenditures

Increase Percent
2016-17 Percent (Decrease) Increase
Expenditures Amount Of Total From 2015-16 (Decrease)

General government $ 4,596,827 166% $ 1,316,320 40.1%
Public safety 2,684,244 9.7% 230,387 9.4%
Culture and recreation 164,720 0.6% (21,203) -11.4%
Economic development 163,578 0.6% 21,799 15.4%
Public works 784,279 2.8% 10,528 1.4%
Visitor services 717,055 2.6% (8.916) -1.2%
Education 8,819,174 31.9% (426,418) -4.6%
Capital outlay 7,082,844 25.7% (2,479,110) -25.9%
Debt services 2,598,351 9.3% 500,450 23.9%
Total Expenditures $ 27,611,072 1000% $ (856,163) -3.0%

Below are summaries and explanations of the changes in fund balances from fiscal year 2016 to fiscal
year 2017 of the Governmental Funds that are contained in the above totals.

General Fund - Fund balance increased $1,258,019 (13%). At the end of the current fiscal year, fund
balance for the general fund was $10,937,492, anincrease of $1,258,019 in comparison with the prior year.
Of this total, $10,363,702 is unassigned. This represents 125% of the total general fund expenditures and is
equivalent to 489 operating days.

e Revenues increased $1.1M - The Planning and Development department realized the biggest
increase in revenues with the majority ($1.7M) coming from inspection/plan review fees,
reforestation, building permit fees and PID inspection fees. Other permits and fees decreased $200K
due to the PID reimbursement fund receiving one-time revenue of $743K in the prior year.

e Expenditures increased 1.9M - Payroll and related taxes, insurance and retirement increased $567K
due to the addition of employees and market adjustments. Maintenance and replacement projects
increased $685K due to the relocation of the Town Hall and subsequent purchases of furniture and
equipment.

Westlake Academy - Fund balance decreased by $193,514 primarily due to the reduction of state
revenue because the student enrollment was less than originally anticipated. In addition, there were
additional fransportation costs for the rental of buses for field trips and athletic activities due to the small
size of the Academy's current two buses (16 and 18 passenger). A new bus was purchased for fiscal year
2017-2018 with a 71 passenger capacity.

Visitors Association Fund - Fund balance decreased by $212,781 largely due to the debft service payment
transferred out for the Arts and Sciences Center.

Capital Projects Fund - Fund balance increased by $10,708,715 largely due the proceeds of the bond
issuance and tax notes for the construction of the Fire/EMS complex

Westlake Academy Expansion Fund - Fund balance increased by $1,016,218 (from $397,127 to
$1,413,345). This fund was created to account for proceeds from long-term financing and revenue and
expenditures related to authorized construction related to the expansion of Westlake Academy facilities.
The original project for this fund was completed in FY 2015. Transfers in will be recorded for lot fee revenue
based on an economic development agreement related to lot sales in several residential sub-division in
future years.




Solana Public Improvement District (PID) Capital Project Fund - Fund balance decreased by $5,145,966
due to infrastructure construction on the project. This fund was created in FY 2015 to detail the funds
contributed based on bond proceeds for the construction of infrastructure for the Entrada development.
All infrastructure will be conveyed to the Town upon completion.

Proprietary Funds. - The Town's proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found
in the government-wide financial statements with greater detail. Total net position of the Proprietary Funds
amounted to $1,836,874, a decrease of $166,129.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The General Fund budget for fiscal year 2017 was amended in total to increase the net change in fund
balance from ($214,923) to $207,481, a total increase of $422,404. The amended budget for net revenues
was increased by $515K (6%) based on anticipated increases in building permits and fees. The amended
budget for net expenditures was increased by $210K (2%). This was primarily due to additional needs
related to the relocation of the Town Hall.

The General Fund actual revenue collections/other sources were more than the amended budget by
$603K primarily due to the receipt of building permits and fees that were not anticipated until the
FY 17-18. Actual expenditure costs/other uses were less than the amended budget by $447K due mostly
to less than anticipated service expenditures.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The Town's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as
of September 30, 2017, totaled $79,630,451 (net of accumulated depreciation). The investment in capital
assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, infrastructure, and construction
in progress. The net increase in the Town's investment in capital assetfs for the current fiscal year was
$5,042,014 or 7% mostly due to additional construction in progress related to the Public Improvement
District, the Fire/EMS Complex, and the E. Dove Road Reconstruction/Drainage Project totaling $6.6M. This
increase was offset by the sale of land in the amount of $1.2M.

Table 5
Town’s Capital Assets
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Land $ 12,446,059 $ 11,896,664 $ - $ - $ 12,446,059 $ 11,896,664
Capital improvements 9,865,482 10,335,819 9,734,945 10,097,620 19,600,427 20,433,439
Building 25,699,186 26,351,151 25,699,186 26,351,151
Machinery and equipment 1,252,399 1,614,268 1,536,311 1,669,017 2,788,710 3,283,285
W /W treatments rights 89,885 121,645 89.885 121,645
Constructionin progress 18,677,154 12,216,861 329,030 285,392 19,006,184 12,502,253
Total capital assets $ 67,940,280 $ 62,414,763 $ 11,690,171 $ 12,173,674 $ 79.630,451 $ 74,588,437

Additional information on the Town's capital assets can be found in Note 4 on pages 56 - 57 of this
report.



Long-term liabilities - At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town had total long-term debt outstanding
of $43,741,665. Of this amount, $36,207,000 represents bonded indebtedness, $162,004 capital leases,
$238,404 in loans and $5,126,958 contractual obligations. During the fiscal year 2016-2017, the Town's total
debt payable increased by $9,625,356. This increase was mainly due to the sale of bonds and tax notes
for the Fire/EMS complex as well as the scheduled repayment of principal and interest on outstanding
bonded debt and offset by a savings due to the refunding on the Town's Series 2007 CO’s.

Standard & Poor's Ratings Services, a division of McGraw-Hill, Inc. has recently increased the Town's rate
from AA+/stable to AAA/stable. Additional information about the rating agency or the significance of the
rating provided may be obtained from Standard & Poor's web site. Additional information on the Town's
long-term debt can be found in Note 5 on pages 58 — 65.

Table 6
Outstanding Debt at Year-End
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
General obligation bonds $ 15,267,000 $ 16,685,000 $ - $ - $ 15,267,000 $ 16,685,000
Certificates of obligation 19,990,700 9,485,700 949,300 971,300 20,940,000 10,457,000
Contractual obligations - - 5,126,958 5,126,958 5,126,958 5,126,958
Capital leases 162,004 563,045 - - 162,004 563,045
Premium on bonds 1,578,909 657,912 29,881 31,053 1,608,790 688,965
Notes payable 238,404 275,101 238,404 275,101
Compensated absences 333,005 274,216 65,504 46,024 398,509 320,240
Total long-term debt $ 37,570,022 $ 27,940,974 $ 6,171,643 $ 6,175335 $ 43,741,665 $ 34,116,309

The Town's net pension liability relative to its participation in Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS)
increased from $1,215,618 as of September 30, 2016 to $1,476,481 as of September 30, 2017. The
Academy’s proportionate share of the Teacher Retirement System (TRS) net pension liability decreased
from $1,093,865 as of August 31, 2016 to $1,051,346 as of August 31, 2017.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets

In the FY 2017-18 adopted budget, the General Fund balance is anticipated to decrease by $1.4M.
Adopted revenue collections are budgeted to be less than the 2017 actuals by $1.0.M (10%) primarily
due to prior year one-time building fees and permits offset by additional general sales tax revenues due
to a negotiated development agreement and additional property taxes.

Anticipated expenditures will be approximately $600K more than the prior year. Payroll increases create
most of this increase with approximately $500K (market adjustments, two additional employees, increased
insurance and benefits. Transfers out are estimated to increase by $1.3M. The FY 17-18 budgeted amounts
include transfers of one-time revenues from various commercial projects to the Capital Projects Fund for
future use. The transfer to the Debt Service Fund increased to cover additional debt service requirements.

As stated in the Transmittal Letter, the Town's budget continues to be impacted by encouraging
economic signs. Growth in Westlake, along the SH 114 corridor and with the progress of our new mixed-
use development, Entrada, should confinue to increase the commercial revenue sources. Additionally,
increases are expected in residential-related revenues due to new housing developments.



Contacting the Town's Finance Department

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, and investors and creditors with @
general overview of the Town's finances and to demonstrate the Town's accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact Debbie
Piper, Town of Westlake Finance Director, at 817-490-5712 or email at dpiper@westlake-tx.org.
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Town of Westlake

Statement of Net Position

September 30, 2017

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance)
Inventories
Other assets

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Capital assets:

Land and construction in progress

Buildings and improvements

W astewater tfreatment rights

Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows of resources - TRS pension
Deferred outflows of resources - TMRS

Deferred loss onrefunding

Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Customer deposit payable
Unearnedrevenue
Accrued interest payable
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year
Long-term debt
Compensated absences

Due in more than one year
Long-term debt
Compensated absences
TRS pension liability
TMRS pension liability

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows - TRS pension

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Tourism
Construction
Court security and technology
Future projects
Debt service
Education
Unrestricted

Total net position

Primary Government

Exhibit A-1

Discretely
Governmental Business-type Presented
Activities Activities Total Component Units
$ 26,295,605 $ 3,722,146 $ 30,017,751 $ 6,171,501
1,848,083 1,154,947 3,003,030 410,969
- 95,197 95,197 -
262,106 - 262,106 161,211
1,656,534 282,435 1,938,969 3,132,602
31,123,213 329,030 31,452,243 5,099,597
47,342,288 14,899,416 62,241,704 52,590,312
- 635,199 635,199 -
4,652,500 3,560,780 8,213,280 4,690,979
(15,177,721) (7,734,254) (22,911,975) (29.929,128)
67,940,280 11,690,171 79,630,451 32,451,760
98,002,608 16,944,896 114,947,504 42,328,043
672,957 - 672,957 -
766,614 94,162 860,776 -
1,007,003 - 1,007,003 -
2,446,574 94,162 2,540,736 -
2,247,373 440,488 2,687,861 324,020
- 232,435 232,435 -
1.850 406,350 408,200 946,645
153,551 7,789,753 7,943,304 26,401,717
1,717,681 235,093 1,952,774 3,420,000
33,301 6,550 39,851 -
35,519,336 5,871,046 41,390,382 48,949,301
299,704 58,954 358,658 -
1,051,346 - 1,051,346 -
1.314,966 161,515 1,476,481 -
42,339,108 15,202,184 57,541,292 80,041,683
61,642 - 61,642 -
61,642 - 61,642 -
46,499,873 5,583,570 52,083,443 (19.917,541)
799,170 - 799170 -
797,234 - 797,234 -
219,693 - 219,693 -
13,789 - 13,789 -
205,030 - 205,030 -
9,513,643 (3.746,696) 5,766,947 (17.796,099)
$ 58,048,432 $ 1836874 $ 59,885,306 $ (37.713,640)

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Westlake
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Program Revenvues

Charges for Operating Grants Capital Grants
Functions/Programs Expenses Services and Confribufions and Confributions
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental activities:
General government $ 5,716,302 $ 73,180 $ - $ 5,956
Public safety 3,063,003 783,681 532 -
Cultural and recreation 217,489 - 3,100 -
Public works 1,634,549 3,338,541 - 2,359,299
Economic development 163,578 - - 1,010,000
Visitor services 737,071 - - -
Education 8,566,295 275,759 8,043,481 110,000
Interest on long-term debt 1,401,199 - - -
Total governmental activities 21,499,486 4,471,161 8,047,113 3,485,255
Business-type activities:
W ater and sewer 4,893,075 4,815,635 - -
Cemetery 8,021 9,964 - 50,000
Total business-type activities 4,901,096 4,825,599 - 50,000
Total primary government $ 26,400,582 $ 9,296,760 $ 8,047,113 $ 3,535,255
Reported Discretely Presented
Component Units $ 13,366,606 $11,235,925 $ - $ -

GENERAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS
Toxes:
Sales taxes
Property taxes
Hotel occupancy taxes
Mixed beverage taxes
Franchise taxes
Interest Income
Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net position
NET POSITION, beginning of year

NET POSITION, end of year

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

25



Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Discretely
Governmental Business - Type Presented
Activifies Activifies Total Component Units
$ (5.637,166) $ - $(5.637,166) % -
(2,278,790) - (2,278,790) -
(214,389) - (214,389) -
4,063,291 - 4,063,291 -
846,422 - 846,422 -
(737.071) - (737,071) -
(137,055) - (137,055) -
(1,401,199) - (1,401,199) -
(5.495,957) - (5,495,957) -
- (77.440) (77.440) -
- 51,943 51,943
- (25.,497) (25.497) -
$ (5495957) % (25,497)  $ (5.521,454) -
$ - $ - $ - $ (2,130,681)
4,650,744 - 4,650,744 -
1,576,750 - 1,576,750 -
751,601 - 751,601 -
68,432 - 68,432 -
818,423 - 818,423 -
182,095 28,684 210,779 33,164
278,071 - 278,071 -
169,316 (169,316) - -
8,495,432 (140,632) 8,354,800 33,164
2,999,475 (166,129) 2,833,346 (2,097.517)
55,048,957 2,003,003 57,051,960 (35,616,123)
$ 58,048,432 $ 1,836,874 $59,885,306 $ (37,713,640)
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Town of Westlake
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2017

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables :
Property taxes
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Prepaiditems
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, DEFFERED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearnedrevenue
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unav ailable grant funds
Unav dilable resources - property taxes

Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Prepaid items
Restricted for:
Tourism
Capital items
Court security, technology, and Bonds
Debt service
Future projects
Education
Committed for:
Street and free improvements
Unassigned

Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

Debt
Westlake Service
General Academy Fund

10,551,515 $ 410,804 $ 12,013
5216 - 433

1,021,417 446,291 -

201,723 - -

18,705 235,539 -
11,798,576 $ 1,092,634 $ 12,446
856,482 $ 126,856 $ 98

- 530 -
856,482 127,386 98
4,602 - 385
4,602 - 385

18,705 235,539 -

219,693 - -
- - 11,963

- 729,709 -

335,392 - B

10,363,702 - -
10,937,492 965,248 11,963
11,798,576 $ 1,092,634 $ 12,446

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit A-3

Solana PID Nonmajor Total
Capital Capital Governmental Governmental
Projects Projects Funds Funds

$ 13,124,934 $ - $ 2,196,339 $ 26,295,605
- - - 5,649
- - 374,726 1,842,434
- - - 201,723
- - 7.862 262,106
- 1,656,534 - 1,656,534

$ 13,124,934 $ 1,656,534 $ 2,578,927 $ 30,264,051
$ 255,057 $ 859,300 $ 149,580 $ 2,247,373
- - 1.320 1,850
- - 201,723 201,723
255,057 859,300 352,623 2,450,946
- - - 4,987
- - - 4,987
- - 7.862 262,106
- - 791,308 791,308
12,869,877 797,234 1,413,345 15,080,456
- - - 219,693
- - - 11,963
- - 13,789 13,789
- - - 729,709
- - - 335,392
- - - 10,363,702
12,869,877 797,234 2,226,304 27,808,118

$ 13,124,934 $ 1,656,534 $ 2,578,927 $ 30,264,051
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Town of Westlake Exhibit A-4
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

to the Statement of Net Position

September 30, 2017

Total fund balance-governmental funds balance sheet $ 27,808,118

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. 67,940,280

Deferredlosses onrefunding are reported as deferred outlfows of resources
in the government-wide statement of net position. 1,007,003

Revenues earned but not available within sixty days of the fiscal year-end are not
recognized as revenue in the fund financial statements. 4,987

Deferred outflows of resources related fo the Town's and Academy's net
pension liability increase net position by $766,614 and $672,957, respectively;
while the Academy's deferred resource inflows related to the net pension
liability decreases net position by $61,642. This amount is the net effect. 1,377,929

Interest payable on long-term debt does not require current financial resources, therefore
interest payable is not reported as aliability in the governmental funds balance sheet. (153,551)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current
period, and therefore are not reported in the fund financial statements. (39.936,334)

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES - statement of net position

Eoa

58,048,432

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Westlake

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

REVENUES
Taxes
Sales
Property
Mixed beverage
Hotel occupancy
Franchise
State programrevenues
Federal program revenues
Interest income
Building permits and fees
Fines and penalties
Contributions
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current
General government
Public safety
Cultural and recreation
Public works
Economic development
Visitor services
Education

Capital outlay

Debt service
Principal retirement
Interest and other fiscal charges
Bond issuance costs

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfersin
Transfers out
Proceeds from sale of assets
Refunding bonds issued
Payment to refunding bond escrow agent
Premium on bonds and certificates issued
Cerificates of obligationissued

Net other financing sources (uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES, AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Westlake Debt
General Academy Service Fund
3,353,658 % - $ -
1,482,625 - 95,190
68,432 - -
818,423 - -

- 6,603,358 -

- 140,152 -
67,680 5371 -

3,521,686 - -
673,716 - -
110,532 - -
275,404 1,675,730 -

10,372,156 8,324,611 95,190

4,596,827 - -

2,684,244 - -
164,720 - -
784,279 - -

- 8,819,174 -
29,612 - -
36,697 - 1,088,000

- 13,951 1,091,425

- - 116,592

8,296,379 8,833,125 2,296,017

2,075,777 (508,514) (2,200,827)
230,336 315,000 2,065,730

(1,048,094) - -

- - 5,795,000

- - (6,452,467)

- - 774,059

(817.758) 315,000 2,182,322
1,258,019 (193,514) (18.505)
9,679,473 1,158,762 30,468

10,937,492 $ 965,248 $ 11,963




Solana PID Nonmajor Total
Capital Capital Governmental Governmental
Projects Projects Funds Funds

$ - $ - $ 1,297,086 $ 4,650,744
- - - 1.577.815

- - - 68,432

- - 751,601 751,601

- - - 818,423

- - - 6,603,358

- - - 140,152

72,428 23,234 13,382 182,095

- - - 3,521,686

- - - 673,716
609,299 5,956 1,013,100 1,738,887

- - 2,667 1,853,801
681,727 29,190 3,077,836 22,580,710

- - - 4,596,827

- - - 2,684,244

- - - 164,720

- - - 784,279

- - 163,578 163,578

- - 717,055 717,055

- - - 8,819,174
1,878,076 5,175,156 - 7,082,844

- - - 1,124,697

- - - 1,105,376
251,686 - - 368,278
2,129,762 5,175,156 880,633 27,611,072
(1,448,035) (5.145,966) 2,197,203 (5.030,362)
- - 1,010,000 3.621,066
- - (2,403,656) (3.451,750)
1,200,000 - - 1,200,000

- - - 5,795,000
- - - (6,452,467)
246,750 - - 1,020,809
10,710,000 - - 10,710,000
12,156,750 - (1.393.656) 12,442,658
10,708,715 (5.145,966) 803,547 7,412,296
2,161,162 5,943,200 1,422,757 20,395,822
$ 12869877 $ 797,234 $ 2,226,304 $ 27,808,118
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Town of Westlake Exhibit A-6
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Net change in fund balances- total governmental funds. $ 7,412,296

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. 6,771,224

Developers contributions that are not reported at the fund level but reported as revenue
for the governmental activities. 1,750,000

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the statement of activities but does not
require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is not
reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. (1,795,102)

Loss onsale of capital assets decreases net position in the government-wide financial
statements, but only proceeds from the sale are recorded in the governmental funds
financial statements. This amount represents the reduction in capital assefts. (1,200,605)

The repayment of the principal of long term debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds, but has no effect on net position. The amortization of bond premiums
and deferred gain/loss on refunding of long term debt is reported in the statement of
activities but does not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, the
effect of the amortization of these various items are not reported in the statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance.

This amount represents the net effect of the following items:

Bonds and certificates issued (16,505,000)

Bonds repaid through escrow agent 6,330,000

Capital lease payments 401,041

Bond premiums (1,020,809)

Repayments 1,124,697

Deferred loss on refunding 122,467

Amortization of deferred loss on refunding (108,507)

Amortization of premium on bonds 99.812 (9.556,299)

Current year changes in accrued interest payable does not require the use of current
financial resources; and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. (41,308)

Implementation of GASB 68 requires certain expenditures to be de-expended and recorded as deferred
outflows of resources. The changes in deferred outflows from pension activity for TMRS increased
net position $82,565. The changes of net pension liability decreased net position by $232,327.
This amount is the net effect. (149,762)

Implementation of GASB 68 also affected the Academy. Contributions made to TRS after the
measurement date caused the change in net position to increase by $84,783. Contributions made
before the measurement period caused a decrease in the change in net position of $88,399.
The net share of the Academy's amount of deferred inflows and outflows of resources decreased
the change in net position by $130,595. This amount is the net effect. (134,211)

Current year changes in the long-term liability for compensated absences do not require
the use of current financial resources; and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. (58.789)

Certainrevenues in the government-wide statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenue in the governmental funds. 2,031

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES - statement of activities $ 2,999,475

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

33



Town of Westlake Exhibit A-7
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds

September 30, 2017

Utility Cemetery
Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,655,996 $ 66,150 $ 3,722,146
Accounts receivable 1,154,947 - 1,154,947
Inventories - 95,197 95,197
Restricted cash and investments 232,435 50,000 282,435
Total current assets 5,043,378 211,347 5,254,725
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets
Constructionin progress 329,030 - 329,030
Buildings and improvements 14,899,416 - 14,899,416
W astewater treatment rights 635,199 - 635,199
Machinery and equipment 3,560,780 - 3,560,780
Less: accumulated depreciation (7,734,254) - (7.734,254)
Total capital assets 11,690,171 - 11,690,171
Total noncurrent assets 11,690,171 - 11,690,171
TOTAL ASSETS 16,733,549 211,347 16,944,896
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows - TMRS pension 94,162 - 94,162
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 94,162 - 94,162
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 440,488 - 440,488
Customer deposits payable 232,435 - 232,435
Accrued interest payable 7,789,753 - 7,789,753
Unearnedrevenue 406,350 - 406,350
Compensated absences - current portion 6,550 6,550
Current portion of bonds payable 22,000 - 22,000
Contractual obligations 213,093 - 213,093
Total current liabilities 9,110,669 - 9,110,669
Long-term liabilities:
Bonds payable 927,300 - 927,300
Compensated absences 58,954 - 58,954
Contractual obligations 4,943,746 - 4,943,746
Net pension liability 161,515 - 161,515
Total long-term liabilities 6,091,515 - 6,091,515
TOTAL LIABILITIES 15,202,184 - 15,202,184
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 5,583,570 - 5,583,570
Unrestricted (3,958,043) 211,347 (3,746,696)
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 1,625,527 $ 211,347 $ 1,836,874

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Westlake Exhibit A-8
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Utility Cemetery
Fund Fund Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 4,636,861 $ 9,964 $ 4,646,825
Miscellaneous revenue 178,774 - 178,774
Total operating revenues 4,815,635 9,964 4,825,599
OPERATING EXPENSES
Payroll costs 497,740 - 497,740
Professional and contract services 87,632 7.325 94,957
Depreciation 495,381 - 495,381
Amortization of wastewater freatment rights 31,760 - 31,760
W ater purchases 1,215,465 - 1,215,465
Cost of cemetary lots sold - 696 696
Other operating costs 1,687,411 - 1,687,411
Total operating expenses 4,015,389 8,021 4,023,410
Net operating income 800,246 1,943 802,189
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income 27,517 1,167 28,684
Interest expense (877.686) - (877.686)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) (850,169) 1,167 (849.002)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS AND
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS (49,923) 3,110 (46,813)
Capital contributions - 50,000 50,000
Transfer out (169,316) - (169.316)
Total transfers and capital contributions (169,316) 50,000 (119,316)
Change in net position (219,239) 53,110 (166,129)
Total net position, beginning of year 1,844,766 158,237 2,003,003
Total net position, end of year $ 1,625,527 $ 211,347 $ 1,836,874

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Westlake

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer to other funds

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal paid on debt
Interest paid on debt
Capital contributions
Investment earnings
Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities
Net increase in cash

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year

RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Pension expense
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Prepaid Items
Inventory
Compensated absences
Accounts payable
Customer deposits payable
Unearnedrevenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Utility Cemetery

Fund Fund Total
$ 4,855,577 $ 9.964 $ 4,865,541
(459,855) - (459,855)
(3,116,398) (7,325) (3,123,723)
1,279,324 2,639 1,281,963
(169,316) - (169,316)
(169.,316) - (169,316)
(22,000) - (22,000)
(144,556) - (144,556)
- 50,000 50,000
27,517 1,167 28,684
(43,638) - (43,638)
(182,677) 51,167 (131,510)
927,331 53,806 981,137
2,961,100 62,344 3,023,444
$ 3.888,431 $ 116,150 $ 4,004,581
$ 3,655,996 $ 66,150 $ 3,722,146
232,435 50,000 282,435
$ 3,888,431 $ 116,150 $ 4,004,581
$ 800,246 $ 1,943 $ 802,189
527,141 - 527,141
18,395 - 18,395
(106,939) - (106,939)
29,828 - 29,828
- 696 696
19,490 - 19,490
(155,718) - (155,718)
(4,750) - (4,750)
151,631 - 151,631
$ 1,279,324 $ 2,639 $ 1,281,963




Exhibit A-10
Town of Westlake
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Agency Fund
September 30, 2017

PID Agency
Fund
ASSETS
Restricted cash and cash equivalents $ 2,085,576
Total Assets $ 2,085,576
LIABILITIES
Liability to bond holders $ 2,085,576
Total Liabilities $ 2,085,576

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Westlake

Discretely Presented Component Units
Combining Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2017

Exhibit A-11

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Texas Student
Texas Student Housing
Housing Corporation Texas Student
Corporation College Stafion Housing
Denton Project Project Authority Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 451,726 $ 2817751 $ 2902024 $ 6,171,501
Accounts receivable (net of allowance) 38,297 371,976 696 410,969
Prepaid rent 109,298 51,913 - 161,211
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equiv alents 2,198,245 934,357 - 3,132,602
Capital assefs:
Land 2,200,000 2,899,597 - 5,099,597
Buildings and improvements 25,705,000 26,885,312 - 52,590,312
Machinery and equipment 1,253,841 3,437,138 - 4,690,979
Less: accumulated depreciation (15,273,006) (14,656,122) - (29,929,128)
Total assets 16,683,401 22,741,922 2,902,720 42,328,043
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 254,737 66,692 2,591 324,020
Unearnedrevenue 169,130 740,058 37,457 946,645
Accrued interest payable 8,464,293 17,937,424 - 26,401,717
Bonds payable 23,950,101 28,419,200 - 52,369,301
Total liabilities 32,838,261 47,163,374 40,048 80,041,683
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (10,064,266) (9,853,275) - (19,917.,541)
Unrestricted (6,090,594) (14,568,177) 2,862,672 (17,796,099)
Total net position $ (16,154860) $ (24,421,452) $ 2,862,672 $ (37.713,640)
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Town of Westlake

Discretely Presented Component Units
Combining Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017

Program Revenves

Charges for Operating Grants Capital Grants
Functions/Programs Expenses Services and Confributions and Confributions
Business-type activities:
Texas Student Housing Authority $ 365,777 $ 1,920,229 $ - $ -
Texas Student Housing Authority
College Station Project 7,364,984 3,944,039 - -
Denton Project 5,635,845 5,371,657 - -
Total business-type activities 13,366,606 11,235,925 - -
Total component units $ 13,366,606 $ 11,235,925 $ - $ -
GENERAL REVENUES

Interest Income
Total general revenues
Change in net position
NET POSITION, beginning of year

NET POSITION, end of year

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenues and Changes in Net Positions

Texas Student
Texas Student Housing
Housing Corporation Texas Student
Corporation College Station Housing
Denton Project Project Authority Toftal
$ - $ - $ 1,554,452 $ 1,554,452
- (3,420,945) - (3.420,945)
(264,188) - - (264,188)
(264,188) (3,420,945) 1,554,452 (2,130,681)
$ (264,188) $ (3,420,945) $ 1,554,452 $  (2,130,681)
12,844 - 20,320 33,164
12,844 - 20,320 33,164
(251,344) (3,420,945) 1,574,772 (2,097.517)
(15,903,516) (21,000,507) 1,287,900 (35.616,123)
$ (16,154,860) $ (24,421,452) $ 2,862,672 $ (37.713,640)
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Town of Westlake
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Town of Westlake, Texas (the Town) was incorporated under the provisions of the laws of the State of
Texas on December 26, 1956. The Town operates under a Council- Manager form of government and
provides the following services as authorized by the laws of the State of Texas: public safety; cultural and
recreation; and economic development.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Town conform to accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America for local governments. Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
for local governments include those principles prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB). The following is a summary of the more significant accounting and reporting policies:

Financial Reporting Entity

The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for
which the government is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although
legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the Town's operations and are appropriately presented
as funds of the primary government. Discretely presented component units, on the other hand, are
reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize it is legally
separate from the Town.

Based on these criteria, the financial information of the following entities have been blended or discretely
presented within the financial statements: Lone Star Public Facilities Corporatfion, 4B Economic
Development Corporation, Westlake Academy, Texas Student Housing Authority, Texas Student Housing
Corporation — College Station Project and Texas Student Housing Corporation — Denton Project.

The Texas Student Housing Authority, Texas Student Housing Authority — Jefferson Commons at Town Lake
Project, Texas Student Housing Corporation — College Station Project, and Texas Student Housing
Corporation — Denton Project (collectively, Texas Student Housing Entities) are Texas nonprofit
organizations as a duly constituted authority of the Town pursuant to Section 53.35(b) of the Texas
Education Code, as amended (Act). Texas Student Housing Entities' primary purpose is to construct, own,
and operate student housing facilities on college campuses in Texas. The board consists of seven directors
which are appointed by the Town's governing body and has the ability to remove at will the appointed
members; thus, the governing body can impose its will on the organizations. However, the board is not
substantively the same as the Town's governing body; therefore, the Texas Student Housing Entities are
reported as discretely presented component units (enterprise funds). The Town is not responsible for the
long-term debt of the Texas Student Housing Entities. The Texas Student Housing Entities’ year-end is August
31.

Component Units

Discretely Presented
Separately issued financial reports are available for the all the Texas Student Housing Entities. These reports
may be obtained by contacting the following office.

Texas Student Housing Authority

99 Trophy Club Drive
Trophy Club, Texas 76262
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Town of Westlake
Notes to the Financial Statements

Blended

Lone Star Public Facilities Corporation is a Texas nonprofit corporation that acts on behalf of the Town to
further the public purposes under the Public Facilities Corporation Act, as its duly constituted authority
and instrumentality. The board of directors, appointed by the Town's governing body, is comprised of
seven members, of whom five must be members of the Town's governing body. Since the board of
directorsis substantively the same as the Town's governing body, and a financial benefit relationship exists,
the entity has been reported as a blended component unit of the Town.

4B Economic Development Corporation is a Texas nonprofit industrial corporation under the
Development Corporation Act of 1979 formed to promote economic development within the Town and
the State of Texas in order to eliminate unemployment and underemployment, and to promote and
encourage employment and the public welfare of, for, and on behalf of the Town by developing,
implementing, financing, and providing one or more projects defined and permitted under Section 4B of
the Act. The board of directors is composed of seven persons appointed by the members of the Town's
governing board. Four of the members of the board of directors are members of the Town's governing
board. Since the board of directors is substantively the same as the Town's governing body, and a
financial benefit relationship exists, the entity has been reported as a blended component unit of the
Town.

Westlake Academy (Academy) is an open-enrollment charter school, as provided by Subchapter D,
Chapter 12, of the Texas Education Code. The Town of Westlake (Charter Holder) applied for and
became the first municipality in Texas to ever receive this special charter designation. The board consists
of six trustees and is appointed by the Town's governing body. Currently, all the members of the board of
frustees are members of the Town's governing body. Since the board of directors is substantively the same
as the Town's governing body, and a financial benefit relationship exists, the entity has been reported as
a blended component unit of the Town. The Academy's year-end is August 31.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the Town. Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by tfaxes and infergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the
primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the
primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and 2) grants and confributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major

individual Governmental Funds and major individual Enterprise Funds are reported as separate columns
in the fund financial statements.
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Town of Westlake
Notes to the Financial Statements

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within
the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
Town considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the Town.

The Town uses funds fo report on its financial position and the results of its operations. Fund accounting is
designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating
fransactions related to certain government functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity
with a self-balancing set of accounts.

Governmental Funds are those through which most governmental functions of the Town are financed.
The acquisition, use, and balances of the Town's expendable financial resources and the related liabilities
(except those accounted for in the proprietary fund type) are accounted for through governmental
funds. The measurement focus is upon determination of changes in financial position, rather than upon
income determination.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fund. The General Fund balance is available for any purpose, provided it is expended or
fransferred in accordance with the legally adopted budget of the Town. The General Fund includes the
Town’'s Major Maintenance and Replacement Fund, Vehicle Replacement Fund, and PID (local) Fund.

Westlake Academy Fund - to account for all local, state and federal revenue and related educational
expenditures of the Academy.

Debt Service Fund —to account for resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest
on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

Capital Projects Fund — to account for proceeds from long-term financing and revenue and expenditures
related to authorized construction and other capital asset acquisitions other than those related to the
expansion of Westlake Academy facilities.
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Town of Westlake
Notes to the Financial Statements

Solana Public Improvement District (PID) Capital Projects Fund — to account for the acquisition or
construction of capital facilities and improvements relating to the Solana public improvement district.

In addition, the Town reports the following nonmajor governmental funds:

Visitors Association Fund - to account for municipal hotel occupancy taxes collected and expenditures
to promote tourism and the convention and hotel industry.

Lone Star Public Facilities Corporation — to account for investment activity relating to the Lone Star Public
Facilities Corporation.

4B Economic Development Corporation — to account for sales tax collected to fund the activities of the
4B Economic Development Corporation.

Economic Development Fund — to account for sales tax and hotel occupancy tax collected to fund
activity relating to Economic Development agreements.

Westlake Academy Expansion Capital Projects Fund —to account for proceeds from long-term financing
and revenue and expenditures related to authorized construction related to the expansion of Westlake
Academy facilities.

The Town adopts an annual appropriated budget for all governmental funds except capital projects,
Solana PID capital projects, and Westlake Academy Expansion funds, which are project-length based
budgets. A budgetary comparison schedule has been provided for all appropriate funds to demonstrate
compliance with the budget.

Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the Town's Enterprise Fund are charges to customers for sales and services. Operatfing expenses for the
Enterprise Fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenue and expenses.

The Town reports the following major proprietary funds:

Utility Fund — to account for revenues and expenses related to providing water and sewer services to the
general public on a continuing basis.

Cemetery Fund — to account for the operations of the Town's cemetery.

The Town reports the following fiduciary fund:

Solana PID Agency Fund —to account for bond proceeds, assessments, and related debt associated with
bonds issued by the Town as an agent for the Solana public improvement district.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the Town's water and wastewater
function and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the
direct costs and program revenue reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) charges to customer or applicants for goods, services,
or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and confributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions,
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including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather
than as program revenue. Likewise, general revenue includes all taxes.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and investments of all funds, including restricted cash, are available upon demand and are
considered to be "cash equivalents."

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Town considers highly-liquid investments (including
restricted assets) with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

State statutes authorize the Town to invest in (1) obligations of the United States or its agencies and
instrumentalities; (2) direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies; (3) other obligations, the
principal of, and interest on, which are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the State of Texas or the
United States; (4) obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political subdivisions of any
state having been rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm and
having received aratfing of not less than "A" or its equivalent; (5) certificates of deposit by state or national
banks domiciled in this state that are (a) guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, or its successor; or, (b) secured by obligations that are described by (1) - (4); or (6) fully
collateralized direct repurchase agreements having a defined termination date, secured by obligations
described by (1) pledged with third-party selected or (2) approved by the Town, and placed through a
primary government securities dealer. Allinvestments are recorded at fair value based on quoted market
prices. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current
tfransaction between willing parties.

Receivables and Payables

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund
loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other
outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." Any residual balances
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements as "internal balances."

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by nonspendable fund
balance in applicable governmental fund